


ALy s O\
¢ Confidewtid Fiding
P W 1__5 Ak k. Sauds S Batha - s G’{ t'lma

C1 M\Jf SH\A“H (néu :P\ML; :Du/bm / Foi”ﬁlgm ' loo(f.fj

#

O man and O\ahu*) M-zs"‘“ Ay 199

PoLicy, hpaiL 148)
=
Referred to Date Referred to Referred to Referred to

=55+

21 -9—%%
1§ =TEP

PREM (4] 1757

Dd 533270 sMm 2/78 8362633 JET




10 DOWNING STREET (e

From the Private Secretary 19 November 1982

Thank you for your letter of 15 October to the Prime
Minister. I have been asked to reply.

I am sorry that you continue to think that the Embassy
are not interested in your situation and are misleading you.
This is not true.

Mr. Northern visited the Prison again on 9 October as
promised to see about the arrangements for Mr. Sullivan's
release and deportation, However, after spending several hours
at the Prison he was informed that the documentation would not
be completed that day. The administrative procedures had been
completed, but the Prison Office refused to authorise Mr. Sullivan's
departure until after his file was completed. By that time it was
too late for Mr. Northern to see you and Mr. Sullivan that day.
He did not pass a message as there was no progress to report and he
was going to call back at a later date to find out whether the
formalities had been completed. It is unfortunate that Mr. Northern
told Mrs. Sullivan that her husband would be home that week, but
as you will probably realise this was based on information received
from the Saudi authorities.

Mr. Northern returned to the Prison on 16 October, to enquire
about Mr. Sullivan's release. He was told by the deportation office
that the paperwork would take a day or so and was asked to return on
18 October to arrange the exit visa and flight booking, which he did.
On both occasions he was not able to arrange to see you but he did
see Mr, Sullivan on 23 October to deliver his ticket and passport.

I understand that Mr, Northern has now informed you that your
continued detention is due to a decision by the Customs Committee
and not the Ministry of the Interior. I am sorry that you were
given conflicting information when you made your own enquiries,
but as you know it is sometimes difficult to verify statements from
various Saudi offices. I understand that you are now considering
whether or not to appeal against the findings of the Customs
Committee and have 15 days in which to do so. Obviously, the
Committee's decision must furtherdelay your release but I do hope
that it will not be for long.

/1 assure you




Ry s

I assure you that the Embassy will continue to keep a close

watch on your case. I know that Mr. Northern
as he can and that the Consular Department of
Commonwealth Office maintains regular contact

I very much hope that there will be good
to her soon.

Charles Clark, Esq.

visits you as often
the Foreign and
with your mother,

news to pass on




Foreign and Commonwealth Office

London SWI1A 2AH

18 November 1982

Vesr (i,

arles Clark and John Sullivan

)
AT K

Thank you for_your letter of 5 Nowember enclosing
a copy of a lett€r which the Prime Minister has received
from the above named prisoners in Saudi Arabia.

Minister on 9 Sepjp€mber about their continued detention.
Since then Mr Sullivan has been released and deported.
Mr Clark's release has been delayed because a Saudi
Customs Committee ruled that all those involved in the
whisky smuggling operation should jointly pay a fine

of nearly 1.5 million Saudi Riyals, (£250,000).

Mr Clark is considering whether to appeal against this
decision.

lessrs Clar?}zpd Sullivan also wrote to the Prime

I enclose a draft reply to Mr Clark, together with
essential facts on the case.

(- e

(J E Holmes)
Private Secretary

T Flesher Esq
10 Downing Street
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DRAFT: minute/letter/teleletter/despatch/note TYPE: Draft/Final 14

FROM: Reference
PS/No 10

DEPARTMENT:

SECURITY CLASSIFICATION

Top Secret
Secret
Confidential
Restricted
Unclassified

PRIVACY MARKING

vveeeneeeee 1 Confidence

CAVEAT

Enclosures—flag(s)

TO: Your Reference
C Clark Esq
Malaz Central Prison

Section 2 :
Riyadh Copies to:
Saudi Arabia

SUBJECT:

Thank you for your letter of 15 October to the Prime

Minister. I have been asked to reply.

I am sorry that you continue tofhéak'UuH;the Embassy are
not interested in your situation and are misleading you.

This is not true.

Mr Northern visited the Prison again on 9 October as
promised to see about the arrangements for Mr Sullivan's
release and deportation. However, after spending several
hours at the Prison he was informed that the documentation
would not be completed that day. The administrative
procedures had been completed, but the Prison Office
refused to authorise Mr Sullivan's departure until his file
was completed. By that time it was too late for Mr
Northern to see you and Mr Sullivan that day. He did not
pass a message as there was no progress to report and he
was going to call back at a later date to find out whether
the formalities had been completed. It is unfortunate that
Mr Northern told Mrs Sullivan that her husband would be
home that week, but as you will probably realise this was

/based
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based on information received from the Saudi authorities.

Mr Northern returned to the Prison on 16 October, to enquine
about Mr Sullivan's release. He was told by the deportatiqgn
office that the paperwork would take a day or so and was
asked to return on 18 October to arrange the exit visa and
flight booking, which he did. On both occasions he was nof
able to arrange to see you but he did see Mr Sullivan on

23 October to deliver his ticket and passport.

I understand that Mr Northern has now informed you that

your continued detention is due to a decision by the

Customs Committee and not the Ministry of the Interior.
I am sorry .that you were given conflicting

information when you made your own enquiries, but as you
sometimes

know it is/difficult to verify statements from various

Saudi offices. I understand you are now considering whethe
or not to appeal against the findings of the Customs

Committee and have 15 days in which to do so. Obviously,
the Committee's decision must further delay your release

but I do hope that it will not be for long.

I assure you that the Embassy will continue to keep a closg
watch on your case. I know that Mr Northern visits you as
often as he can and that the Consular Department of the
Foreign and Commonwealth Office maintains regular contact

with your mother.

I very much hope that there will be good news to pass on

to her soon.




ESSENTIAL FACTS

CHARLES CLARK

1. Arrested 26 November 1980 in Dammam in connection
with large scale whisky smuggling operation. Claimed

innocence of any complicity.

2. Transferred to Riyadh in Sentember 1981 for acuestioning

by Customs Department. Returned to Dammam February 1982,

Sentenced on 12 May 1982 to two vears imprisonment.
Remission of one quarter of sentences: Should have been

released after Ramadan (25 July).

Taken to Riyadh for further questioning by Customs.

5. Customs fine imposed jointlv on those involved

(about 1.5 million Riyals).







9 November 1882

I enclose a copy of a letter the Prime
Minister has received from Messrs. John Sullivan
and Charles Clark,

I would be grateful if you could let me
have a suitable draft reply which I might
send to them by Fridav 19 November.

(TIMOTHY FLESHER)

Christopher Greenwood, Esq.,
Foreign and Commonwealth Office.
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10 DOWNING STREET

From the Private Secretary 8 October 1982

Thank you for your letter of 9 September to the Prime
Minister about your continued detention in Saudi Arabia. I
have been asked to reply.

The Prime Minister well understands your sense of frustration
that your release has been delayed in this way particularly
since Mr. Philip Clark has now been released. I am sorry, however,
that you feel that the Embassy are ignoring your plight. I assure
you that is not at all the case. The Foreign and Commonwealth
Office and the Embassy have been active in pressing for your
release.

As Mr. Northern explained when he visited you, the staff of
the Embassy try to visit as often as they can. In addition the
Embassy is in regular contact with the Saudi authorities in order
to find out where matters stand. You probably realise this can
be a long, frustrating and sometimes unproductive exercise; the
intervention of Ramadan, the Eid and Hajj holidays has not helped.

The latest information we have received from the Embassy is
that amongst you, Mr. Sullivan is to be released next week. This
is good news and I sincerely hope that there is no further delay.

As for Mr. Clark's case, it seems that Customs procedures
have not yet been completed, although we have been given to under-
stand that these would be resolved soon after the Hajj holiday.

We shall continue to keep up the pressure for your release.

Mr. Hurd, Minister of State at the Foreign and Commonwealth Office
raised your case with the Saudi Ambassador on 24 September. The
Ambassador undertook to report this approach to Riyadh. We are
assured that the Ministry of the Interior and the Customs Depart-
ment fully understand the need for urgency. I am very much aware
that it is now nearly five months since Mr. Rickett wrote to you
about your continued detention and it is depressing to learn that
your release is still held up.




I know how worried and anxious Mrs. Clark must be at the
.ack of progress and I do hope that our latest efforts will prove
effective and that you will very soon be released and reunited
with your family.

C. Clark, Esq.,
J.E. Sullivan., Esq.




Foreign and Commonwealth Office

London SWI1A 2AH

g October 1982

Ll
A L

Charles Clark, Philip Clark,
John Sullivan

Thank you for your letter of 23‘§éptember enclosing a copy
of a letter which the Prime Minister has received from the above
named prisoners in Saudi Arabia.

Mr Charles Clark wrote to the Prime Minister on 21 April
this year about his continued detention without charge. He was
subsequently sentenced and was on the point of being released
in July when he was further detained by the Saudi Customs
authorities. Mr Hurd raised the case with the Saudi Ambassador
on 24 September who undertook to report our approach to Riyadh,
and the Secretary of State is being briefed to raise this if he
visits Saudi Arabia next week.

Mr Philip Clark was released on 21 September and Mr Sullivan
who should have been released on 4 September, is to be released
next week following agreement by the Customs authorities.

L]

I enclose a draft reply to Messrs Charles Clark and John
Sullivan together with a note on the essential facts of the cases.
The draft does not mention the possibility of the Secretary of
State raising this, in case the visit does not materialise.

lons 2

thl_e.

(J E Holmes)
Private Secretary

T Flesher Esq
10 Downing Street
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. FROM: Reference

PS/No. 10

DEPARTMENT:

SECURITY CLASSIFICATION :

J E Sullivan Esq Your Reference
Top Secret C Clark Esq
Malaaz Prison ;
y Section 2 Copies to:
Confidential Riyadh

Restricted Saudi Arabia

Secret

Unclassified

PRIVACY MARKING SUBJECT:

o eeveseedn Confidence Thank you for your letter of 9 September to the Prime

Minister about your continued detention in Saudi Arabia.
GAVEAY soiianian s

I have been asked to reply.

The Prime Migister well understands your sense of
frustration tﬁéthyour release has been delayed in this way
particularly since Mr Philip Clark has now been released.
I am sorry, however, €Ha§ you feel that the Embassy are
ignoring your plight. \‘{.qssure you that is not at all

the case. The Foreign and Commonwealth Office and the

have been active in pressing for ¥your release.
N

N
\

As Mr Northern explained when he visitéd y0u, the staff of

the Embassy try to visit as often as they oan. In
addition the Embassy is in regular contact wftQ the Saudi

authorities in order to find out where matters étand. You

Enclosures—flag(s) probably realise this can be a long, frustrating anda

sometimes unproductive exercise; the intervention of°

Ramadan, the Eid and Hajj holidays has not helped.

”
The latest information we have received from the Embassy 1is
amongst

that/you, Mr Sullivan ig to be released next week. TN S

/is
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is good news and I sincerely hope that there is/no further

/7
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Ambasgador on 24 September. The
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is good news and I sincerely hope that there is no

further delay.

As for WMr Clark's case, it seems that Customs

procedures have not yet been completed, although we
have been given to understand that these would be
resolved soon after the Hajj holiday. We shall
continue to keep up the pressure for your release.

Mr Hurd, Minister of State at the
Foreign and Commonwealth Office raised your case with
the Saudi Ambassador on 24 September. The Ambassador
undertook to report this approach to Riyadh. We
are assured that the Ministry of the Interior
and the Customs Department fully understand the need
for urgency. I am very much aware that it is now
nearly five months since Mr Rickett wrote to you about
your continued detention and it is depressing to

learn that your release is still held up.

I know how worried and anxious Mrs Clark must be at
the lack of progress.and I do hope that our latest
efforts will prove effective and that you will very

soon be released and reunited with your family.




ESSENTIAL FACTS

CHARLES CLARK

1. Arrested 26 November 1980 in Dammam in connection
with large scale whisku smuggling operation. Claimed

innocence of any complicity.

2. Transferred to Riyadh in September 1981 for qﬂgétioning
by Customs Department. Returned to Dammam Februaﬁg;lQSZ.

3. Sentenced on 12 May 1982 to' two years imprisonment.
Remission of one quarter of sentence. Should have been
released after Ramadan (25 July).

4
¢

Taken to Riyadh for further questioning by.CustomS.




JOHN EDWARD "‘SULLIVAN

1. Arrested in Riyadh on 11 March together with a German 2
three Austrians and a Saudi National.

2 Caught distributing alcohol.

3. Sentenced 3 July to 12 months imprisonment and 150 strokes
of the cane. Eligible for release under King's amnesty. Release
date 4 September 1982. Delayed due to Customs procedures,

To be released approx mid October 1982.







ntember 1982

I enclose a copy of a letter the Prime
Minister has received from Messrs John Sullivan,

Charles Clark and Philip Clark.

I would be gratdful if you could let me

have a suitable draft Private Secretary reply

by Thursday, 7 October.

(TIMOTHY FLESHER)

Christopher Greenwood, Esq.,
Foreign and Commonwealth Office.




I am writing on behalf f the Prime
Minister to thank you for your letter of

Y September.

This is receiving attention and a reply

be sent to you as soon as possible.

(TIMOTHY FLESHER)

J.E. Sullivan, Esqg.
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10 DOWNING STREET

From the Private Secretary 19 May 1982

The Prime Minister has asked me to thank you for your

letter of 21 April and to reply on her behalf.

Mrs Thatcher was naturally most concerned to hear of your
continued imprisonment without charges having been made.
Mrs Thatcher raised your case and that of other British subjects
held at that time without charge, when she visited Saudi Arabia
in April of last year. Our Ambassador also recently asked

Prince Naif to look urgently at your case.

I understand that since you wrote to the Prime Minister you
have been sentenced to two years imprisonment but that this has
been backdated to the date of your original imprisonment. I very
much hope that you will be able to qualify for maximum remission

and be released soon.

The Consular Department of the Foreign and Commonwealth
Office have been in regular touch with your mother throughout.

She is both relieved and pleased at the prospect of seeing you soon.

W, F. S. RICKED |

Mr. Charles Clark




Foreign and Commonwealth Office

London SWI1A 2AH

19 May 1982

/’mjerLqJ“/ﬁi_
Doy Sohas

Charles Clark

Thank you for your letter of 6 May enclosing a copy
of a letter which the Prime Minister received from Charles
Clark, who has been detained for almost 18 months without
being charged in Saudi Arabia, He wrote a similar letter
on the same day to Mr Hurd, Minister of State at the Foreign
and Commonwealth Office.

Mr Clark has now been sentenced to 2 years'
imprisonment and with remission may be released soon.

I enclose a draft reply to Mr Clark, together with
a background note. The reply should be sent through the
diplomatic bag to Jedda. Our Embassy will arrange for it
to be delivered to Mr Clark.

U
(raA  Err

4%1._ Hdno

(J E Holmeg)
Private Secretary

A J Coles Esq
10 Downing Street
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FROM: Reference

A J COLES
DEPARTMENT.: TEL. NO:

Your Reference

Charles Clark Esq
Dammam Central Prison
DAMMAM Copies to:
Saudi Arabia

SUBIJECT:

The Prime Minister Mas asked me to thank you

for your letter of 21 April and to reply on her behalf.

Mrs Thatcher wgs naturally most concerned to hear
of your continued Aimprisonment without charges having
been made. Mrs atcher raised your case and that of
other British smubjects held at that time without
charge, when she visited Saudi Arabia in April of last
year. Our Ambassador also recently asked Prince Naif

to look urgently at your case.

I understand that since you wrote to the Prime
Minister you have been sentenced to two years imprisonment
but that this has been backdated to the date of your
original imprisonment. I very much hope that you will
be able to qualify for maximum remission and be

released soon.

/The Consular Department




The Consular Department of the Foreign and

Commonwealth Office have been in regular touch

with your mother throughout. She is both relieved

and pleased at the prospect of seeing you soon.




ESSENTIAL FACTS

CHARLES CLARK
1% Arrested 26 November 1980 in Dammam in connection

with large-scale whisky smuggling operation.

Claims innocence of any complicity.

3. Prime Minister raised case in general terms during

visit to Saudi Arabia in April 1981.

4, Two others connected with affair were deported on
19 November 1981. Three others sentenced on 12 December
1981. Two of those have now been released. The third -

David Hanley - is now serving a four year prison sentence.

By, Ambassador in Jedda raised case with Minister of the

Interior on 21 April.

6. Sentenced on 12 May to 2 years imprisonment.

Possible remission of one quarter of sentence, may be

released soon or, more probably, not until after Ramadan
(22 June - 25 July).




10 DOWNING STREET

From the Private Secretary 6 May 1982

I enclose a copy of a letter which the Prime Minister has
received from Mr. Charles Clark who states he is being held in

prison by the Saudi Arabian authorities.

I should be grateful if you could let me have a brief
account of the case and a draft reply for my signature on behalf
of the Prime Minister (together with advice on how the reply

should best be sent).

As the letter has clearly been delayed in transit (it was

received here on 6 May), I should be grateful if the draft

reply could reach me early next week.

John Holmes, Esq.,
Foreign and Commonwealth Office.
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21 September 1981

I enclose a copy of a letter which the
Prime Minister has received from the Chaiyman
of British Aerospace about defence sales
prospecta in the countries she will be visit-~
ing during her visit to and from Australia.

Subject to any views you and Francis
Richards, to whom I am copyirg this letter
and it{s enclosure, may have, I propose to
include Sir Austin Pearce's letter in the
Prime Minister's briefing.

David Omaend, Esq.,
Ministry of Defence.
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% S Brooklands Road
& British Aerospace Weybridge,

PUBLIC LIMITED COMPANY Surrey KT13 08]

Telephone: Weybridge (0932) 45522
From the Chairman, Telegrams: Britair Weybridge
SIR AUSTIN PEARCE, CBE Telex: 27111

21st September, 1981.

-
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I wrote to you on the 8th/ﬁpri1 prior to your tour of the Middle East,
seeking your help in the promotion of sales in prospect in the various
countries you were to visit. Following your tour the results were most
gratifying: a £41M order for 8 Hawks in Dubai and activation of negotiations
in Abu Dhabi for a quantity of Hawks. Your visit to Saudi Arabia, and

the subsequent State visit of King Khalid to the UK, stimulated interest

in the Nimrod AEW (Airborne Early Warning) aircraft, the Tornado, and
possible participation in the development of new combat aircraft such as

the P110. The sale of Hawk trainers to the Royal Saudi Air Force has also
become a possibility. :

I am also pleased to report that we appear to be making progress in the

Middle East states in advancing our P110 project in relation to the French
competitor product, the Mirage 4000. We have been greatly helped by

Sir Ronald E11is and the Defence Sales staff, but if we are finally to succeed
we shall require continued top level political support in view of the very
hard promotion of the Mirage 2000 and 4000 by the French Government. The
benefits to the UK and the aerospace industry in particular is immense, since
conservatively we see exports exceeding £4,000M and the creation of 25,000
Jobs in high technology areas, equivalent to 300,000 man-years of employment.

We should be most grateful for similar assistance in your forthcoming tour -
particularly in Kuwait, Australia and Pakistan - Bahrain is unlikely to yield
orders of any significance, other than in association with Saudi Arabia.

If I may now turn to our interest in the specific countries you are to visit:

Kuwait  Apart from a keen interest in an air defence system based on Rapier,
Kuwait is now showing interest in the P110 and formal invitations
have been made for the Kuwait Air Force to evaluate the Tornado. We
also believe that there is the possibility of the sale of 15 to 20
Hawks. We have not been successful in this market for a number of
years, but your presence could provide the necessary impetus to break
the stalemate.

Bahrain There is interest in the purchase of a small quantity of Hawks, but
most Tikely as a gift from Saudi Arabia should the Hawk be selected
by them.
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g . Australia Australia has been a fairly dull market in recent years, but I

4 believe could to some degree redirect attention to the UK for
defence equipment and civil aircraft. We have a small subsidiary
company in Australia manufacturing electronic and precision
equipment and generally supporting our activities; we have sold
Rapier to the Army. We are trying to sell the Sea Skua (an anti-
ship missile Taunched from a helicopter) and, possibly, a version of
the Sea Dart (a shipborne anti-aircraft missile) to the Navy.
We believe there is also a good possibility of selling the Sea Harrier
to the RAN, particularly if they acquire a new British carrier.

There is renewed interest in the Tornado in Australia to meet their
requirement for a replacement fighter aircraft - this is a very
sizeable programme for the Royal Australian Air Force. Although

the Tornado was not included in the short-list until recently, we
understand that there is growing disenchantment with the first
favoured aircraft - the American F.16 and F.18 fighters. The latest
unsolicited Tornado proposal was welcomed.

We are most anxious to see our new BAe 146 80-100 seat feeder aircraft
operating in Australia and we are principally pursuing Ansett ANA

in which Mr Rupert Murdoch and Sir Peter Abeles are the leading
figures. You may know that the BAe 146 made its maiden flight on

3rd September 1981 and is continuing to make satisfactory progress.
Anything you are able to do to influence the adoption of the 146 in
Australia would be particularly welcome.

Pakistan This is another country where:for many years we have been unable to
penetrate with BAe products partly due to our substantial conflicting
interests in India. Pakistan is dependent on financial aid from
Saudi Arabia and other Gulf states for its aerospace purchases. Of
direct interest is the Rapier missile which is currently under
consideration. At the request of the Pakistan Air Force we made
presentations on the Hawk, and we believe this requirement is for
about 70 aircraft, which probably would be coupled with a Saudi
Arabian interest.

As a footnote I should 1like to remind you of our 20% stake in Airbus Industrie,
and that we have the design and manufacturing responsibility for all Airbus
wings. The Airbus has been ordered by Kuwait Airways and Pakistan International
Airlines.

I hope you have a most successful tour and I should be grateful to hear of any
follow-up action we can take.

The Rt Hon Mrs Margaret Thatcher MP
Prime Minister

10 Downing Street

London SWI
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Fromthe Secretary of Stale

M O'D B Alexander Esq
Private Secretary

10 Downing Street
Tondon, SW1 3 sy 1981
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PRIME MINISTER'S VISIT TO ABU DHABI

.//. "'__-_'___-_--.
I wrote on 1&/ﬂby to forward a copy of the memorandum which our
Embassy in ABu Dhabi provided to Shaikh Khalifa about two contracts
in which British companies were interested and on whose behalf the
Prime Minister had spoken when she met Shaikh Khalifa in Abu Dhabi

on 22 April. One of these has now been successfully settled.

During her April visit the Prime Minister intervened on behalf

of Chicago Bridge (or CBI Constructors, a United Kingdom subsidiary
of an American company). The contract was for the design and
construction of gas storage tanks along with related civil and
ancillary works on Das Island. The total contract value exceeds
£140m and, although the amount cannot be properly quantified at
this stage, the United Kingdom content of the contract is thought
likely to be around £80m.

We have remained in close touch throughout with Chicago Bridge and
also with BP. BP's share holding in the Abu Dhabi Gas Liquefaction
Company, for whom the storage facilities will be built, gave them a
key position and the Embassy in Abu Dhabi continued to take the
opportunity to press the company's claim. Our continuing interest
was emphasised by the Secretary of State for Energy during a visit
in June by the Abu Dhabi 0il Minister. These representations seem
to have paid off handsomely. They were important since Chicago
Bridge's bid, though attractive on commercial and technical grounds,
appeared to be upset by political lobbying, from the French. The
company have written to the Department to express their appreciation
for the interest and support we have been able to give them.

I am sending copies of this letter to Julian West (Department of
Energy) and Francis Richards (Foreign and Commonwealth Office).

JOHN RHODES
Private Secretary
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Fromihe Secretary of State
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RESTRICTED e

M O'D B Alexander Esq i
Private Secretary

10 Downing Street | K/
Iondon, SW1 \ May 1981

PRIME MINISTER'S VISIT TO ABU DHABI

As promised in my letter of 8 May, I enclose a copy of the
Memorandum sent by our Embassy in Abu Dhabi to Shaikh Khalifa
about the two contracts in which the British companies,

Fred Olsen and Chicago Bridge, are interested.

I am sending a copy of this letter to Francis Richards (Foreign
and Commonwealth Office).

Mue el

JOHN RHDOES
Private Secretary

RESTRICTED
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Q6/5 25 April 1981

His Excellency Ali bin Ahmad
Office of His Highness

Shaikh Khalifa bin Zaid
Abu Dhabi

Your Excellency

During the Prime Minister's
meeting with HH the Crown
Prince, Shaikh Khalifa asked

for a note on two projects which
the Prime Minister mentioned

as being of special interest

to the United Kingdom.

These are now enclosed.

D A Roberts
HM Ambassador

His Excellency Mana'

Said al Otaiba
Minister of Petroleum

and Mineral Resources

NB: A copy was also submitted
in Arabic.




QS STORAGE TANKS FOR DAS ISLAND

Bids for the construction of

3 ING tanks and 4 LPG tanks on
Das Island for the Abu Dhabi Gas
Liquefaction Company (ADGIC) are
currently being evaluated by the
Abu Dhabi National O0il Company
(ADRCC) and the consultants,
Pullman Kellogg. Among the firms
included in the final short-list
is the United Kingdom subsidiary
of Chicago Bridge and Iron Company
(in association with the British
firm, Costain International).

The building of such tanks is a
high technology activity in which
Chicago Bridge and Iron Company
have considerable expertise and
experience.

UPPER ZAKUM OILFIELD: HOOK-UP OF
WELIHEAD PLATFORMS

The British firm, Fred Olsen Limited,
is included in the short-list
prepared by ZADCO and their
consultants of bidders for Phase I
of this project.

Fred Olsen Limited is well-qualified
in this area of activity having been
awarded six hook-up contracts in the
North Sea oilfields in the last two

years.

The offer submitted by Fred Olsen Limited
appears to meet the tender specification.
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PRIME MINISTER'S VISIT TO ABU DHABI

Thank you for your letter of 28 April about follow-up action

to the Prime Minister's meeting with Shaikh Khalifa on two
projects in which British companies are interested. I understand
that the Prime Minister has recently asked to see a copy of the
memorandum before despatch.

In the event, our Embassy in Abu Dhabi tell us that they have
already sent a memorandum to Shaikh Khalifa. Copies of the
memorandum are on their way to us. Once received, I will

of course send a copy to you for information.

I am sending a copy of this letter to Francis Richards
(Foreign and Commonwealth Office).

Q“/(muwgfffﬂiivaﬂlm1,

JOHN RHODES
Private Secretary

RESTRICTED
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1C DOWNING STREET

Froim the Private Secretary 7 May 1981

The Prime Minister has seen the Secretary of State
for Trade's minute to her of 1 May about the follow-up
to her trip to the Guif,

The Prime Minister has made one general comment on
the question of Ministerial visits overseas. In her view,
such visits, including those in which she herself is
involved, must be arranged with some particular objective
in mind. Visits whose objective is mainly to generate
goodwill achieve, in the Prime Minister's view, little if
anything., It is firm agreements on policy issues and,
above all, contracts that we should be pursuing.

To this end, the Prime Minister believes that more
attention should be paid to the preparation of individual
visits and to the concerting of series of visits. All the
groundwork should be done in advance. Where contracts
are at issue, all those aspects which are affected by
Government decisions, e.g. ECGD terms; Industry Act aid;
contractual conditions for which Government Departments are
responsible, etc,, need to be cleared up in advance. This
will usually mean that serious and co-ordinated preparation
for a Ministerial visit should begin many months before the
visit takes place. (In this context, I assume that thought
is already being given to the commercial aspects of the
Prime Minister's forthcoming visits to Kuwait, Bahrain
and Pakistan: my letter of today's date to Ian Ellison
about a methanol plant project in Bahrain is relevant.)

I understand that Sir Robert Armstrong is at present consi-
dering the establishment of machinery which might facilitate
such co-ordination and, subsequently, follow-up.

On specific points in the Secretary of State's minute:
(a) The Prime Minister is sceptical about the value
of a further Ministerial visit to Kuwait

immediatelv after her own visit there at the

end of September;

/ (b)




The Prime Minister does not wish to pursue the
idea of giving a keynote speech to a CBI seminar
on Gulf markets. She will be addressing the CBI
in mid-June and will aim to include in her speech
on that occasion a passage about trade with the
Gulf - and with India;

Ty

The Prime Minister would in principle be prepared
to entertain the participants in the FT/CBI
seminar on Saudi Arabia. However, diary con-
siderations may make it difficult to arrange this.
We will be getting in touch with you.

I am sending copies of this letter to Francis Richards
(Foreign and Commonwealth Office), David Wright (Cabinet
Office) and Ian Ellison (Department of Industry).

M. O'D. B. ALEXANDER

John Rhodes, Esq.,
Department of Trade.




°

s . ‘\,a [MA, Ei'r P Lwoed: L O | e

e
@ W- . Y L, it [limanlin
Lioten Nqu(nﬂ v '
¢ oA e It O 1 /‘JVH../
Sk ol U o v £ éwgu b Ve %%h(m
(M len

PRIME MINISTER Jib\ Sl ] fzww fM

C ertud V\Mﬂ’ “ Jic, M

- }-G.o.o( “W g A iy ~

I know that you wish to take full aZtan%age of the favourable climate gz
for trade created by your recent successful visit to the Gulf. It U-\:-ﬂ
has clearly created considerable goodwill which I am anxious that Vz v,

we should capitalise upon. tas LBl w b el e

¢4' ole Lo,
I myself have plans to go EE&E? to the area in the coming months; ’”W4~“h5'
to Iraq and either Kuwait or Qatar in October, and to Saudi Arabia @AM
and the UAE in early 1982. Before that, Cecil Parkinson is leading 0“"‘{_,
a high level team of businessmen to Saudi Arabia in June. Corbdr A

aﬁ‘u‘-"' dr°J“~“ s I...-Jaa

The British Overseas Trade Board Committee on Middle Eag€1Trade Uﬁ) .
(COMET) and the Middle East Association, the former under
Iord Selsdon's chairmanship, are extremely active in promoting “‘f\
United Kingdom interests in the Gulf markets. In the period
1979-1981, the BOTB has sponsored o6 missions to the area involving
650 companies. In addition we will have sponsored 760 companies )p;j

at 22 major exhibitions in the area during the same period. ’,)-(‘
o]

0,

In the reverse direction, we had an unprecedented number of senior
Saudis in Iondon at the Joint Commission meeting in February. We
quickly followed this up in a joint seminar with the CBI which had
a record attendance from British companies for such occasions.

We are maintaining the momentum with a high level seminar which I
am to address next month at which several important Saudi Ministers
will be present.

Cecil Parkinson and I propose to meet Iord Selsdon very shortly to
discuss further possible initiatives. Our Saudi Post has made it
clear that COMET has lost no opportunity in organising initiatives
to seize the area'sundoubted market opportunities. The central task
now is to ensure that individual companies make the most of the
thorough groundwork and pursue business with the Gulf customers that
have been identified. The right climate and official assistance is




essential, but there is ultimately no substitute for companies
taking their own initiative to go out and sell.

In order to pursue this point and your own visit, may I suggest two
forthcoming opportunities to follow up on your visit. As I say, I
will be addressing the "Financial Times/CBI Seminar" on Saudi Arabia
to be held on 1/2 June. It would be of immense value, both in
arousing even greater interest amongst British firms and in flattering

Saudi delegates, headed by their Minister of Industry, Dr Gosaibi.
I myself am giving him lunch, but I think that such a special
reception would go down very well indeed. It would not, of course,

the Saudis, if you were able to give some entertainment for the A?voul
oy o

be necessary for you to attend the whole of any such reception.

Secondly, I understand that the CBI intend inviting you to give a
keynote speech at a high-powered seminar they are organising on the
Gulf markets in general, probably at the end of May although I
understand that they would be flexible enough to accommodate your
diary constraints. If you were able to participate in part of this
seminar it would seem a most effective and immediate way to take
advantage of the interest which has been fuelled by your visit.

If this could be arranged, I would like to share the platform with

you. Mo = 1 e obressdy Orestoy o CL 1 U
VA g

I am copying this minute to Peter Carrington.

Wed. b

Department of Trade JB
1 Victoria Street
Iondon, SW1H OET

1 May 1981
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Fromthe Secretary of State

Jonathan Dawson Esq
Private Secretary to the
Secretary of State for Defence
Ministry of Defence
Main Building
Whitehall
Iondon, SWAA 2HB /gxi{”{ay 1981
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PRIME MINISTER'S VISIT TO SAUDI ARABIA

Thank you for agreeing to take the lead on the
letter of 28 April from Michael Alexander.

I have asked Department of Trade officials to
liaise with Chris Saunders in DS 13.

I am copying this T4 Il{ichael Alexander,
and Francis Richar

Ya WS S‘ax uutd:.)

CATHERINE CAPON
Private Secretary




10 DOWNING STREET

From the Private Secretary 1 May 1981

Qatar — North West Dome Gas Field

During the Prime Minister's brief visit to Qatar last
week, there was some discussion of the North West Dome gas
field, which is said to be the largest gas field in the world.
At present, the Qataris are considering how it might be
developed. In speaking to the Amir, the Prime Minister said
that she believed BP could play a major role. The other British
contender, Shell, is not really in the running because they are
under a cloud in Qatar - because of recent problems with two
gas pipelines and a gas separation unit for which they have been
responsible.

We were told by our Ambassador that the Qataris have asked
the Bank to carry out a study of the various options for the
development of this field and related downstream activities. He
said that he understood the Bank would not be making recommend-
ations on the merits and demerits of the various companies who
are interested in getting involved in the development of the field;
but no doubt the recommendations will have some bearing on the
bidding procedures which the Qataris adopt and the prospects of
the individual companies. We were told that BP's main contender
was likely to be CFP of France.

Since presumably there is no Bank financing involved in this
study, I imagine that it is not something which would normally
reach the Bank board. However, it is clearly of interest to us,
and it would be helpful if you could find out about the scope of
the study and give us any indication that you can get of what is
likely to come out of it. Needless to say, an indication.from you,
in whatever form you thought appropriate, that HMG are following
with close interest the development of the gas field, and in
particular the prospects of British companies getting major
contracts, would be useful.

I should mention, finally, that I spoke briefly about all
this to Reiner Steckhan (Head of the Bank's European office in
Paris) whom I met for lunch earlier this week. He took the
point that we have an interest in the outcome of the study, and
said he himself would make some enquiries when he visits Washington
next week.

—— . =2 ™
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I am sending a copy of this letter to Francis Richards
(Foreign and Commonwealth Office) and Julian West (Department
of Energy).

John Anson, Esq., CB.




10 DOWNING STREET

From the Private Secretary 1 May 1981

Qatar - North West Dome Gas Field

. During the Prime Minister's brief visit to Qatar last

week, there was some discussion of the North West Dome gas
field, which is said to be the largest gas field in the world.
At present, the Qataris are considering how it might be
developed. In speaking to the Amir, the Prime Minister said
that she believed BP could play a major role. The other British
contender, Shell, is not really in the running because they are
under a cloud in Qatar - because of recent problems with two

gas pipelines and a gas separation unit for which they have been
responsible.

We were told by our Ambassador that the Qataris have asked
the Bank to carry out a study of the various options for the
development of this field and related downstream activities. He
said that he understood the Bank would not be making recommend-
ations on the merits and demerits of the various companies who
are interested in getting involved in the development of the field;
but no doubt the recommendations will have some bearing on the
bidding procedures which the Qataris adopt and the prospects of
the individual companies. We were told that BP's main contender
was likely to be CFP of France.

Since presumably there is no Bank financing involved in this
study, I imagine that it is not something which would normally
reach the Bank board. However, it is clearly of interest to us,
and it would be helpful if you could find out about the scope of
the study and give us any indication that you can get of what is
likely to come out of it. Needless to say, an indication- from you,
in whatever form you thought appropriate, that HMG are following
with close interest the development of the gas field, and in
particular the prospects of British companies getting major
contracts, would be useful.

I should mention, finally, that I spoke briefly about all
this to Reiner Steckhan (Head of the Bank's European office in
Paris) whom I met for lunch earlier this week. He took the
point that we have an interest in the outcome of the study, and
said he himself would make some enquiries when he visits Washington
next week.
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I am sending a copy of this letter to Francis Richards
(Foreign and Commonwealth Office) and Julian West (Department
of Energy).

John Anson, Esq., CB.




faylor Woodrow Group IO, Park Street, London, WIY 4DD

. Telegrams: Tayrow London WI
Sir Frank Taylor, D.Sc. (Hon) F.1.O.B. Telephone: OI-499 887
Founder and President Telex No:22513

Our Ref: FT/MO. 30th April, 1981.

The Rt. Hon. Mrs. Margaret Thatcher, M.P.,

The Prime Minister,

First Lord of the Treasury and Minister for the Civil Service,
10, Downing Street,

London, S.W.1.
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Please accept my most sincere thank}/ﬁ)r/your wonderful, kind,
gracious and inspiring letter of 28th April.

If only we had half a dozen more people like you in the Government,
we would quickly put "Great' back once more into Great Britain.

. Tk g frg F
M’M J MW“"'(
%“-?_ bnd A‘ﬁw.
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J.H.G, Manna, Esq.




10 DOWNING STREET

From the Private Secretary 29 April 1981

I enclose a copy of a letter which
the Prime Minister has received from the
Chairman of British Smelter Resources
Developments Limited. 1 have acknowledged
Mr. Brauner's letter. I do not think any
further action is required. But you will
be aware of the keen interest which the
Prime Minister is taking in the follow-up
to her visit.

I am sending copies of this letter and
its enclosure to Francis Richards (Foreign
and Commonwealth Office) and John Rhodes
(Department of Trade).

1.R.C. Ellison, Esqg.,
Department of Industry.




10 DOWNING STREET

From the Private Secretary 28 April 1981

P\em \70“&“)

Prime Minister's Visit to Abu Dhabi

You will have noted from the record of
the Prime Minister's meeting with
Shaikh Khalifa in Abu Dhabi that the Prime
Minister undertook to let Shaikh Khalifa
have a memorandum about two contracts in
which British companies were interested.
These involved Fred Olsen and Chicago Bridge.
I should be grateful if you could ensure that
a memorandum is delivered soon - if this has
not already been done.by the post itself.

I am sending a copy of this letter to
Francis Richards (Foreign and Commonwealth

| 7W s%
(it RS

John Rhodes,iﬁ%%&%p-g¥g{;meEE}
Department off &-1i ﬁ : (X
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10 DOWNING STREET

’
From the Private Sgcfé;ary : 28 April 1981

-

Prime Minister's Visit to the Middle East

The Prime Minister has mentioned to me that during an
informal conversation in Abu Dhabi, Dr. al Otaiba, the Minister
of Petroleum, said that the UAE Government had been surprised
that HMG had not made more effort to sell warships to the
Emirates. I should be grateful if you could let me have any
background that there may be available on this.

You will also wish to be aware that the Prime Minister
is particularly interested in ensuring that the question of the

possible construction by British firms of a naval base in the
Yemen Arab Republic is followed up vigorously. The Prime
Minister has the impression that the Saudi Government would be
willing to pay a substantial part of the cost of a base but not
the total amount. Perhaps you could let me know how you see

the next steps on this.

I am sending a copy of this letter to Francis Richards
(Foreign and Commonwealth Office).

Brian Norbury, Esq.,
Ministry of Defence.




I am writing, further to my letter of

7 April, to say that I raised

TO push matters forwar

MICHAEL ALEXANDER

Mrs., Jo Harrison
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PRIME MINISTER iy /,is fy Mk‘:(
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Follow-up to your trip to India & the Middle East:
Sales Aspects

India

(a) Steel Plant: we await news of developments. Unfortunately

the Indian High Commissioner who undertook to lobby vigorously
on behalf of Davy is ill in bed and we do not-rknow what, if anything,

he achieved.

(b) Folkloric garments, etc: I attach a ﬁgiort from the Department
1

of Trade. The recommendation is that Mr. Pi+tman should write to

his Indian opposite number.

Saudi Arabia

(a) Arabsat. Vigorous representations are being made in Jeddah
“‘.———

in the light of ECGD's decision to adapt their terms in the light

of exchange rate changes.

(b) SANGMED and SANGCOM. We now have a telegram from Jeddah

setting out the details of other countries' practice on immunities.

—— ey

I have asked for a report on our response to this information by

the end of the week.
(¢) Tornado. No further action for the moment.

(d) Off-shore oil installations. We await further news of the

Saudi team which Prince Naif said would probably be coming to this

country.

Abu Dhabi

Detailed discussions on the Hawk are due to start next week.

Dubai

I have asked for a report on progress with the desalination

plant contract by the end of this week.
/ Oman




The Foreign Office will be letting us have a comprehensive
letter complete with recommendations by the end of this week.
This will cover, inter alia, charges for Loan Service Personnel;

the reduction in aid; +#&e credit; the university.
——— — -—________.—

Qatar

.

Rapier. I have asked for a report by the end of the week on
follow up to statements made to you by the Emir and his son the

R e

Crown Prince.

The North West Dome. The Ambassador will, of course, be

reporting your interest in the problems being encountered by Shell.

I shall also be making the point £ /& 5«{«’1 02- é«us:{

(%)ch‘ (liho~

(LA

27 April 1981




10 DOWNING STREET

From the Private Secretary 27 April 1981

Prime Minister's Visit to the Gulf

I enclose a complete set of records of
the Prime Minister's discussions during her
visit to Saudi Arabia and the Gulf States
last week.

I am sending a copy of this letter and
all its enclosures to Brian Norbury (Ministry
of Defence) and David Wright (Cabinet Office).
I am also sending a copy of the letter and
of those records of interest to them to
John Halliday (Home Office), John Rhodes
(Department of Trade) and Julian West
(Department of Energy).

M. O'D. B. ALEXANDER

Francis Richards, Esq.,
Foreign and Commonwealth Office.

' - 4 5 I'. -.
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THE PRIME MINISTER ’ 27 April 1981

/,
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Thank you very much for your message delivered to me
in Delhi, I have just returned from my tour which included
Saudi Arabia, the UAE, Oman and Qatar as well as India.

You might be interested to have my main impressions to set
beside Al Haig's, which I was very glad to have in London

before I set out.

My main purpose in visiting India was to try to consolidate
relations with Mrs. Gandhi personally. I believe that I
succeeded in fair measure. But there is a good way to go if
relations between India and the West are to be put on a really
sound footing. Mrs. Gandhi is, as you must know, suspicious
of our policies and, in particular, of the policies of
successive US Governments. She claims to have had virtually
no personal relations with your recent predecessors. You might
be surprised, however, by the extent of her suspicion of Russian
activities in India. She maintains these have often been
directed against her, notably in the election of 1977. She
is definitely not a Marxist. Indeed she is greatly concerned
about the activities of the Communists in India and is casting
around for ways to defeat them. Her agricultural policy, and
her support for the mixed economy generally, carries the same

message.

India's agriculture, incidentally, seems to me to be one

of the success stories of recent years. The country has achieved

[/ virtual self-sufficien




virtual self-sufficiency in grain. This is the result of the
introduction of the new varieties of wheat in the development of

which your experts have played such a part.

On the other hand, perhaps as a counter to the threat she
perceives from China, or possibly because she feels that the
Soviet Union, as the super power nearest to India, has to be
appeased, Mrs. Gandhi remains strongly opposed to any action to
support the Afghanistan resistance, She argues that the best
hope of achieving Soviet withdrawal from Afghanistan, which she
genuinely wants, is through negotiations. I made it clear that

I thought she was too sanguine.

Entangled with this is Mrs. Gandhi's extrabrdinarily deep-
rooted fear of Pakistan. I defended in public and in private
Pakistan's right to weapons for self-defence, and passed on a
message from Zia about his wish for friendship with India.

Mrs. Gandhi said that she too wished for friendship: Rao, the
Foreign Minister, would be visiting Islamabad next month. But

it was gquite clear, and she said it in public, that arms supplies
to Pakistan are regarded in India as objectionable. If Pakistan
does indeed carry out a nuclear test, the consequences will be
very serious. President Zia has, of course, assured Peter

" Carrington that he will not test.

My visits to Saudi Arabia and the Gulf were the first there
by a British Prime Minister in office, and also a first for me
personally. The four States I went to differed much in character
and style. But all made me very welcohe, and their hospitality
and kindness were encouraging. Oman, as you know, is more
receptive to our ideas that the rest. The Sultan sees the
Soviet threat as his top priority, with the Arab/Israel problem
of secondary importance. On the latter he takes a very different,

much more reasonable, line on the way forward.

/ For the Saudis
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For the Saudis and the others, Palestine and the recognition
of Palestinian rights come first, or at least that is what they
éaid. I believe that in fact they do want a settlement because
the continuation of the problem inhibits their cobperation with
the West. They are deeply worried about their own Palestinian
populations. But they are not vet readf to use their influence
with the PLO to persuade them to adopt the more moderate stance
which might in turn make possible the kind of talks envisaged
in the second stage of the peace process. We shall have to keep
working on this, in consultation with your people, the Israelis,
and the Egyptians. The position of Syria will be critical. Ve
must somehow try to reduce their sense of isolation. The Soviet

Union will, no doubt, be working against us.

Nobody I talked to saw any hope of an early settlement of
the Iragq/Iran war. There was much concern about the situation
in Iran itself. Similarly, all were pessimistic about Afghanistan.
‘They see little prospect of the UN emissary achieving anything.
They are concerned lest his efforts should weaken the resolve.

- of Pakistan whose difficulties, however, they recognise.

The position in North Yemen is confused. Consolidated,
it could prove the best barrier to the extension of Soviet
influence northwards from the PDRY. But the Saudis, whose
influence there is strong, are curiously complacent and indecisive.
A number of the other leaders were anxious about the situation.

I believe we should give more thought to this problem together.

I was rather impressed by the Sultan of Oman. He has
achieved a lot in 10 years and plans more. I told him that we
would continue to help him with manpower, at his request. He
and his country are important to us. But we must not overburden

him,.
In the Emirates and Qatar the problems, if any, are those
of very rapid development, including populations whose size is

growing fast and whose composition is changing. But they seem

/ on the whole




on the whole to have coped remarkably well with the more
intangible and intractable social problems. The new Cooperation
organisation between them, Saudi Arabia, Kuwait, Bahrain and
Oman will take time to evolvé, but should give greater strength
and cohesion, 1 encouraged theﬁ to press ahead and offered

our support.,

Our bilateral relations with all these states are in good
order, I was glad to be told in Abu Dhabi that they would be
ordering some of our trainer/strike aircraft. Our ability to
make a contribution to the defence of the area in an emergency,
even on the modest scale we have in mind, depends c¢rucially on
our being 2ble to sell our defence equipment. This order was a
great encouragement: we shall be following it up energetically

throughout the area.

(ﬁ) CAr~ (]/,\,J Fralk ! n/\]ﬂ’ ta s Ot
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The President of the United States of America
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r" . ...I

\.I.. ] g

Many congratulation's on your brilliant and successful tour
of the Middle East,

The British Industry and especially The Airospace,should be
grateful for your efforts in persuading The Abu Dhabi S&ate Government
in awarding the order for the Hawk Militry jets. I can assure you that
this order was destined for France,regardless of all the negotiations
which had been going on in the past months prior to your arfival,

Wishing you the best of health and success in running the
affairs of this Country,

Very sincerely your's

(J.H.G/Manna)




27 April 1981

I enclose a brief note on the Minister
of Ssate's talk with the Minister of State

for Foreign Affairs in Qatar on 25 April.

MICHAEL ALEXANDER

C. T. W. Humfrey, Esq.,

Foreign and Commonwealth Office.
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SUMMARY NOTE OF A CONVERSATION BETWEEN THE MINISTER OF STATE,
FOREIGN AND COMMONWEALTH OFFICE, THE HON. DOUGLAS HURD, CBE, MP,
AND SHAIKH AHMED, MINISTER OF STATE FOR FOREIGN AFFAIRS, QATAR,
IN QATAR ON 25 APRIL AT 1115

UNRWA

The Minister of State described the financial difficulties

being experienced by UNRWA. He said that in the absence

of additional funds UNRWA would have to close its schools.
Sir John Graham said that closures would begin in May.
Shaikh Ahmed said that the problem had been discussed at the

Arab Summit in Tunisia. Kuwait and the UAE were in favour

of an increase. It might be that something could be done

within the next two months.

Arab/Israel dispute
The Minister of State said that the United States was

putting pressure on Israel. There would have to be a balancing
movement from the Palestinian side. Was there any chance that
they would be prepared to make a conditional statement about
Israel's right to a secure existence? Such a statement would
be a great step forward. It would involve no concession of

substance. Shaikh Ahmed said that the Palestinian argument

was that if they were to speak on these lines and get nothing
in return they would have lost a great deal. They would regard
it as an acknowledgment of defeat. The same went for

acceptance of the idea of a government in exile. Sir John Graham

said that if the Arabs were to make a conditional move, it would

create powerful pressure on Israel. The Minister of State

said that the Palestinians were being asked to do no more than
repeat in public what they had often said in private. Asked
by the Minister of State whether the Arabs would support a
conditional statement even if they would not press the

Palestinians to make one, Shaikh Ahmed said that his government

would give their backing to whatever the Palestinians wanted.
The PLO were at present drifting to the left: the Qatar Government

wanted them to remain moderate. Sir John Graham said this was

another reason for speed.

The Minister of State repeated that American pressure on

Israel would have to be severe to extract movement . The'Arabs

would have to put pressure on the Palestinians.

——

pnzr'!nm:'”ﬁl /)'m/{-
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-MINISTER
I attach a short draft on the record statement
which I would like to hand to the press at around noon
today, subject to your approval.
I have sought to get over three main points:
the warmth of the welcome;
our renewed interest in an important region;
- our commercial interest in its development.
I would like to end with the phrase "a very happy
and constructive tour" for headline purposes. The

Sundays like to write about happiness!

S

25 April 1981




DRAFT STATEMENT BY THE PRIME MINISTER, THE RT. HON. MRS MARGARET THATCHER, MP,
AT THE CONCLUSION OF HER VISIT TO THE GQULF, TODAY (25 APRIL 1981)

I leave the Gulf for home today after a most instructive and

stimulating visit - the first by a British Prime Minister to the area.

Wherever I have gone I have been welcomed with great warmth and
kindness. I have also found a deep appreciation and satisfaction among
the countries I have visited that Britain, an old friend of the area,

is taking a closer interest in its affairs.

I believe my visit has achieved two main objectives:

- first, to demonstrate our continuing interest and concern
in a part of the world which is of enormous strategic and
political significance; and

- second, to get over to my hosts the contribution which British

industry, commerce and technology can make to the development

of the huge natural resources and potential of the Gulf States.

We can do much in partnership to benefit our own people and the

world. ;

It has been a very happy and constructive tour indeed. And I look |

forward to returning to the Gulf in the autumn.
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' You will have had an &nvudu¢ through our Ambassador

my discussions in Riyadh with Crown Prince Fahd an
other Saudi
them over the Tornado aircraft. I thought however

d
Tinister;, covering in particular the 1i

like to have an account of my impressions.

Yy reception could not have been more cordial.
were at pains to make me welcome. The atmosphere of our

was easy and relaxed. .

Predictably the Saucis urged upon me the need
Community to recognise the PLO and the 1egitimate
Palestinians. The Palestine issue was for them ¢t
with the Soviet threat, which they acknowledge, and

differences, some way behind.

My reply was that we.do recognise the right of the
to self-determination. This was not in doubt. But ther
be a counter-part. At present the ralestinians were com
in their Covenant to the destruction of Israel. We believe
that the Palestinians must recognise Israel's right
behind secure borders.

1 urged the Saudis to use their influence with th
to bring about such recognition. The Saudis argued thatv
they of course accepted the fact of Israel's existence
region, they could only expect the Palestinians to m
direction of recognition when the lsraelis recognise
of the Palestinians to return to their homeland
thet Jerusalem should be restored to its pre-1967

Despite their firm line, I sensed some flexib
Saudi thinking. In a separate discussion, the Saudi

Minister told Douglas Hurd that it was up to the Palesti

7
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to decide what to do. He hinted that the Palestinians might
possibly be prepared to move if the Community could make
gesture towards them.

I do not want to build too muchon this. But I be
collectively and individually we should use all our ini

with the Arabo o tr bring bout some moye by the

hnht u&k) Q%A—A &M¢wi i
Pales iniec ni3£_ : e wouia no doubt have to be couched
in conditional terms, eg if Israel were to agree to withdraw

from territory occupied in 1967, then the PLO would be pre

to negotiate a settlement on the basis 07 self-
’-.‘M
for the Palestinians and secure borders forL§ 2 Ty

I hope you will feel able to urge the case for a move on
these lihes., I am increasingly convinced that only if the
Palestinians are prepared to make some such gesture will it be
possible to give the Americans and ourselves what we need to
bring about a parallel move by Israel.

I hope you enjoy your visit. I look forward to hearing
your impressions.

MARGARET THATCHER

25 Mt @qi




CONFIDENTIAL

RECORD OF A MEETING BETWEEN THE PRIME MINISTER, THE RIGHT
HONOURABLE MARGARET THATCHER PC MP, AND HIS HIGHNESS THE AMIR
OF QATAR, SHAIKH KHALIFA BIN HAMAD AL THANI, AT 10AM ON
SATURDAY, 25 APRIL, AT THE AMIRI DIWAN, DOHA.

Present:

The Rt Hon Margaret Thatcher Shaikh Khalifa bin Hamad
PC MP, The Prime Minister Al Thani, Amir of the
State of Qatar
The Hon Douglas Hurd CBE MP,
Minister of State, Foreign Shaikh Hamad bin Khalifa
and Commonwealth Office Al Thani, Heir Apparent,
Minister of Defence and
Mr C T Brant CVO, HM Commander-in-Chief
Ambassador, Doha.
Shaikh Abdul Aziz bin
Sir Ronald Ellis, Head of Khalifa Al Thani, Minister
Defence Sales, Ministry of Finance and Petroleum
of Defence Affairs

Sir John Graham KCMG, Deputy Shaikh Ahmed bin Saif Al
Under-Secretary of State, Thani, Minister of State
Foreign and Commonwealth for Foreign Affairs
Office

Sayyid Issa Ghanim Al

Mr Michael Alexander, Private Kawari, Chef de Cabinet
Secretary to the Prime to HH the Amir and Minister
Minister of Information

(interpreter)

Sayyid Sharidah Jubran Al

Kaabi, Qatar Ambassador

in London

After the initial exchange of courtesies and greetings with

the Amir, the Prime Minister recalled that they had last discussed
world questions and bilateral relations between Qatar and Britain
during his call at 10 Downing Street in September 1979. She would
be interested now to hear his point of view on the various matters

which concerned both our countries. The Prime Minister referred

briefly to the consultations between the Governments of the

Arabian Peninsula which she thought a very encouraging step

/forward,
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forward, and the co-operation in the Gulf for defence. But she
saw no prospect of progress on the Arab-Israel question, until
after the Israeli elections were bver. The Prime Minister invited
the Amir to speak first on the situation caused by the Irag-Iran

war, which had caused considerable anxiety to her Government.

I - International Questions

2y The Amir reviewed the various attempts at mediation to date,
including the mission from the Islamic Conference and the Non-

Aligned Movement. But he saw little possibility of progress while
so many political power factions were warring for supremacy within

the country. If the clergy faction emerged victorious, the prospect
could be ruled out. If, however, President Bani Sadr won, a solution
could emerge. The clergy, if they won, would seek to dominate the
Gulf as a whole. Qatar would oppose this by every possible means.
The Amir said that he had had no problem of any kind with his own
Shi'a minority. There had been no disturbances in Qatar as there
had elsewhere in the Gulf, even in Saudi Arabia. With the Shi'a
who had been here for hundreds of years, the Government enjoyed
excellent relations. They had, however, gradually expelled the
Shi'a who had come to Qatar over the last 30 years. (Shaikh Hamad
interjected that they now constituted only about 1% of the

population.)

Ly The Prime Minister said that she had discussed the situation

with Prince Fahd during her visit to Saudi Arabia. The common fear
was that in the conflict between the clergy and President Bani Sadr,
the Tudeh Party would come to dominate the scene. They were well

/organised,
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organised, and were waiting to move in to take power. Given that
there was a common boundary between Iran and Afghanistan, this
might give the Soviet Union an opportunity to intervene. The
Prime Minister recognised that the force of Islam, with its
religious principles, would withstand Communism. But she was
frankly puzzled by the remarkable similarity of the language used

by the Communists and the Moslem clergy in Iran.

4, The Amir observed that even if the war were ended, severe

problems would remain, with the various conflicting factions in the

country. With the removal of the umbrella of the Shah's control,

the problems had multiplied and expanded into a wider sphere.
Extreme vigilance was required, as well as the co-operation of the
international community, in order to avoid another Lebanon happening.
He echoed the Prime Minister's fears that the Tudeh Party might
give the Soviet Union opportunities to move into Iran. The Prime
Minister said that Britain could have tried to influence Iran.
But while the war was still going on, there was nothing much that
we could do, until an agreement had been reached over the Shatt

Al Arab.

5. The Amir observed ruefully that this was the result of one of

President Carter's mistakes. The Prime Minister said that this was

past history now. She believed that the Amir would find that
President Reagan offered clearer leadership, and a greater under-

standing of the Arab position.

6. Turning to the Palestine problem, the Amir said that the
Arab World had suffered for 30 years with this problem. A solution

/must

CONFIDENTIAL




CONFIDENTIAL

@ ’L} .3; ,

must now be found. There must be effective co-operation between
the Arab States and Europe, and at a higher level, for the future.
The Camp David Agreement had not touched the core of the problem.
With Britain about to assume the Presidency of the European
Community, we had a duty to play a positive role to find a viable

solution to the question.

1o At the Prime Minister's request, Mr Hurd reviewed the position
following the mission of The Netherlands Foreign Minister to the
area. To help formulate a new initiative, a further mission would
come over in the Summer. By then, the Israeli elections would have
been over, and the United States would have had time to formulate

its policy. The Prime Minister added that Europe would find a

solution without conflicting with the US. We had to help the US
to move forward. Britain, however, could not dictate to the
Common Market! Lord Carrington could not impose our views. But
the Presidency did give us a chance to be active. The Thorn Mission
had made little progress. Then Mr van der Klaauw had come gather-
ing information. We must have the right details, the concept must
be right, to achieve forward movement. For example, how to define
Palestinian rights? And how many Palestinians were there on the
West Bank and in the Gaza Strip, and outside? The Amir and his
team agreed on a figure of one million for the West Bank, and
200,000 in the Gaza Strip. But they thought that there were only
some 3 million Palestinians in the rest of the Middle East. The

Prime Minister said it was a question of how they were to make

their feelings known, in the process of self-determination.
However, Britain would follow up with vigour. It would not be an
/easy
CONFIDENTIAL
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easy task. She said that in Saudi Arabia she had been asked

about self-determination. But who counted in this process? Was

there a place for Palestinians to return to? These points would
have to be clarified in co-ordination with the parties concerned.
We had to get away from generalities. The issue was complicated,
but a solution must be found, with the help of the United States,
since the US was the only country able to exert pressure on Israel.
The Amir promised his assistance in our co-operation with America
to find a solution. This was not only a problem of Arab, but of
Islamic dimensions also, because of the question of Jerusalem.

Mr Begin's declaration that Jerusalem was the "Eternal Capital"

of Israel was adding insult to injury. Jerusalem was as holy a

place to the Moslem faith. The Prime Minister said that the future

of Jerusalem had not been given definition by the international
community. She herself foresaw no possibility of progress while
Mr Begin was still in office. Indeed Mr Begin was part of the
problem. Some Israelis differed with him: we had to wait until
the Israeli elections to see what the prospects were. The Amir

agreed.

8. The Prime Minister said that the right time to make a move

would be after those elections. We would have two years in which
to make progress, and not a day of that must be wasted. By the
Summer, the US Administration would have defined its policy, and
all the important elections would have been held - in Israel,

in France and in Germany. We had to exert strenuous efforts to
make the most of that opportunity. While it remained unsolved,

the problem gave rise to severe tension in the Arab World and the

/world
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world in general.

9. The Prime Minister said she would like to explain her point

of view on the Rapid Deployment Force. (Issa Kawari at first

translated this as "Intervention Force": it was then agreed that
it would be better described as an "emergency force" or a "force

for rapid assistance".) The Prime Minister said that as she saw

the requirement, if trouble broke out anywhere in the world, and
we were asked to help militarily, we must be ready with troops
trained to move with the necessary speed. They must be earmarked
for contingencies. Britain had small-scale forces and could be
invited to assist without the superpowers becoming involved. The
idea of such a force had originated with the United States. She
thought it was a good idea, and that we should help if we were
requested to do so. But we had to have that request before they

moved. The Amir took note of the Prime Minister's explanation.

II - Bilateral Relations

10. Turning to bilateral relations, the Prime Minister said how

greatly we valued our relations with Qatar.

11« In this context, she had noted the recommendations about air
defence for Qatar put forward by General Perkins after his Review
of the Qatar Armed Forces. She commended the Rapier system highly:
we had sold it to America and Switzerland among others. There were,
however, so she understood, two possible problems with the negotia-
tions, relating to price and delivery respectively. Qatar had
perhaps suffered from late delivery of British equipment in the

/past.
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past. However, the delivery situation had improved greatly now
that British industry had become more competitive: indeed some
deliveries were currently being made ahead of time. Agreements
for the sale of these systems were now virtually Govermment-to-
Government matters. She took a keen personal interest in them,
and her office would be following progress closely. She asked

the Amir to let her know if there were any obstacles.

i froas The Prime Minister also commended British Petroleum to the

Amir, as potential partners in the development of the immense
North-West Dome gas-~field. The Company had had worldwide experience
of oil and gas operations, from Alaska to the North Sea and the

Gulf (with a successful LNG plant on Das Island for Abu Dhabi).

They studied local circumstances very carefully in every case, and
designed a system to fit them. With their substantial shareholding
in the Company (just over 40% of the shareholding) HM Government
could follow progress in the Company's affairs closely. The Amir
could rely on BP.

15. The Amir asked what would happen to the price of gas. Would
it rise? The Prime Minister said that given the world shortage of
energy, it would surely increase to match oil prices: as a straight
alternative fuel, it was bound to reach parity with oil - unless it
were used for petrochemical feedstock, in which case a different

price could be obtained for it.

14. The Prime Minister then raised the question of the consultancy

for the Ras Laffan Power Station. She strongly commended British

expertise in this field. She asked the Amir if he would review

/favourably
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favourably the British bids for this work, on the basis of the

companies' competence and track record.

15, The Amir said he understood that there were three British
companies under consideration. He amended this to two, since it
appeared that he had taken Kennedy and Donkin to be two separate

firms, rather than the single amalgamation which they represented.

16. The Prime Minister then asked if she might have a few minutes'

conversation alone with the Amir, with only interpreters present.
The Ministers of State and the officials then withdrew, leaving the
Prime Minister, the Amir, Sayyid Issa Kawari and Mr Brant to continue

the discussion, with Shaikh Hamad and Shaikh Abdul Aziz attending.
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RECORD OF CONVERSATION BETWEEN THE PRIME MINISTER AND HIS HIGHNESS
THE AMIR OF QATAR, AMIRI PALACE, DOHA, 11.30AM, SATURDAY,
25 APRIL 1981

Present:

The Rt Hon Margaret Thatcher Shaikh Khalifa bin Hamad
PC MP, The Prime Minister Al Thani, Amir of the
State of Qatar
Mr C T Brant CVO, HM
Ambassador, Doha Shaikh Hamad bin Khalifa
Al Thani, Heir Apparent,
Minister of Defence and
Commander-in-Chief

Shaikh Abdul Aziz bin
Khalifa Al Thani, Minister
of Finance and Petroleum
Affairs

Sayyid Issa Ghanim Al
Kawari, Chef de Cabinet
to HH the Amir and Minister
of Information
(translating)
After the formal talks with the Amir had concluded (see
separate record) the Prime Minister asked to have some minutes'

conversation alone with the Amir.

2. The Prime Minister said that she would like to hear very

frankly from His Highness whether there were any problems affecting
our relations on which he would like to speak to her without her
delegation being present. In reply, the Amir assured the Prime
Minister that he had no such problems: had there been any, he

would have mentioned them to her. He admitted that previous
British Governments had seemed disinterested in Qatar's indus-
trialisation projects. But perhaps they had had their own problems.

But that was now a thing of the past.

/3. The Prime
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e The Prime Minister emphasised that she would like to see

our traditional friendship take practical forms, e.g. for the

Qatar Armed Forces to purchase the Rapier anti-aircraft defence
system. The Amir smiled and said that this was basically Shaikh
Hamad's decision. However, both he and Shaikh Hamad assured the

Prime Minister that the sale would take place. The Prime Minister

asked whether she could publicise this undertaking. The Amir and
Shaikh Hamad asked that for the present, it should be kept

confidential.

4, The Prime Minister then explained that her Government was

trying to keep close to the United States. We could not achieve
solutions to our problems without US participation. As a matter

of principle, all friends should try to stick together to co-operate:
individually we could be picked off by hostile forces. The Amir
said that he fully understood HM Government's position, and

endorsed it.

5e The Prime Minister enquired when the Amir could come to London,

and promised him a warm welcome if he were able to visit us

(provided that HM Government were not preoccupied by a major

conference at the time). The Amir promised that he would keep in

touch with the Ambassador about this.

6. The Amir said he would like to raise the issue of Jordan.
He and King Hussain had developed very friendly relations. He
urged - purely as a personal initiative - that Britain should

strengthen her friendship with King Hussain. The Prime Minister

/assured
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assured him that we did everything we could to assist the King.

He visited Britain three or four times a year, and she always saw

him then. But she promised to try to support him still further.
The Amir commented that King Hussain had foresight and vision, and
he was very concerned to give him every assistance possible. The

Prime Minister said that before the Reagan Administration in the US,

the US had virtually cold-shouldered King Hussain. She had never
been able to understand President Carter's attitude in this, and
why he did not get on with the King. The Amir commented ruefully
that all the destruction in the area was attributable to President
Carter's mistakes. The Prime Minister said that Carter had finally

seen King Hussain: but by then it had been too late. She had said
the same thing to President Reagan in February. But she found that

he held King Hussain in the same high regard as she herself did.

Te The Prime Minister, promised once again to do all she could to

help the King. ©She said that she had found, in her discussions with
President Reagan, that there was no-one who could put the Arab case
to public opinion in the United States. King Hussain, however,
could do this. The Ambassador said that President Sadat had had a

great impact on public opinion in the US when he offered peace to
Israel. The Amir agreed, but said that President Sadat had only
been representing the Egyptian viewpoint. That was why he had

asked King Hussain to speak to the Americans.

8. This part of the meeting ended at 11.45am, and the Prime
Minister and Shaikh Hamad adjourned for a further discussion in

the latter's office.
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SUMMARY RECORD OF A DISCUSSION BETWEEN THE PRIME MINISTER AND
THE CROWN PRINCE OF QATAR, HH SHAIKH HAMAD BIN KHALIFA AL THANI,
IN QATAR ON 25 APRIL AT 1140 HOURS

Shaikh Hamad expressed concern about the presence of

Western naval forces in the Gulf area. He thought that this
merely encouraged the Soviet Union to acquire an intervention
capability in response. His advice was that the West should not

give them this excuse. The Prime Minister pointed out that

Western naval forces had been sent to the area because of
concern about the possibility of Soviet interference with
shipping lanes. The Indian Ocean had been full of Soviet
ships for some years. Shaikh Hamad repeated that he thought

the West were in danger of encouraging the Soviet Union to come
into the Gulf and to seek a'friendly base''there. The fact

was that the Gulf States were 'in the same trench' as the West.
They would not go Communist. But they did not want their
friends to do anything to lead the Soviets on. Shaikh Hamad
however agreed with the Prime Minister about the need to

keep shipping lanes open. If the Straits of Hormuz were ever

closed, he said, Qatar would be finished.

The Prime Minister said she was glad to hear that

Shaikh Hamad thought there was no risk of the Communists
taking over Qatar. Shaikh Hamad said it was inconceivable.

Even if Marx and Engels came themselves, they would make

little progress. Nonetheless, the Soviets would search for

an ally such as they had had in Iraq - though that relationship
seemed to be on the point of collapse.

On the Iran/Iraq war, Shaikh Hamad said he was worried
about the possibility of a Communist takeover there if the
war continued. At the same time he was gloomy about the
possibilities for mediation. He thought that one side or other
would have to win. Iran at present were on the losing side:
whether this would continue indefinitely, it was too soon to
tell. There was a possibility that the United States would

help Iran who desperately needed spares and ammunition.

/Sir Ronald Ellis
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Sir Ronald Ellis confirmed that this was a major problem for

Iran. Shaikh Hamad said that he was not too anxious at present
about the situation but it was always in the minds of the

Qataris.

In response to a question from the Prime Minister,

Shaikh Hamad said that Qatar had not come under too much
pressure from Iragq at the time when Iragq had appeared to be
thinking in terms of spreading the war down the Gulf.

They had helped only with money. However, he could see
that it would be to the military advantage of Iraq if the
war were to spread. At present they were fighting on only

one front.

The discussion ended at 1155.

/LA
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POINTS FROM THE PRIME MINISTER'S TETE-A-TETE CONVERSATION WITH
. SHAIKH KHALIFA OF QATAR IN QATAR ON 25 APRIL 1981

Shaikh Khalifa told the Prime Minister that he thought it of

great importance to the region as a whole that Britain should back

King Hussein as strongly as possible.

Shaikh Khalifa thought that the Russians and the Syrians were
actively encouraging the PLO to make difficulties in the Lebanon.
In his view partition was likely to be the only answer to Lebanon's
difficulties.

Shaikh Khalifa, like a number of the Prime Minister's other
interolcutors, was obsessed with the problem of the Palestinian
population in his country. Although they were not prepared to say
so publicly, almost all of the leaders with whom she spoke were

anxious to get rid of the Palestinians.

Shaikh Khalifa told the Prime Minister that there would be
no difficulty about the Rapier contract. It would certainly be
given to Britain. He added that the visit would also show results
in the negotiations for the other contracts mentioned by the Prime

Minister. Shaikh Hamad confirmed separately to the Prime Minister

that we would get the Rapier contract.

27 April 1981




RECORD OF A DISCUSSION BETWEEN THE PRIME MINISTER AND THE AMIR
OF QATAR, HH SHAIKH KHALIFA BIN HAMAD AT THANI, IN QATAR ON
25 APRIL 1981 AT 1000 HOURS

Present:

Prime Minister Shaikh Khalifa
The Hon. Douglas Hurd Shaikh Hamad, Heir apparent

HE Mr. C.T. Brant Shaikh Abdul Aziz, Minister of
Finance and Petroleum

Shaikh Ahmed bin Saif, Minister of
State

HE Sherida al Kaabi, Ambassador
in London

Sir John Graham
Sir Ronald Ellis
Mr. M.O'D.B. Alexander

* Xk %k k k %k %k %k k

After an exchange of courtesies, the Prime Minister

suggested that the discussion should start with the general
international situation before dealing with bilateral subjects.
Shaikh Khalifa agreed. The Prime Minister said that she did
not think any further progress would be made on the Palestinian
issue until the United States Administration had formulated

its ideas on the next steps to be taken. As Mr. Haig's

tour had demonstrated they were now consulting widely in order

to ensure that in due course they received as much co-operation

as possible. The Americans would not decide on their new policy
until after the Israeli elections. The Prime Minister said she
was delighted that the Gulf States were beginning to work
together for their own defence. She hoped that Gulf co-operation
would develop further. She was deeply worried about the war
between Iran and Irag but did not see how the problem could

be solved at present.

Iran{Irag

Shaikh Khalifa said that the Iran/Iraq war was particularly

worrying for the Gulf States. Mediation attempts by the
Islamic Conference and by the Non Aligned Movement were in progress
but there seemed little prospect of concrete results.. One source

Jof




. of difficulty was the fragmentation of authority in Iran.

Nothing seemed likely to happen until one faction had won.

If President Bani Sadr emerged on top the situation might
improve, A victory by the clergy would be no help at all.

The clergy wanted to dominate the whole area. The Government

of Qatar would resist any extension of their influence vehemently

and with all the strength at their disposal.

The Shi'ite population in Qatar was a small minority
and there were no clergy. As a result the Qatar Government
had experienced no problems. The Shi'a disturbances elsewhere
in the region had had no reflection in Qatar. Relations between
the Shi'a who had resided in Qatar for many years (they amounted
to about 1% of the population of genuine Qataris) and the rest
of the people were excellent. As for the Shi'a who had arrived
recently, i.e. in the last 30 years, the Government had been
'phasing them out'"gradually. This was a precautionary action.

The Prime Minister said that in a confused situation, with

conflict between factions, such as existed in Iran, it was
often a well organised party like the Tudeh which emerged on
top. She wondered whether there was anything in Islam
which was likely to prevent this taking place. Her own
impression was that the language of the Shi'a Muslims was
very similar to that of the radical left. Shaikh Khalifa
said that even if the Iran/Iraq war was brought to an end,

Iran would face a plethora of problems. There were for instance
the Kurds, the Sunni, the Shi'a and the Baluchi. When the Shah
had ruled, all had come under his umbrella. But since the
revolution the problems had got larger and larger. They were
still increasing. Khomeini was not capable of leading the
country along the right path. The situation in Iran required
the vigilance of the international community as a whole. It
could easily become another Lebanon. If this happened, the
chances of Soviet intervention would be much increased. This
was a more likely course of events than a victory for the

Tudeh Party.

/The Prime Minister




The Prime Minister said that if it were not for the

war with Iraq, the West would try to get closer to Iran.

As it was there was little that coult be done. It seemed
unlikely that any permanent solution could be reached until
the Shatt Al Arab issue had been cleared up. Shaikh Khalifa

said that we were all paying the price for President Carter's

mistakes. The Prime Minister said that things had changed.

She expected there would be clearer and more perceptive

leadership from President Reagan.

Arab/Israel dispute

Shaikh Khalifa said that the region had been suffering

from the Palestinian problem for 30 years. The time had now
come to find fundamental solutions. Given co-operation between
the Arabs and the European Community at a high level, solutions
were achievable. Camp David had not gone to the heart of the
problem. The United Kingdom would soon have the Presidency

of the European Community. It was Britain's duty to play a

positive role in pursuing a settlement of the problem.

At Shaikh Khalifa's invitation, the Minister of State
said that the Presidency of the Community was continuing the

process begun in Venice of analysing the problems and seeking
to identify answers which would be helpful in the months ahead.
Mr. Van der Klaauw's mission would be completed in the early
summer. After the Israeli elections and after the United States
Administration had clarified their views, Europeans would be
considering how they could play a useful role. They would not
be contradicting the Americans but trying to say how they could
help to take the peace process the necessary next step forward.
It was important to remember that the fact that Britain was
holding the Presidency did not give them absolute control of
European policy. We would be active from the chair but we

could not force our partners to do things. The Prime Minister

said that the fact was that the European initiative had not
yet got very far. We had not been into the problems in real
detail. There were, for example, differing views as to who
should be involved in self-determination. Should it be only
those Palestinians who lived on the West Bank or should it be

/all




. all Palestinians? In the former case over 1 million people

would be consulted, in the latter case perhaps as many as

4 million. The Europeans needed to pursue their work with
an assiduousness which had so far been lacking. There was
a general feeling, growing stronger all the time, that now

was the time to act.

Shaikh Khalifa questioned whether there were as many as

4 million Palestinians. Sir John Graham agreed that the figure

probably included a number of Palestinians who had taken out
other nationalities. Nonetheless, the figures mentioned by
the Prime Minister were those used by Syria and Jordan. We

agreed with them. The Prime Minister recalled that in Saudi

Arabia she had been told that all Palestinians should have
the right to return to their homeland. But it seemed to her
that many would say that they had no wish to return. In any
case, it was doubtful whether 4 million people could be
accommodated on the West Bank. This was only one example

of the kind of point which had to be worked out and which
had not yet been tackled. The Europeans hoped to do so in
conjunction with the countries in the area. This was what
the European initiative was all about. They would have to
have the active support of the United States. Like it or not
only the United States could bring sufficient pressure to
bear on Israel. Shaikh Khalifa said that he fully endorsed

and indeed welcomed the liaison with the United States in the
search for a solution. Shaikh Khalifa said that the Palestinian
problem was not only an Arabic one, it was an Islamic one.

For Mr. Begin to say that Jerusalem was the eternal capital

of Israel was the cause of injury to the whole Islamic world.
The Prime Minister said that the future status of Jerusalem

was undetermined. As for Mr. Begin, he was part of the problem.
There was no hope of getting very far while he was in office.

He was impossible to deal with. Shaikh Khalifa said that

Mr. Begin was to the Jews what Khomeini was to the Shi'as.

It was clearly necessary to wait for the Israeli elections.

The Prime Minister said that once the Israeli elections and

the impending European election were out of the way, there
would be two years in which to make real progress towards a
solution. Not a day must be wasted. It was a unique opportunity

/and




. and must not be missed.

RDF

The Prime Minister raised the question of the Rapid
Deployment Force. The world was in a period of great
uncertainty. No-one knew where trouble might break out next.
If the countries concerned were to ask the United States
or the United Kingdom for help, we should like to be in a
position to respond quickly and with properly trained troops.
It would be too late if we had to wait to start preparations
until trouble had occurred. To create a force and to earmark
(not station) the troops would be good contingency planning.
The UK was already doing this on a small scale. It would
sometimes be better to have the assistance of a power like the
UK rather than of a super power. If the US were to go ahead
with their own idea, Britain would make a modest contribution.
In the brief discussion which ensued, it was noted that the
Arab phrase being used was '"'rapid intervention force'. It
was agreed that a much more appropriate Arabic phrase would be

"rapid assistance force'".

Bilateral Issues : Defence

The Prime Minister said that Britain was very anxious
to supply Rapier to Qatar. It was a unique air defence system
which had already been sold to the United States and Switzerland.
She knew that there had been concern in the past about the price
and delivery time of British equipment. This concern had
extended of course beyond Rapier. However, because of the
policies of the British Government, British industry was not-'
getting ever more competitive and ever more prompt in its delivery.
(Shaikh Khalifa indicated that he was aware of this.) Some

equipment was now being delivered ahead of time. Where there
were major overseas contracts, the Government would regard them
as being effectively Government to Government. The Prime
Minister intended to take a personal interest. Substantial
difficulties or complaints would be dealt with by her office.

/The Prime Minister
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The Prime Minister said that the North West Dome seemed
to her to be the most exciting gas development project in
the world. She knew that the Qatar Government had turned
to the World Bank for a technical assessment of the problems.
This was a good idea. She did not of course know what the
outcome would be but she wanted to '"speak up for' BP.

They had a uniquely wide range of experience ranging from
Alaska through the North Sea to Abu Dhabi. All their
projects had been successful. The British oil industry's
experience in offshore development was enormous. We had
gone from scratch to self-sufficiency in the North Sea in
12 years. BP would not let the Qatar Government down.
Moreover, the British Government would keep a close and
continuing eye on their work. The Government, after all,

held 40% of the company's shares.

Shaikh Khalifa asked the Prime Minister for her evaluation

of the prospects for the price of gas. The Prime Minister

said that she expected the price of gas to come up to that

of oil. They were basically equivalent forms of energy and

a price gap could not continue indefinitely - except perhaps
where gas was being used as a chemical feedstock. Shaikh Khalifa

said that he agreed.

The Prime Minister said that, finally, she would like to

mention for the record that we had high hopes of getting the
contract for the construction of the Ras Laffan Power Station.

Our record in power station construction was also very good.
The meeting ended at 1115 hours, and was followed by

a short tete-a-téte between the Prime Minister and Shaikh
Khalifa.

25 April
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l. At a separate meeting with Mr, Hurd on 23 April,
the Omani. Minist.er of State for Poraign Affairs
formally proposeéd that a joint UK/Oman Economic
Commission should be iatahliahed..a Za.wawi suggested
that this should be eomparabiwte thl,[UK/UhE Joint
Comm:.ttec., But when he dmlopea ﬁha idea it was clear
that the Omanis envisaged a Comiaaion more like that
which they now have with the us aimed at ass:-.sting Oman
with its economic deve}.opnent. !

2. Mr, Hurd said that there waé a limit to the amount
of technical cooperation wnichw,t.he UK could provide,

He agreed, nevertheless, to give the idea favourable
consideration and after connulting the Prime Minister
the Omanis have been told that we can agree to the
idea in principle.

Jo= MLy Hnrd ‘has’ undnrtaken t.'hat we ﬂwill sm draft
/ possiblae




poss.-..ble terms of refermce ﬁor auch a Ct:mmiaaion. Gk
We have dellberately 1eft. t.he det.ails vaguo-'but___

suggested that there might ‘be a. : _
Committee|which could have smaller sub grmps tﬁat-‘? o
met more &ften, and that as far as the temms of
reference were concerned ‘these m:l.g'ht be wider than
the Omanis had appeared to suggest and could
include a defence dimension. (The defence
dimension was seen as pmirid'i‘n’tj"a'_.formn in which
potential bilateral problems, for emmlm;;j. :
concerns about cre.dit and LSP, could be m
4. The British press have been briefad as’ follows -
that the Omanis had raised with us the. desira‘bility DX/
holding annual meatingu ,ma..'mly for ocmomie N"
“collaboration nnd that ths""Prime M:.niater had e
agreed to this, Ao Lo
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TELEGRAM NUM3ER 3 OF 24 APRIL
AND TO PRIORITY A3U DHABI 30NN
INFO WASHINGTON.

PRIME MINISTER®S VISIT TC OMAN,

THE PRIME MINISTER HAD A MEETING WITH THE SULTAN ON 23 APRIL
LAST ING ABOUT ONE AND THREE QUARTER HOURS. QA IS ZAWAWI,

YUSU ALAWI, SALIM GHAZZALI AND THE OMAN| AMBASSADOR I[N LONDON
WERE PRESENT.

5. THE DISCUSSION RANGED WIDELY. IT TOUCHED ON NUMEROUS
REGIONAL PRO3LEMS, THE ARAB/ISRAEL DISPUTE, TORNADO AND THE RE-
ORGANISAT ION OF COMMAND |4 THE OMAN| ARMED FORCES.

3. SPEAKING OF THE PDRY, THE SULTAN SAID THAT EARLIER SIGNS THAT
THE POLICY OF THE REGIME WAS MODERATING HAD NOT BEEN BORNE OUT.

THE POLICY OF THE PRESENT REGIME WAS IF ANYTHING MORE HARD LINE

THAN THAT OF ITS PREDECESSOR., THE RECENT KUWAITt ATTEMPT TO
MED|ATE OVER THE BORDER DISPUTE BETWEEN OMAM AND THE PDRY HAD

GOT NOWHERE. THE SITUATION IN THE YAR WAS ALSO A CAUSE FOR CONCERN.
RELAT!ONS BETWEEN THE YAR AND THE SAUDI GOVERNMENT WERE UMSATIS-
FACTORY. THE TRIBAL SITUATION WAS NOT UNDER CONTROL.

4. RANGING FURTHER AFIELD, THE SULTAN COMMENTED ON THE POSSIBILITY
THAT PAKISTAN AND LIBYA WOULD BECOME NUCLEAR POWERS. HE SAID THAT
OTRAG WERE TEST 4G ROCKETS IN LIBYA WHICH WOULD CIVE THE LIBYAN
GOVERNMENT THE ABILITY TO STRIKE AT, EG KHARTOUM. THE PRIME MIN=
ISTER AND THE SULTAN AGREED THAT THE IRAN/ IRAQ WAR SEEMED TO BE IN
STALEMATE. THE DANGER WAS THAT IF THINGS WENT BADLY FOR IRAN, THE
SOVIET UNION COULD PROFIT THROUGH THE TUDEH PARTY.

5, SPEAKING OF GULF COOPERATION, THE SULTAN SAID THAT MANY OF
OMAN’S ARAB PARTHERS, IN PARTICULAR THE KUWA ITIS, SEEMED NOT TO TAKE
THE SOVIET THREAT SERIOUSLY. HE COULD NOT UNDERSTAND WHETHER THEY
REALLY BEL IEVED THAT THERE WAS NO THREAT OR WHETHER THEY SIMPLY
PREFERRED NOT TO THINK ABOUT IT. THE SAUDIS TOOK A DIFFERENT

VIEW, AND, WHATEVER THEY MIGHT SAY IN PUBLIC, REGRETTED THE LACK

OF ACTION BY THE UNITED STATES AND EUROPE. THE PRIME MINISTER SAID
SHE THOUGHT THE NEW U S ADMINISTRATION WOULD CHANGE THINGS IN THIS
RESPECT.

6. THE PRIME MINISTER ARGUED THAT OVERALL, ONE SHOULD NOT BE TOO
PESS IMISTIC. THE SOVIET UNION HAD REASONS OF ITS OWN FOR CONCERN,
£G POLAND, AFGHANISTAN AND CHINA. MRS GANDHI HAD ARGUED THAT THE
RUSS IANS HAD GONE INTO AFGHANISTAN BECAUSE OF CONCERN ABOUT
THE MUSL IM POPULATION IN THUER OWN CENTRAL AS |AN REPUBLICS.
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7. ON THE ARA3/ISRAEL DISRUTE, THE SULTAN SAID THAT OMAN CONSIDER-
ED THE PROBLEM [MPORTANT. |IT HAD TO 3t SOLVED, BUT IT WAS NOT THE

[ g

KEY TC THE SOLUTION OF ALL THE OTHER PROBLEMS IN THE AREA. HE AGREED

WITH THE PRIMZ MINISTER THAT IT COULD NOT 3E SOLVED wITHOUT THE
INFLUENCE OF THE UNITED STATES. BUT HE ALSO BELIEVED THAT THE

ARABS HAD NOT BEEN PUTTING ENOUGH PRESSURE ON THE PALESTINIANS. HE
DOUBTED WHETHER THE PALESTINIANS AS A WHOLE REALLY WANTED THE PLO

AS THEIR SOLE REPRESENTATIVES OR INDEED WHETHER THE PALESTINIANS AS
A WHOLE REALLY WANTEZD A SOLUTION TO THE PROBLEM AT ALL., MANY

PALEST INIANS WOULD BE RELUCTANT TO LEAVE THE IR PRESENT POSITIONS

FOR THE HARDSHIPS OF THE WEST BANK, - THE PRIME MINISTER NOTED

THAT THE PLO’S TERROR IST RECORD WAS A OBSTACLE TO DEALING WITH THEM.
THE SULTAN AGREED AND SAID THAT THERE WAS NO PLO OFFICE IN OMAN.

8. THE SULTAN SAID THAT HE WAS WORRIED BY THE SITUATION IN THE

UAE WHERE THERE WERE SO MANY FOREIGNERS INCLUDING PALESTINIANS.
ASKED A30UT MUSANDAM, HE SAID THAT THE SHIHU HAD THEIR UPS AND
DOWNS. BUT THEY WERE REASONABLY ALRIGHT, FOR THE MOMENT, ALTHOUGH
UNHAPPY ABOUT THE BORDER SETTLEMENT WITH RAS AL KHA IMAH.

2. THE SULTAN SAID THAT HE WAS REORGANISING THE SERVICES COMMAND
STRUCTURE, AND HE WOULD LIKE GENERAL CREASEY TO TAKE CHARGE. THE
PRIME MINISTER SAID THAT IF THE SULTAN WISHED GENERAL CREASEY TO
SERVE HIM, OUR CONSENT WOULD BE FORTHCOMING.

10. THE PRIME MINISTER THANKED THE SULTAN FOR HIS HELP WITH HIS
FELLOW ARAB LEADERS OVER THE TORNADO. THE SULTAN SAID THAT HE HAD
BEEN GETTING WORRIED ABCUT THE TREND OF GIVING EVERYTHING TO THE
FRENCH. HE BELIEVED IN NOT BECOMING DEPENDENT ON ONE SUPPL IER,
MOREOVER WITH AIRCRAFT THERE WAS ALSO A LANGUAGE PROBLEM. SOME
PEOPLE SAID THAT THE BRITISH WERE SLOW IN COMMERC IAL MATTERS 3

THIS HAD BEEN TRUE, BUT HE DID NOT BELIEVE IT WAS TRUE NOW. WHAT
WAS NEEDED, HOWEVER, WAS A QUICK REACTION AND GOOD TERMS OF PAYMENT.

11. THE PRIME MINISTER WILL BE HAVING A FURTHER DISCUSSION WITH
THE SULTAN TO-DAY.

FCO PLEASE PASS TO ALL,
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("\__ \/ ‘*OINTS RAISED IN A TETE-A-TETE DISCUSSION BETWEEN THE PRIME MINISTER
- AND SULTAN QABOOS OF OMAN ON 24 APRIL 1981

The following points came up in the Prime Minister's discussion

Sultan Qaboos and will need to be followed up:-

Charges for Loan Service Personnel. The Sultan argued, and

the Prime Minister agreed, that these charges are excessive

and that some way should be found to reduce them.

Aid for Oman. The Sultan argued, and the Prime Minister agreed,

that the reduction in our aid to Oman indicated a lack of
confidence in the country. The Prime Minister would wish

the reduction to be reviewed.

Oman University. The Sultan is anxious that the new university

should be oriented to producing students with practical skills.
He believes it should concentrate on science and technology.
The Prime Minister considers that those advising the Omanis
should bear in mind examples such as Cranfield, the School

of Mines at Durham and Herriot Watt, rather than Oxford or

Cambridge.

Credit. The Prime Minister wishes the question of the
establishment of a new line of credit with Oman to be

followed up. The Sultan attaches importance to this.

/LA
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SECRET

FM FCO 2314372 APR 81
TO IMMEDIATE SALALAH /, .,
TELEGRAM NUMBER 6 OF 23 APRIL o g
INFO IMMEDIATE WASHINGTON PRIORITY UKDEL NATQ BONN PARIS

FOLLOWING FOR ALEXANDER PRIME MINISTER’S PART

US GRAIN EMBARGO

FOLLOWING IS THE TEXT OF A LETTER FROM HAIG TO FOREIGN SECRETARY
RECEIVED LATE LAST NIGHT.

BEGINS:

'*|1 WANT YOU TO KNOW THAT THE PRESIDENT WILL ANNOUNCE IN THE NEAR
FUTURE HIS DECISION TO LIFT THE PARTIAL GRAIN EMBARGO AGAINST THE
SOVIET UNION. AS | KNOW YOU WILL UNDERSTAND THIS DECISION HAS NOT
COME EASILY TO THE PRESIDENT WHO REALISES FULL WELL ITS IMPLICATIONS
FOR OUR CLOSEST ALLIES. HE HAS THEREFORE PERSONALLY ASKED ME TO SEE
THAT YOU AND THROUGH YOU THE PRIME MINISTER ARE THE FIRST TO BE
INFORMED OF HIS DECISION AND THE REASONS FOR IT.

THE PRESIDENT HAS LONG BEEN OPPOSED TO THE GRAIN EMBARGO WHICH HE
BELIEVES HAS IMPOSED UNEQUAL AND THEREFORE UNFAIR SACRIFICE ON ONE
SECTOR OF THE AMERICAN ECONOMY, HE CAMPAIGNED AGAINST THE EMBARGO

HE MADE A FIRM COMMITMENT TO THE AMERICAN PEOPLE TO REMOVE IT.
NEVERTHELESS FOLLOWING HIS INAUGURATION THE PRESIDENT RECOGNISED

THE SUBSTANTIAL FOREIGH POLICY CONSIDERATIONS THAT MILITATED AGAINST
LIFTING OF THE EMBARGO. HE HAS FIRMLY AND COURAGEOUSLY STOOD AGAINST
THE POLITICAL FORCES WITHIN THIS COUNTRY THAT HAVE SOUGHT FROM

THE MOMENT HE TOOK OFFICE A REVERSAL OF PRESIDENT CARTER’S EMBARGO
DECISION,

IN ALL FRANKNESS PETER THOSE FORCES HAVE NOW BECOME SO STRONG THAT
THE PRESIDENT FEELS HE CAN NO LONGER SUSTAIN HIS POSITION. TO
MAINTAIN THE EMBARGO NOW WOULD SERIOQUSLY JEOPARDISE AFFIRMATIVE
CONGRESS IONAL ACTION ON HIS ECONOMIC PROGRAMME IN GENERAL AND HIS
FARM BILL IN PARTICULAR. THE PRICE IN TERMS OF THE ABILITY OF THIS
ADMINISTRATION TO RE-ESTABLISH A HEALTHY AND PRODUCTIVE NATION IS

TOO MUCH TO PAY. THUS ALBEIT RELUCTANTLY THE PRESIDENT HAD DETERMINED
THAT HE MUST ACT NOW IF HE IS TO CARRY FORWARD THE DOMESTIC REFORM
PROGRAMMES THAT ARE SO IMPORTANT TO US AND IN THE LAST ANALYSIS OUR
ALLIES,

LET ME EMPHASISIE THAT THE LIFTING OF THE EMBARGO DOES NOT INDICATE
ANY CHANGE IN US POLICY VIS—-A=VIS THE USSR OR US ACCEPTANCE OF THE
STATUE QUO IN AFGHANISTAN. THE UNITED STATES REMAINS DETERMINED TO
RESIST SOVIET AGGRESSION WHEREVER IT OCCURS, WE WILL CONTINUE TO WORK
FOR A POLITICAL SETTLEMENT IN AFGHANISTAN WHICH INCLUDES THE
WITHDRAWAL OF SOVIET TROOPS.

WE WILL CONTINUE TO SCRUTINISE ALL OUR COMMERCIAL TIES WITH THE
SOVIET UNION CAREFULLY WE OF COURSE URGE OUR ALLIES TO DO THE SAME.
NOR DOES OUR ACTION ON THE GRAINS EMBARGO AFFECT OUR BELIEF THAT
POLAND CONTINGENCY PLANNING IS VITAL TO ENABLE THE WEST TO TAKE
CONCERTED ACTION IF THE SOVIETS SHOULD INTERVENE IN POLAND.

IN THAT REGARD LET ME ALSO ASSURE YOU THAT SHOULD THE SOVIETS
INTERVENE MILITARILY IN POLAND WE WILL TAKE THE MOST STRINGENT MEAS~
URES TO LIMIT ECONOMIC RELATIONS BETWEEN THE UNITED STATES AND THE
USSR THESE MEASURE WILL NOT BE RESTRICTED TO THE AGRICULTURAL SECTOR
ALONE,

FINALLY PETER YOU SHOULD KNOW THAT THE PRESIDENT AND | HAVE APPREC-
IATED THE FIRM SUPPORT WE HAVE RECEIVED FROM YOU AND THE PRIME
MINISTER ON THE ISSUE OF TRADE WITH THE SOVIETS OVER THE PAST
SEVERAL MONTHS. YOU HAVE OUR GRATITUDE | HOPE WE HAVE YOUR UNDER-
STANDING FOR THE REASON THAT LED THE PRESIDENT TO THIS DIFFICULT
DECISION,*’

ENDS

CARRINGTON
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o . RECORD OF A MEETING BETWEEN THE PRIME MINISTER AND SULTAN QABOOS
OF OMAN IN SALALAH ON 23 APRIL 1981 AT NOON

Present:

Prime Minister HM Qaboos Bin Said, Sultan of Oman

The Hon. Douglas Hurd HE Qais Abdul Mun'im Al-Zawawi, MFA
HE The Hon. Ivor Lucas Yusuf Alawi, U/Sec, MFA

Sir John Graham Salim Abdullah Al Ghazzali, U/Sec, MOD
Sir Ronald Ellis HE Malallah Babib, Ambassador in London

Mr. M.0'D.B. Alexander

After an exchange of courtesies, the Prime Minister said that
she was glad to have been able to come to Oman at this time. A
dangerous period lay ahead and it would be very helpful to her to

be able to talk about issues of mutual interest.

PDRY

In response to a question from the Prime Minister, Sultan Qaboos
said that he had hoped at one stage that anti-Soviet sentiment was
gaining ground in the PDRY. Since the assassination of the last
President, the regime had appeared less hard-line. There had been
more talks with neighbouring states and more visits. But in fact
nothing had changed. The concentration of Soviet experts in the
country and their influence, particularly on security matters,

ws increasing. The Soviet naval presence had been enlarged.

The new regime had recently begun to "hot things up" on the
border with Oman. Omani troops and transport aircraft had been
shot at with small arms. An Omani patrol had been fired on from
a border fort. The Government of the PDRY had accused Oman in
the Arab League of being the aggressors. The Government of Oman
in reply had told the Arab League the facts and had underlined
that they were restraining themselves.

The Government of Kuwait had sent a mission to attempt
mediation. On its wvisit to the PDRY the mission had received
nothing but complaints about Oman. The Omani Government on the
other hand had said that any positive sign from the PDRY would

meet with a similar response from Oman. Oman did not want war.

P L
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.It had been pursuing peace since 1970 but the PDRY had rejected
all approaches. They preferred to back the so-called Liberation
Front.

Sultan Qaboos said that he had suggested to Saudi Arabia
that they should allow those South Yemenis who were opposed to
the PDRY regime to have their heads. However the Saudi Arabians
had refused to let the opposition do anything. As a result the
PDRY felt secure. They were able to initiate trouble without
any fear of retaliation. The Prime Minister commented tha it
was strange that the PDRY seemed able to get arms from the

Soviet Union and money from other GUf States. Sultan Qaboos
confirmed that they were getting money from, among others,
Kuwait and the UAE.

YAR

Sultan Qaboos commented that there was a dangerous situation

in the YAR. The tribal situation there was not under control.
The Prime Minister said that King Khalid thought the situation

was more stable than a year or two ago. Nonetheless he had been
worried by the recent decision of the Government of the YAR to
purchase arms from the Soviet Union. The Minister of State
explained the background to this decision and referred to the
difficulties the American Government had anticipated in getting
the necessary legislation to finance arms purchaseSby the YAR to
the US Congress. Sultan Qaboos said that the problem was not
the supply of arms but the ability to use them. In the YAR
nothing worked and nothing was serviced. This did not prevent

the YAR Government from complaining about Saudi Arabia. They
claimed that the Saudi Government gave money to the tribes as

well as to the central government. If they would restrict their

money to the central government things would be much better.

As it was the tribes had their own arms and their own customs'
regimes. Five hundred Toyota cars had recently been exported

fram Oman to the YAR. Each had been full of cigarettes. They had
however only paid tribal customs' duties of 5% as opposed to

the central government's duties of 40%. The last three Presidents
of the YAR had all felt that the Saudi Government oppressed them
and did not deal with them on an equal footing. The Government

/of the




.of the YAR wanted to be able to talk with the United States and
with other Western countries directly rather than through Saudi
Arabia.

The Prime Minister said she was aware of the resentment
described by Sultan Qaboos and thought it important that something
should be done. The Minister of State said that he had been in

the YAR a year previously and fully agreed with the analysis
made by Sultan Qaboos. We were thinking of doing samething to
help in the naval field. (Sultan Qaboos said that he had
recommended the YAR to turn to the British.) The Prime Minister

said that she thought Yemeni resentment would always be an
obstacle to rapprochement with the Saudis. Sultan Qaboos said,

through intermediaries, had tried to get Crown Prince Fahd to
change his position. The Crown Prince however had denied the
existence of any problem. The Prime Minister said that she had
had the impression during the talks in Riyadh that the Saudis
did not really understand the problem in North Yemen. But did
Sultan Qaboos think that Yemeni claims were justified? Sultan
Qaboos said in respect they waee. In the Saudi Government Prince
Sultan rather than Prince Saud was responsible for relations with
the YAR. The YAR found themselves dealing with several authorities
rather than with onaThe Minister of State commented that the

YAR was not in fact treated by the Saudi Government as a foreign

state.

Sultan Qaboos said that another problem was that the present
President of the YAR had suspected the Saudis of trying to get
rid of him. For the moment, however, he seemed more relaxed.

More generally, it would obviously be very dangerous if Sana'a

were to become a Communist capital alongside Aden. _The Prime

Minister agreed. This must not happen. She wondered whether
the problem would be discussed at the Gulf Cooperation Summit.
Sultan Qaboos indicated that he was doubtful.

In the course of a summary of regional problems, Sultan Qaboos

mentioned the manufacture in Libya of rockets by the German

/ company




company OTRAG. Sir John Graham described the background.

The possibility of the introduction of nuclear weapons into the area
was also referred to. Sultan Qaboos said that he thought there had

been contact between Libya and Pakistan about this, and
The Prime Minister expressed concern about nuclear proliferation.
Sultan Qaboos said that the control of the supply of nuclear reactors

by the West had been too lax. More and more small countries were

getting a nuclear capability.

Iran/Iraqg War
Sultan Qaboos said that the war between Iranand Irag seemed to

have reached a stalemate. Irag would find it very difficult to give
up the Shatt al Arab now. The war seemed to have been intensified
in the last couple of days. According to newspaper reports, 300

troops had been killed.

The Prime Minister asked whether the summit conference on
cooperation in the Gulf would deal with this question. Were they
likely to make any progress in coordinating their response to the
Soviet threat. Sultan Qaboos said he found it difficult to understand
the complacency of some of his friends in the Gulf. He could not
make out whether they believed their own propaganda, or did not
want to think about the dangers. Some of them were inclined to
argue that there was no threat, or that the United States were
exploiting it for their own benefit. In any case, it was going to
take some time to push through any agreement. But the Saudis had the
right ideas. At times they got just as frustrated as he did about
the lack of action. The Prime Minister said that she expected that

there would be new purpose, direction and leadership from President
Reagan's Administration. Moreover, she was confident they would
consult with other countries in the Middle East: for example, about
the Arab/Israel dispute (on which no progress could be expected

before the Israeli elections)

The Prime Minister said she was concerned about the Tudeh Party
in Iran. Sultan Qaboos said that as long as Khomeini was alive,
nothing much would happen. President Bani Sadr was maintaining the
support of the Army at present. In the event of a Communist takeover
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in Iran, it was to be expected that Iraq would seize Khuzistan,

The Prime Minister, agreeing, said that the accumulation of problems

made this period the most dangerous that she had known. It was
important that countries should keep up their defences and remain

dose to thelr allies. It was also necessary to keep in mind the threat
from subversion. Sultan Qaboos said that the Omani Government was
very much on their guard against subversion. He thought it was quite
wong that subversion was treated as a domestic issue. It was

usually externally stimulated, financed and armed. Thanks to the
British Government, the Omani Government was better placed than most.
But the external origin of most subversion should be more widely

recognised.

The Prime Minister said that it was possible to be too pessimistic
about the global situation. There had been positive developments.
There was Poland. The develomments there represented potentially
the most serious situation that the Communist countries had ever
faced. The Soviet intervention in Afghanistan, according to Mrs. Gandhi,
had been stimulated by Soviet concern about the situation in the
Central Asian Republics. China's hostility to the Soviet Union was
well known. The Soviet Union had encountered a number of reverses
in the Caribbean Islands in recent months. The Cubans were highly

unpopular in Angola.

Arab/Israel

Sultan Qaboos said_that the Palestinian issue was a problem which
Palestinians

had to be solved. The / right to determine their own future was

incontrovertible. But the Arab/Israel dispute was not the only
problem the region faced. Nor had the Arabs put enough pressure on
the Palestinians. They were reluctant to accept that Israel was here
to stay. The Palestinians must be persuaded to drop the reference
to the elimination of Israel fram their Covenant, In turn, the
Israelis should agree to changes in Resclution 242 . These two
policy changes must happen at the same time. The West Bank should

be returned to Jordan.

/ Sultan
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Palestinians wanted to have the PLO as their sole representatives.

Sultan Qaboos said tha he was by no means convinced that all

In his view, the Palestinian people as a whole should have more say

in who represented them. He also doubted whether all the Palestinians
in fact wanted the dispute settled. Many Palestinians who had
settled in other countries and done well there had no desire to return
to the West Bank "to dig the ground". The Prime Minister

said she had tackled her interlocutors earlier in her tour on the

same question. She had encountered a reluctance to face up to it.

She also wondered whether antérganisation that had indulged in terrorism

i
would find it easy to give/up. HMG did not amd would not recognise

the PLO, although we had some low level contacts with it. Sultan Qaboos

said that his Government would not recognise the PLO either.

The Prime Minister said that the object of the work being done
by the Europeans was to set out to investigate the issues. Should the
dews of the inhabitants of the West Bank be established by a referendum
or in some other way? Who should vote and what on? In response
to the latter point, Sultan Qaboos said that all Palestinians wherever
they are, should vote. His own view was similar to Egypt's.
One objective should be taken ata time. The important thing was to

start down the road.

Referring to the Sultan's comment that the Arabs had not put
enough pressure on the Palestinians, the Minister of State asked
whether it was realistic to expect such pressure to be exercised
in the future. Sultan Qaboos said that he did not think it likely.
The only people in a position to put pressure on the PLO were the

Syrians. They did not at present seem likely to do so. There was

not much hope of action from other Arab Governments. The Prime Minister

said that she had attempted to argue the case during discussions
earlier in hertour. She had argued, for example, in Riyadh that

the Palestinians had to be brought to accept Israel's right to exist.
Prince Sultan had replied that they had already done so by implication,
for example, in asking for a return tot he pre-1967 boundaries.

This meant that the 1967 boundaries were accepted. The Prime Minister

said that she had also argued that there could be no Ministerial
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contacts with the PLO because of their terrorist activity. Her
hosts in Riyadh had replied that they did not recognise the terrorist
aspects of the PLO's activities, but only their politi cal aspects.
Sultan Qaboos said the PLO would never be recognised in Oman.

The Palestinians werea source of danger to the Gulf States. They

were present in great numbers and growing. The Prime Minister

said she had the impression from some of the younger people she had
met in the UAE that the Palestinian problem was of great concern
to them.

Musandam
The Prime Minister asked about the situation in Musandam.
Sultan Qaboos said that the Shihu had their ups and downs. They were,

however, reasonably content for the moment, although not altogether
happy with the border settlement recently negotiated with Ras al Khaimah.
The development prospects for the area were good. There was bound
to be occasional trouble with the tribes, but this would be nothing

serious.

Omani Command Structure

Sultan Qaboos said there was one thing he wished to raise with
the Prime Minister. He was reorganising the Services Command
structure in Oman. He attached importance to having General Creasey
come to work in Oman. General Creasey had asked him to mention
the matter to the Prime Minister. The Prime Minister said that if
the Sultan wished to have General Creasey, he could be sure that the
General would be made available.

Arms Supplies

The Prime Minister thanked the Sultan for his help with fellow
Arab leaders over Tornado. It was a very good aircraft. It was
important to keep the option of its purchase open. Sultan Qaboos

said that he had been worried about the tendency to give everything
to the French. No one country should have a monopoly of supply

in this part of the world. Moreover, there was a language problem
in that aircraft manuals were all in English, and pilots had been
trained in English.

/ Sultan Qaboos




Sultan Qaboos said that he had a general word of aduce to
offer. People were inclined to think that the British were
dow in commercial matters, and took a long time. The French on
the other hand were very good at attracting people (the Sultan
made it clear that he was thinking, inter alia, that the French
were good at buying favour). Britain must be prepared to react
quickly, to deploy better publicity and propaganda, to improve
delivery times, to offer good terms of credit, and in general

to pay attention to the smaller points. The Prime Minister

said that she thought that things were getting better. The Sultan

would find that British firms were increasingly competitive.

The meeting ended at 1350.

A
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SUMMARY RECORD OF AN INFORMAL TALK BETWEEN MR. HURD AND QAIS ZAWAWI,
OMANI MINISTER OF STATE FOR FOREIGN AFFAIRS IN SALALAH ON THE
EVENING OF 23 APRIL 1981

Over a quiet drink in Brigadier Landon's house in Salalah at which
Sir Ronald Ellis and Brigadier Landon were also present, Zawawi told
Mr. Hurd informally more details of Oman's relations with the other states
of the Gulf Cooperation Council. He said that at the recent Gulf Foreign
Ministers Conference in Muscat, the Kuwaitis had put pressure on Oman to
reduce its cooperation with the US and to join the Arab Front against Camp
David. Zawawi had told the Kuwaitis that this was absurd at a time when
the PDRY was becoming a Soviet base and was deeply hostile to Oman. The
Kuwaitis then said that they were willing to put economic and political
pressure on the'PDRY to normalise its relations with Oman and asked whether
if they did so Oman would comply with their two requests above. Zawawi
had said that at that stage Oman would consult its friends, including the
US but that the first priority was to get the PDRY to change its ways.
Prince Saud had interjected helpfully at this point to say that the Arabs
had been slow to recognise Oman's difficulties and should show greater
sympathy for its position. It had been agreed that the Kuwaiti Foreign
Minister and Rashid Abdullah, UAE Minister of State for Foreign Affairs,
should carry out a mission to the PDRY (this has now taken place) and that
Oman would prepare a paper for the next Gulf Cooperation meeting of Foreign

Ministers analysing the threat from the PDRY.

On Palestine, Zawawi said that he had received a message from Prince
Saud urging him to put pressure on the UK about this question during
Mrs Thatcher's visit. But the Sultan was not willing to do this because
he had a different analysis of the Palestinian problem, as he had explained
to Mrs Thatcher. Zawawi was gloomy about the prospects for progress on the
Arab/Israel dispute because of the Syrian veto on the PLO and because Saudi

‘Arabia would not use its financial muscle to put pressure on the extremists.

Mr. Hurd asked Zawawi about his attempt to bring about a reconciliation
between Egypt and Saudi Arabia which he had described during Mr. Hurd's visit

to Oman in February. Zawawi said that this was in cold storage. President

Sadat had forbidden Egyptian Ministers to talk to the Saudis and was insisting

that the Saudis had to make the first move towards any reconciliation.
President Sadat believed that although there was room for differences over
tactics, the strategy which he was following was one that all the moderate
Arabs had agreed before his visit to Jerusalem. But the Saudis were not

inclined to make the first ppbliq move towards Egypt. Some of them,

CUNFIDENTIAL
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including Prince Sultan, indeed felt a good deal of personal rancour

towards President Sadat.

In general Zawawi said that he would go on emphasising Oman's right
to pursue her own policies despite her membership of the Gulf Cooperation.
He did not think there would be any Gulf pact soon formalising cooperation
in foreign policy or defence. Probably they would negotiate a series of
bilateral agreements with each other in this field. (He is obviously
influenced by what he has heard from the Indonesians about ASEAN, which

he believes took a long time to develop but is now robust and useful.)

(ke
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FM DOT 231856Z APR 81

TO IMMEDIATE JEDDA (PSE PASS RIYADH) (FOR HOC/OR CS)

TELEGRAM NO CREDA 34 OF 23 APR

AND TO IMMEDIATE PARIS SALALAH (FOR LANKESTER, PS/PRIME MINISTER)

ARABSAT

1. YOUR TELNO 12 OF 21 APRIL. ECGD HAVE RECONSIDERED BAE’S REQUEST
THAT THE TERMS OF TTC COVER BE AMENDED BY REPLACING THE EXISTING
EXCHANGE RATE SCHEDULE WITH ONE BASED ON CURRENT RATES. MINISTERS
HAVE NOW AGREED THAT THIS CONCESSION SHOULD (SHOULD) EXCEPTIONALLY
BE OFFERED, ALTHOUGH IN NORMAL CIRCUMSTANCES THE CASE WOULD BE
UNATTRACTIVE.

2., PLEASE INFORM BAE REPRESENTATIVE SOONEST.
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CONFIDENT IAL
FM FCO 2311992 APR 1981
TO IMMEDIATE SALALAH
TELEGRAM NUMBER 3 OF 23 APRIL
AND TO IMMEDIATE DOHA, BONN,

FOLLOWING FOR PRIME MINISTER’S PARTY.

FCO TELNO 132 TO ABU DHABI: PROPOSED MESSAGE FROM PRIME
MINISTER TO HERR SCHMIDT.
1. GERMAN EMBASSY HAVE NOW INDEPENDENTLY APPROACHED US ABOUT
DESIRABILITY OF MESSAGE, WITH SPECIAL REFERENCE TO TORNADO AND
SAUDI ENERGY POLICY, HOWEVER SIR J TAYLOR HAS NOW CARRIED OUT
THE INSTRUCTIONS ON TORNADO IN ABU DHABI TELNO 137, IN ADDITION
TO DELIVERING THE LETTER ON THIS AOPROVED BY THE PRIME MINISTER.
ANY FURTHER SUBSTANTIVE MESSAGE ON TORNADO WOULD CLEARLY RISK
CONFUSING THE GERMANS, SO ANY MENTION OF IT IN THE PR IME
MINISTER’S NEW MESSAGE SHOULD IDEALLY JUST REFER TO THE TwWO
EARLIER COMMUNICATIONS,

CARRINGTON
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[TEXT]

Eollowing from Graham,-PRimé\Mihiste s Pay iy,
Your telno 3 to Salalah: Message to Chancellor
Sgbm%dt.

1. ; Prime Minister would be grateful if Sir J. Taylor

would deliver the following message to Chancellor

Schmidt. Begins: lmﬁ’
"You will have had an oral t through our Ambassador

of my discussions in Riyadh with Crown Prince Fahd and
and some of the other Saudi Ministers, covering in
particular the line I took with them over the Tornado
aircraft. I thought however that you mighf like to have
an account of my impressions.

2. My reception could not have been more cordial. The
Saudis were at pains to put me at my ease and make me
welcome. Similarly the atmosphere at our talks was

easy and relaxed. Predictably they urged upon me the
need for the European Community to recognise the PLO

and the legitimate rights of the Palestinians. The
/ Palestine




Palestine issue was for them the top priority, with
the Soviet threat, which they acknowledge, and
inter-Arab differences some way behind.

3. My reply was that we do recognise the right of
the Palestinians to self-determination. That was not
in doubt. But we also believed that the Palestinians
must recognise Israel's right to exist behind

secure borders. I urged the Saudis to use their
influence with the Palestinians to bring about such
recognition, but they argued that while they of
course accepted that Israel exist€d in the region,
they could onl expect the Palestinians to make such-
a moveLyhén the IS;QZ'TQleecognlsed the right of

the Palestinians to return to their homeland and
Jerusalem was restored to its pre-1967 state. kh
Nonetheless, .Iwz_qaf little Mmgnd

in a separate discussion, the Saudi Foreign Minister

(who wewever was i1l for most of my visit) told
TR Wliman

Douglas Hurd that the de0151onL s up tOJEEEﬂ~f""_‘“
Palestinians and hinted that they might%pe prepared

to move if the Community could make some gesture
towards them. I do not build too much on this, but
I continue to believe that this is our best way
forward and that collectively and individually we

should use all our influence with the Arabs to try

to bring some move on this fsentipy the Palestinians,

even if it is couched in conditional terms (eg if
Israei?i}%%gg‘wﬁ from territory occupied in 1967,
then the PLO &5Lprepared to negotiate a settlement
on the basis of self-determination for the
Palestinians and secure borders for all states).

I hope you will feel able to say something on these
lines. I am increasingly convinced that only with
some such gggigée by the Palestinians will it be

possible to\f*“*”“—*f’——' a2
the—Americans' "peace process". I wish you lurk

and look forward to hearing your impressions.
With regards, Margaret Thatcher.
MESSACE ENDS
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DUBAI ATLUMINIUM SMELTER INSURANCE

The Qyitish Insurance Associatiqg_have written to the

Secretary of the Cabinet to suggest that the Prime Minister

should be made aware that Shaikh Rashid might raise with her
————————

the question of the substantial insurance claim outstanding

—

following the damage to the aluminium smelter.

—_—

We think it unlikely that Rashid will do-so. But in case
the Prime Minister needs a defensive brief, we suggest the
following:

"Concerned to hear of the damage to the smelter.

British insurers have long tradition of meeting

all legitimate claims against them, no matter how
large. No question of their not honouring their
legal liabilities arising out of Dubai incident.

Am sure the insurers are dealing as quickly as they

can with the claim."

You may wish to explain the circumstances of the damage
to the smelter to the Prime Minister's Party either on arrival
in Dubai or else (preferably) via Abu Dhabi where there will

be a little more time.




SUMMARY RECORD OF A CONVERSATION BETWEEN THE PRIME MINISTER AND THE PRIME
MINISTER OF ABU DHABI, SHAIKH KHALIFA, IN ABU DHABI ON 22 APRIL 1981 AT
1240 HOURS

The Prime Minister told Shaikh Khalifa that she had already mentioned
to Shaikh Zaid her hope that the armed forces of the UAE would purchase the

Hawk aircraft. It was the best training aircraft of its kind in the world.
It was being adapted so that it could be used in a combat role as well as as
a trainer. The Prime Minister had put her own authority behind the offer.
It mattered greatly both to our industry and to our ability to support our
friends. The matter seemed to be close to a decision. It would be good to

be able to announce it in the course of the day. Shaikh Khalifa said that

he was very keen to maintain the traditional links in this field between
the UAE and the United Kingdom. The UAE would therefore be very happy to
purchase the Hawk aircraft. The details could be finalised as soon as the

Prime Minister wished. The Prime Minister said this was a most generous

mark of the friendship between the two countries. Shaikh Khalifa said that

even if his Government had known nothing about the aircraft, they would
have purchased it simply on the basis that it came with the Prime Minister's

recommendation.

Shaikh Khalifa said that the UAE also wished to pursue the question

of training in general. The Prime Minister said that we would do everything

to help with setting up a training school. She would put her personal
authority behind this also. Shaikh Khalifa said that he had already sent

a mission to the United Kingdom to look at the operation of our training
schools there. He thanked the Prime Minister for the study we had carria
out of the proposed operations centre. The Government of the UAE would
be very happy to expand their cooperation with the UK. There were many

possible areas for it. The Prime Minister said that the whole field of

air defence including radar, Rapier etc.,hould be kept under review.
Shaikh Khalifa confirmed that his Government were studying all aspects

of their security, especially in the light of the Iran/Iraq war.

The Prime Minister said that she wished to underline Britain's

expertise in anything connected with the exploitation of oil and gas.
We had gained enormous experience in the North Sea. In this connection
she knew that the Fred Olsen company had put in a bid in connection with

the well heads in the UpperZakum oil field. This company had been
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responsible for a great deal of similar work in the North Sea. Despite
the hostile conditions, they had never failed. Similarly, she knew that
the work involved in the Chicago Bridge bid for the liquid gas tank

contract on Das Island would be done by a British subsidiary which was

particularly expert in these matters. She hoped that Shaikh Khalifa would

' ; T st A L : :
bear in mind Britain's / reliability. The North Sea oil rig that had

turned turtle last year had been neither designed nor built in the UK.
The Prime Minister undertook to ensure that Shaikh Khalifa received a

memorandum on both proposals.

In response to an invitation from the Prime Minister to comment

Shaikh Khalifa said there was only one point he wanted to make. He would

greatly prefer that all dealings on contracts like the Hawk contract
should be on a Government to Government basis and that commission agents
should play no role whatever. Contracts themselves should be signed

by officials. The Prime Minister agreed to proceed on this basis.

At the end of the meeting the Prime Minister invited Shaikh Khalifa

to pay a visit to London. He accepted, and added that he was in any case

in London very frequently.

The meeting ended at 1300.
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RECORD OF A CONVERSATION BETWEEN THE PRIME MINISTER AND SHAIKH ZAID BIN
SULTAN, RULER OF ABU DHABI, IN ABU DHABI ON 22 APRIL AT 1000 hours

Present:
Prime Minister Shaikh Zaid bin Sultan, Ruler of
HE David Roberts, Abu Dhabi, Head of State

; Shaikh Rashid bin Said, Ruler of
Bir-Jehn. Greiem, RCNG Dubai, Vice President & Prime Minister
Sir Ronald Ellis

Shaikh Hemden bin Mohamad, Deputy
Mr. M.0'D.B. Alexander Prime Minister

Mr. David Maclennan Mana'al Otaiba, Minister of Petroleum

The Hon. Douglas Hurd, CBE, MP Ahmed al Suwaidi, Former Foreign
Minister, now Special Adviser
to Shaikh Zaid

Shaikh Zaid said that he was greatly honoured that the Prime Minister
had come to the United Arab Emirates. It was good of her to visit at a time
when there was a need to strengthen relations between the two countries.

The two countries were linked by history and by continuing mutual interests.

The Prime Minister agreed that the friendship between the two countries
ran deep. It was her wish that the UAE and the United Kingdom %ﬁould be
e
a support to each other. In her view the world had entered / most diffiecult

and dangerous period in the last 30 years. There were many sources of
conflict. Every sovereign stete had to be prepared to protect its own way
of life. Good friends had also to be staunch allies, prepared to meet

any eventuality together.

Shaikh Zaid said the UAE was a small nation. Nevertheless it had
attracted the attention of enemies, was menaced by threats to its well
being and to its existence. It was not easy to describe the threat in
detail but wealth and prosperity were always the object of envy. Threats
to the UAE were also a threat to her neighbours since the security of
every state in the region inter-acted with the security of the others.

The UAE was taking precautions to defend itself but could only do so within
its means. If the scale of the threat exceeded the UAE's capacity to
resist it, the UAE would look to its friends.

There were three major sources of concern, both to the security of the
UAE and to that of the world as a whole. These were:
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(a) Israeli aggression against the Arab world;
(b) the Soviet threat; and

(e) the disintegration of the Arab community.

It was not easy to say in what order these problems would become critical.
But undoubtedly the Israeli threat was the most serious. It would be
necessary to solve this first and then turn to the others. To try to deal
with all three at once would be to dissipate effort.

The Prime Minister said that she 2agreed +hat the dispute with Israel
had to be solved. Everyone accepted the right of the Palestinians to self-
determination and Israel's right to secure borders. The principles were
not in doubt. The practical question was how to implement the principles.
It would not be easy but it had to be done during the present United States
Presidency. The problem could not be solved without the Americans. As a
result of his recent trip, Mr. Haig had understood both the urgency and the
fundamental importance of the problem. She had seen Mr. Haig in London and
had made clear that the problems of the Gulf could not be solved until the
Arab/Israel dispute had been cleared up.

As for the Soviet menace, it was always there. The Russians had always
had an innate tendency to seek to expand. Their adoption of communism, with
its techniques of subversion, had made a formidable combination. We had to
proclaim the superiority of our way of life and had to prepare to resist

their attempts at encroachment and to do so in good time.

As regards the disintegration of Arab unity, this was of great
concern to the West. People of like-mind should seek to overcome their
differences and to pursue common objectives. We were therefore very happy
at the prospect of increasing cooperation among the Gulf states. Every
country had to rely on its own defences in the first instance but thereafter
on its friends. She hoped that General Perkins's mission had been
satisfactory. Britain wished to do everything it could to help. We knew
the area well and wanted to be involved. It would often be better for the
UK to deal with & problem than for the super-powers with all the risks of
conflict that their involvement entailed. If there were any problems, we
would look into them.

/ The Iran/Iraq




The Iran/Iraq war had been a source of alarm. Although the possibility
of hostilities in the area as a result of outside intervention in Iran
had been foreseen, no-one had foreseen that Iran and Iraq would resort
to hostilities. It was fortunate that through the wisdom of Shaikh Zaid
and others in the area the conflict had been contained. The war was a lesson
in the speed with which situations could develop. It underlined the need
to consider every contingency and to be prepared for it. Britain was

interested in seeing every nation acquire the ability to resist aggression.

Shaikh Zaid said that he agreed with what the Prime Minister had said.
On the Iran/Irsq war, he commented that it would not have started had it not
been for the turbulence within Iran., This had spilled over into neighbouring
countries, including the UAE., The so-called revolution in Iran was
trying toexport ideas and ideologues. The UAE had had to put up with a lot.
Its airspace had, for instance, been violated. But the Government had
remained calm. The war had now subsided The UAE had not suffered but the
situation remained a great threat to the region.

Soviet
Shaikh Zaid said that / aggression was unacceptable. No country had

the right to interfere in the affairs of others. But the Soviet Union of
course had the example of Israel before them. No sooner had Israel been
established than it had started a policy of aggression and expansion. No-one
had tried to stop them. The law of the jungle had ruled. The Soviet Union
was far stronger than Israel and the injustices of its policies greater.

But unless an example was made of Israel other countries would follow.

They would learn that injustice paid. It was inherent in all men to covet
the goods of others. Unless the temptation was corstrained, the just would
suffer. Envy was a contagious disease. The only answer was a categoric

remedy which would end the attempts to inflict injustice.

Turning to the Rapid Deployment Force, Shaikh Zaid said that friends
should always respond to the needs of friends. The weak needed the strong
and vice-versa. But the Rapid Deployment Force, as it had been presented,
seemed to be unjust interference. If it was sent in the absence of a
request, the action would be no better than the policies of the Soviet
Union and of the Israelis. It would be an unjust act. It should only be

used in response to needs and if a call for it had been made. The UAE

/ were anxious




were anxious that their friends in the United States and in the West should
not force friends in Asia and Africa to run away from them. At a2 time when
the enemy was increasing in strength, the needs of friendship were great.

Friends had to be sensitive to each other's requirements.

The Prime Minister said that she knew the Americans were thinking only

in terms of being ready to respond to a request for help from any part of
the world. The question was not one of imposing anything on anyone but of
responding to sudden requests. She agreed that friends must be prepared
to help each other in practical ways. She believed that HMG could do so
by the supply to the UAE of the Hawktraining aircraft. She said this not
because the plane was British but because it was the best of its kind in
the world. Moreover, the British had a long and excellent record in the
training field. It mattered to Britain that we should be able to supply
this aireraft to the UAE. It mattered to the Government and to British
industry. She put her personal authority behind the aircraft. She would

not be doing so unless it was an outstanding piece of equipment.

Shaikh Zaid thanked the Prime Minister. He and the Prime Minister
then withdrew for a tete-a~-tete discussion. The plenary meeting ended
at 1150.

23 April 1981
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SAVING WASHINGTON R | el Y
FOLLOW ING FROM GRAHAM, PRIME HINISTER'S PARTY.

RIYADH TELNO 1C TOo FCo: PM’S YVISIT To SAUD| ARABIA

1. ON 21 APRIL THE PRIME MINISTER VISITED THE KING FAISAL
AIR ACADEMY AND HAD TALKS, SEPARATELY, WITH THE MINISTERS
OF THE NATIONAL GUARD (ABDULLAH), DEFENCE (SULTAN) AND INTERIOR
(LALF), L
2. WITH ABDULLAH THE DISCUSSION TURNED MAINLY ON TYE WORK OF THE
VAR IOUS BRITISH MISSIONS, AND THE PROSPECTS FOR THE MEDICAL
FROJECT (SANGMED). ABDULLAH, OVER=RULING HIS STAFF, SAID
THERE WERE NO PROBLEMS ARISING QUT OF THE WORK OF THE
MISSIONS SEMI COLON AS FOR SANGMED ALL THE DIFFICULTIES HAD BEEN
CLEARED UP, EXCEPT FOR ONE QVER JURISDICTION (THE LAST POINT
AT THE PROMPTING OF H!IS OFFICIALS)., IT WAS AGREED THAT OFFIC~-
IALS SHOULD LOOK AT THIS URGENTLY AND THE PRIME MIMISTER SAID SHE
WOULD TAKE A PERSONAL INTEREST. REFERENCE WAS ALSQO MADE TO TANK
_FRESENTATION. CONCLUDING THE MEETING, ABDULLAH MADE A STRONG
PITCH FOR THE RECOGNITION OF THE PLO, A THEME WHICH HAD CLZARLY BEEN
COORD INATED,

2. THE MEETING WITH SULTAN LASTED AN HOUR. HE REFERRED TO WHAT

THE FM HAD SAID ABOUT TORNADD THE PREVIQUS: SAUDI ARABIA WELCOMED
THIS. THERE WAS DISCUSSION OF HAWK TRAINER AIRCRAFT, SULTAN SAYIMG
THAT SAUDI ARABIA 'WAS STUDYING VARIQUS AIRCRAFT AND WOULD WANT

To EUY THE BEST FOR THE NEXT STAGE OF ITS FLYING TRAINING PROGRAMME,
dE WAS ASSURED THAT THE HAWK IS THE BEST. HE WAS NON=COMMITTAL
ABOUT THE RENEWAL OF THE MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING., IN

CENERAL HE COMPLAINED THAT BRITISH PRICES WERE TOO HIGH AND

ERITISE NEGOTIATIONS TOoO INFLEXIBLE. THE PM ASKED HIM TO LET

HER KNOW OF PARTIZULAR PROBLEMS,

4, THERE FOLLOWED A DISCUSSION OF THE ARAB—ISRAEL QUESTION. SULTAN
TOOK A VERY CRITICAL LINE ON CAMP DAVID AND SADAT PERSQNALLY,
WHOSE POLICIES AT HOME AND ABROAD HAD ALL FAILED. CAMP DAVID
SHOULD BE RENOUNCED. SAUD| ARABIA TRUSTED MR HAIG ON THE OTHER
HAND AND HOPED HE WQULD PREVAIL QVER QTHERS IN WASHINGTON.
WASHINGTON, EG DICK ALLEN, WHO HAD OBJECTED TO THE SALE TO

SAUD! ARABIA OF AWACS AND EQUIPMENT FOR THE F15S, SHOULD BE

TOLD THAT '’WINTER WAS COMING WHEN THE US MIGHT NEED THE olIL’’.
THE PRIME MINISTER REPLIED THAT WE ALL NEEDED THE US AMD COULD
NCT FIND AN ALTERNATIVE IN THE SOVIET UNION. SADAT WAS A

LEADER AND EGYPT WAS SURRQUNDED 3Y ENEMIES. THE TASK OF PEACE-
MAKING WHICH HE HAD STARTED WAS NOT COMPLETE: WE COULD NOT IN
ANY CASE UNDO WHAT HAD BEEN DONE AND IT DID NOT HELP TO ALLOT
ELAME. WE NEEDED TO GET ALL WORXING TOGETHER FOR A SOLUTION
WITHOUT PRE-CONDITIONS., PERES MIGHT EE MORE FLEXIELE THAN BEGIN
EUT HE WANTED TC NECGOTIATE WITH KING HUSSAIN WHO WQULD NOT BE

WILLING TO ACT %ITHOUT THE OTHER ARAES.
4 x CONFIDENTIAL /5. SULTAN




S« SULTAN SAID HE HAD ?RIEFé%mE?E§§EE$%EOUT THE PROJECTED YAR
NAVAL BASE. THE ESTIMATED COST WAS SAID To BE £25 MILLION.

THE BRITISH SHOULD AGREE IT ALL WITH TRz YEMENIS: IF THE LATTER
THEM CAME TO SAUDI ARABZIA FOR HELP, THEY WOULD BE REALY TO

CONTR |BUTE FUMDS WITH OTHERS INCLUDING THE UAE AND BRITAIN.

THERE HAD BEEN RETENT CHANGES IN TEE YEMEN] MILITARY COMMAND AND
I8 THE GOVERNMENT WHICH WERE FAVOURABLE. HE ADVISED US TO APFRGACH
THE YEMENIS AGAIN,

F. THE PRIME MINISTER TOLD NAIF THAT SOLUTIONS TO THE PROBLEMS

OF THE REGION WERE URGENTLY MEEDED. SHE WAS HOPEFUL THAT DUR ING
REAGAN’S PRESIDENCY PROGRESS MIGHT BE POSSIBLE. NAIF STRESSED THE
IAPORTAMCE OF RECOSMISING THE PALESTINIANS' RIGHTS INCLUDING THEIR
RIGHT TO INTERNAT!CNAL RECOGNITION. THE PRIME MINISTER SAID

THAT THEIR RIGHT TO SELF-DETERMINATION WAS RECOGMISED AND NOT IN
UBT. THE PROBLEM WAS HOW TO ACHIEVE IT. TO PROVIDE A E2ASIS

FOR NEGOTIATION HOWEVER THE RIGHT OF ISRAEL TO EXIST EEHIND

SECURE BORDERS HAD ALSO YO BE RECOGNISED — AS SET OUT IN SECURITY
COUNCIL RESQOLUTION 252 AMPLIFIED IK THE VENICE DECLARATION.

7. NAIF SAID THERE WERE 30,C0C PALESTINIANS [|M SAUD| ARABIA,
LIKE ANY OTHER FOREIGNER THEY WERE SURJECT TO RESTRICTICNS AND
LEFTISTS WERE EXCLUDED. ONE HAD TO RECCGNISE THAT SOME HAD EEEN
FORCED To TAKE TO TERRORISM IN DESPERATION OVER THE PALESTINIAN
QESTION. |IF THE WEST CHANGED THEIR VIEWPQINT, MOST, PERHAPS
ALL, WOULD TURN AWAY FROM TERRQRISM., !N REPLY TQ A QUESTION,

HE SAID THAT THOUGH INDIVIDUALS MIGHT CONTINUE WORKING WITH
INTERNATIONAL TERRISTS, THE ORGANISATION WOULD NOT.

8. THE PRIME MINISTER RAISED THE SECURITY OF OFFSHORE INSTALL=-
ATIONS. NAIF SAID HE WAS STUDYING THE PRELIMINARY REPORT ANT WOULD

EE SENDING A SAUD! TEAM To THE UX., THE PRIME MINISTER WELCOMED
THIS,

9. THE PRIME MINISTER THANKED MA|F FOR HIS UNDERSTANDING AND
HELP QVER BRITISH SUBJECTS WHO 60T INTO TROUEBLE IN SAUD! ARABIA,
MENTION ING TWO WHO HAD BEEN FIVE MONTHS IN DETENTION WITHOUT
CHARGES, AND CHRISTIE VWHO WAS PREVENTED FROM LEAVING THE
COUNTRY. NAIF SAID HE HAD TO FOLLOW THE LAW BUT WQULD LOOK INTO
THESE CASES., BRITAIN QUGHT TO BRIEF BRITISH SUBJECTS BEFORE
THEY CAME TO SAUD| ARABIA. IN RETURN HE HOPED WE WOULD COQPERATE
WITH THE SAUD| AMBASSADOR OVER ANY DIFFICULTIES SAUDIS MIGHT
ENCOUNTER IN BRITAIN, THE AMBASSADOR SAID THAT THERE HAD REEN
MO PROBLEMS DURING HIS TENURE. HE PUT TO NAIF HOWEVER THE NEED
To GRANT MULTIPLE RE=ENTRY VISAS TQ BRITISH SUBJECTS RESIDENT IN
SAUD! ARABIA. MAIF SAID HE WOULD PURSUE THAT WITH THE MFA,

MESSAGE ENDS.

FCO PASS SAVING WASHINGTON
ROBERTS [PASSED SAVING AS REQUESTED]
ggg/“HITEELLL
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NOTE FOR THE RECORD

NOTE OF SPEECHES BY THE RSAF AIR COMMANDANT AND THE PRIME MINISTER
AT THE END OF HER VISIT TO THE ACADEMY

The Commandant said that the Academy produced 80 per cent
of RSAF pilots and was now in the process of an ambitious
modernisation programme to keep up with change. He praised
the contribution of the British Aerospace and BAC staff and
instructors for their fruitful contribution to the modernisation
programme and their hard work and dedication.

After presenting the Prime Minister with the Academy's
plague and its gold medal and chain, Mrs Thatcher said that it
was a great privilege to visit the Academy and she had been
impressed with everything she had seen. Not least impressive
was the quality of the mtake and the way they learnt and
mastered English, and the care taken at every stage to ensure
that each graduate had mastered the subject before moving on
to the next phase. She had stopped and talked with a number
of the intake and was very impressed with their response.

The UK was very happy to be associated with the Academy

Not only did we have superb professionals but also superb

aircraft. We were proud to have a share in the task of
training RSAF pilots. She added:

"we do not know what they may have to undertake.

But what we have seen is a supremely able trained,
skilled, experienced and disciplined force. When
you lave those gqualities you have the very qualities
that are needed to do anything that may arise and to
which you may have to react extremely quickly, with
a combination of circumstances you may never have

met before.

"Congratulations to you all and thank you for the
wonderful work you are doing, not only in the defence

of Saudi Arabia but in the larger defence of the
free world."

i
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YISIT OF PRIME MIMISTER TO SAUDI ARABIA

1. THIS 1S A SUMMARY OF THE PROGRAMME, THE ATMOSPHERE AND THE.
MAIN SUBJECTS DISCUSSED. DETAILED RECORDS FOLLOW,

2. THE SAUD| WELCOME WAS WARM AND FULLY REKQECTED THE HIGH
ESTEEM IN WHICH MRS THATCHER (S HELD BY THE ROYAL FAMILY AND
SOVERNMENT. SHE MADE A COURTESY CALL ON KiNG KHALID AT WHICH

HE WAS UNUSUALLY RELAXED AND TALKATIVE. SHE WAS THEN ENTERTAINED
TO DINNER BY HIM, ALL THE OCTHER GUESTS (APART FR2M THE V!SITORS)
BEING PRINCES AND MINISTE®S, ON THE SECOND DAY THERE WAS AN
IMPRESSIVE PRESENTATION OF THE THIRD DEVELOPMENT PLAN BY THE
MINISTER OF PLANNING, A VISIT TO A HOSPITAL, THREE BRITISH
COMMUNITY FUNCTIONS, A LARGE DINNER WITH THE CRCVIN PRINCE AND A
VISIT TO A GROUP OF ROYAL LADIES. THERE WERE ALSO"TWO SESSIONS
OF TALKS WITH THE CROWN PRINCE AND A TEAM INCLUDING PRINCE
ABDULLAH (SECOND DEPUTY PRIME MINISTER AND COMMANDER OF THE
MATIOMAL GUARD) AND PRINCE SULTAN (MINISTER OF DEFENCE). ON

THE THIRD DAY THERE WERE A VIS!T 'TO THE AIR ACADEMY, SUCCESSIVE
TALKS WITH ABDULLAH, SULTAM AND MNAIF (INTERIOR) AND A PRESS
CONFERENCE., :

3. WITH FAHD THERE WAS A W!DE-RANGING REVIEW OF CURRENT
INTERNATIONAL 1SSUES: GULF SECURITY AND RDF, PALESTINE,

THE SOY!ET THREAT, THE SUDAN, THE TWO YEMENS, AND (FROM FAHD)
SOMAL1A, LIBYA AND POLISARIO., FAHD®S EXPOSITIONS WERE ON
FAMILIAR LINES AND LITTLE WAS SAID THAT HAS NOT BEEN SAID BEFORE.

4o THE P.M. TOOK ADVANTAGE OF THE TALK OF YAR TO MENTION THE
NAVAL BASE PROJECT. FAHD ASKED IF WE HAD PREPARED ANY COSTINGS
(ANSWER: NO) BUT OTHERW)SE MADE NO COMMENT ON IT EXCEPT ABOUT
SAUDI ANXIETY TO AVOID FURTHER SOVIET ENCROACHMENT. IN.
RENERAL HE SEEMED RATHER SANGUINE ABOUT YAR READINESS TO RESIST
SOVIET ADVANCES,

5« ON THE SUDAN THE P.M, MENTIONED THE SUDANESEZ NEED TO
TRAIN MORE PILOTS AND (QUIETLY, SO AS TO AVOID .THE APPEARANCE
OF TOUTING FOR BUSINESS) THE POSSIBLE SALE OF STRIKEMASTER.
THE INTERPRETER SPOILT THIS PLOY BY FAILING 7O TRANSLATE THE
STRIKEMASTER POINT.,

fe THE P.M. THEN RAISED TORNADD, SAYING THAT THOUGH THE SAUDIS
MIGHT NOT MEED A NEW AIRCRAFT FOR SOME YEARS, THEY SHOULD XNOW
OF THE POSSIBILITY OF A JOINT DEVELOPMENT OF A NEW AIRCRAFT




st

OF THE POSSIBILITY OF A JOINT DEVELOPMENT OF A NEW AIRCRAFT
BASED ON TORNADC BUT TAILORED TO CUSTOMERS’ REQUIREMENTS. JORDAN

‘I’HU SOME GULF COUNTRIES HAD ALREADY EXPRESSED INTEREST. FAHD
TOOK NOTE BUT MADE NO COMMITMENT., THE P.M. ALSC MENTIONED OUR
WISH TO SELL HAWK WHICH WAS THE MOST SUITABLE AIRCRAFT FOR RSAF
TRAINING,

*

7. FINALLY, THE P.M, TALKED OF THE ANGLO-FRENCH BID FOR ARABSAT,
STRESSING THAT IT WAS WHOLLY EUROPEAN AND, IF SUCCESSFUL, COULD
BE A SYMBOL OF EURG-ARAB CO-CPERATION, :

8, ABDULLAH WAS IN A MERRY MOOD, THOUGH THIS DID NOT PREVENT HIM
MAKING THE RITUAL PCINTS ON ARAB-ISRAEL,

ON SANGCOM HE SAID ALL DIFFICULTIES HAD BEEN SETTLED, THANKS TO
SAUDI FLEXIBILITY. ON SANGMED, WHEN THE P.M, ASKED WHETHER A
DECISION TO AWARD THE CONTRACT WAS NEAR, HE SAID THERE WAS ONLY
ONE PROBLEM REMAINING: JURISDICTION AND IMMUNITIES FOR THE BRITISH
TEAM ( SEPARATE TELEGRAM TO MOD). HE WELCOMED THE FORTHCOMING
PRESENTATIONS OF THE CHALLENGER AND VALIANTSWANKS, THE P.M,
CONGRATULATED HIM ON HIS MED!IATION BETWEEN JORDAN AND SYRIA. -

9. PRINCE SULTAN, TOO, SPOKE AT LENGTH ABOUT ARAB/!SRAEL AND

(WITH SOME HEAT) ABOUT PRESIDENT SADAT AND THE WRONGHEAD=

NESS OF CAMP DAVID. (WHEN 1| SAW HIM OUT, AND AGAIN AT THE AIRPORT,
HE EXPRESSED ANXIETY LEST HE HAD BEEN TOO BLUNT. BUT HE SAID HE
HAD ENJOYED THE P.M’S FRANKNESS AND THE DING=DONG OF THE
ARGUMENT,) THE P.M. BROUGKT HIM .BACK TO SPECIFICS. HE HAD .DONE
SOME RESEARCH OVERNIGHT ON THE YAR NAVAL BASE AND SAID HE HOPED
WE WOULD PURSUE THE IDEA SEMICOLON SAUDI ARABIA WOULD PROBABLY

BE ABLE TO HELP BUT ON THE BASIS OF YAR/UAE/SAUDI/BRITISH
CO~OPERATION: SAUDI ARABIA WOULD NOT FINANCE THE WHOLE PROJECT..
ON HAWK HE SAID THE SAUDIS WERE STILL STUDYING WHAT TRAINING
AIRCRAFT WOULD BEST SUIT THEIR REQUIREMENTS. ON TQRNADO, HE
WELCOMED THE P.M’S EXPLANATION OF OUR PLANS FOR DEVELOPING A NEW
GENERATION AIRCRAFT BASED ON TORNADO TECHNOLOGY BUT DESIGNED TO
MEET THE NEEDS OF OTHER POTENT)JAL USERS BESIDE OURSELVES. HE LiKED
THE IDEA OF A JOINTLY PRCDUCED EUROPEAN AIRCRAFT BUT GAVE NO

COMMI TMENT .,

1%, FINALLY, PRINCE NAIF (INTERIOR) THANKED THE P.M. FOR OUR REPORT
ON THE SECURITY OF OFFSHORE OIL INSTALLATIONS ‘AND HOPED THE MATTER
CouLd BE TAKEN FURTHER. HE DID NOT ASK FOR A FURTHER VISIT BY

OUR EXPERTS BUT VOLUNTEERED THAT HE MIGHT WANT TO SEND HIS OWN

MEN TO SEE THE MEASURES WE HAD TAKEN IN THE SAME FI1ELD,.

THE PoMs THANKED HIM FOR HIS HELP OVER CONSULAR CASES AND ASKED




THE P.M. THANKED HI™ FOR HI1S HELP OVER CONSULAR CASES AND .ﬁ.sxsr,.
HiIM TO LOOK INTO TwWO OR THREE PARTICULAR CASES ON WHICH | WOULD
SEND HIM DETAILS, HE READILY AGCREED, WHILE POINTING OUT THAT

SAUD| LAW MUST BE OBSERVED. HE ASKED, AND THE P.M, AGREED, THAT

WE SHOULD TREAT WITH UNDERSTANDING SAUDIS WHO GOT INTO TROUBLE IN
THE U.K. THROUGH IGNORANCE OF OUR LANGUAGE 0OR CUSTOMS.

FINALLY, THE SAUDI AMBASSADOR ASKED HIM TO AUTHORISE. THE |SSUE

IN LONDOMN OF MULTIPLE-ENTRY VISAS TO SAUDI ARABIA AND HE AGREED TO
WORK SOMETHING OUT WITH THE MFA. THERE WAS YET ANCTHER PASSAGE

ON ARAB/ISRAEL.,

11. THE HOSPITALITY WAS LAVISH AND THE ARRANGEMENTS EFFICIENT,
THOUGH WITH SOME TYPICALLY NERVE~-WRACKING MOMENTS OVER TIMING.
THE ATMOSPHERE WAS CORDIAL AND ! JUDGE THAT THE SAUDIS WERE

|MPRESSED, ON SPECIFIC BILATERAL DEALS, THERE WERE NO PROMISES.
ONLY TIME WILL TELL WHETHER THE P.M’S ADVOCACY WILL AFFECT THE
DECISICNS, MOST OF WHICH ARE STILL SOME WAY OFF IN THE FUTURE.

FCO PLEASE PASS TO SAVING ADDRESSEES

CRAIG

NAIN




RECORD OF A CONVERSATION BETWEEN THE PRIME MINISTER AND
PRINCE SULTAN, MINISTER OF DEFENCE AND AVIATION AT RIYADH ON
TUESDAY 21 APRIL 1981 AT 1100 HOURS

Present:

Theé Prime Minister Prince Sultan
The Hon. Douglas Hurd, CBE, MP Shaikh Mohammad Mas'ud
Sir John Graham, KCMG Shaikh Nasser Mangour

Sir James Craig, KCMG
Sir Ronald Ellis
Mr. T.P. Lankester

Air Training and the Hawk

The Prime Minister said she had been very impressed by her

visit to the King Faisal Air Academy. It was one of the best

she had seen, and she had been extremely impressed by the
Academy's Commander. He had spoken to her about their aircraft
for advanced training, and she understood that they wanted to buy
the Hawk. She was sure that the Saudi Government would want the
best advanced trainer, and she was sure the Hawk was the best.

She hoped it would find favour with them. The excellent relation-
ship between teachers and cadets had also made a strong impression
on her. This seemed to be indicative of the approach adopted by
the British and Saudi Governments; she hoped it would continue.
We attached great importance to the air training contract. She
understood that it came up for renewal in 1982, and that a

RAF team would be visiting Riyadh in May for detailed discussions:

she hoped that the contract would be renewed.

Prince Sultan said that the Academy Commander was very good:

the Prime Minister's visit was a good omen for him since he was being
promoted to Inspector General in the Ministry of Defence. He

hoped that the Prime Minister would visit the new Academy south of
Riyadh on her next visit. He agreed that the RAF personnel and

the Saudis. had achieved an extraordinary relationship. The

question of a new trainer was being considered: they were looking

/ at ‘the




at the different options and would select the best. They
looked forward to the visit of the RAF team in May to discuss

the training contract.
Arab/US Relations

Prince Sultan recalled that when he had last met the Prime

Minister in 1976, she had predicted that President Carter would

win the election. She had said that he would be elected because

the American people were looking for a new approach. The Watergate
scandal had had a bad effect not only on America but also on
America‘'s friends. The authority of the President had been

curtailed and that of the Congress strengthened.

Prince Sultan went on to say that President Carter's Camp
David initiative had spoilt America's relationship with the
Islamic world. With the election of President Reagan, it was
possible for the Americans to change their Stance; and he hoped
that the UK would do its best to persuade the Administration.

The Prime Minister said that we were in close touch with the new

Administration. She was glad that they had won the election,
and she knew Reagan and Haig well. We would be in touch with
them on a closer basis than under the last Administration, and she
would be writing to them herself to let them know the results

of her visit to Riyadh.

Prince Sultan said that the Saudis would be very grateful

if she would do this. He then said that Haig had put out a state-
ment today refuting a statement by Richard Allen to the effect
that the delivery of extra equipment for the F1l5s and of AWACs
(the present ones were only on loan) would be delayed by

Congress. He was glad that Haig had done this. He felt that
Allen had a certain tendency to favour Israel. He himself had
sent Allen a message via an intermediary that the Congress must
approve the equipment deliveries: it was in America's interest

since it needed adequate oil supplies for the coming winter.

The Prime Minister wondered whether Allen had not been

misrepresented. She agreed that we should try to influence the
Americans in a positive way in their general approach to the
Middle East. But we all needed the USA if the cause of freedom

was to be protected. Prince Sultan said that he agreed with the

/ latter point;




latter point; but the Americans could not ignore Arab

dignity. The Prime Minister said that if anyone was looking

for personal dignity, he would not look to the Russians.

Prince Sultan said that the Arabs had other possible friends

in the West besides the Americans.

The Prime Minister went on to say that the most important

thing Haig seemed to have learnt from his recent visit to the
Middle Bast was that the problem of Gulf security could not
be looked at in isolation from the Arab/Israel problem. BHe
now seemed to understand that you could not solve the one

problem without solving the other. Prince Sultan said that

Haig seemed to be under attack from the Jewish lobby. He
hoped that he would manage to keep his position in the
Administration: he was a friend of Saudi Arabia. The

Prime Minister said that we had great confidence in him.

He knew more about defence matters, including those affecting
the Arab world, than any previous Secretary of State. He was
more likely therefore to find solutions that would stick.
Arab/Israel

The Prime Minister went on to say that the assassination

attempt on President Reagan was a tragedy, for a number of
important decisions would be held up pending his full
recovery. But it would be a few more weeks ; i.e. until
after the Israeli elections - before any progress could be
made on the Arab/Israel problem. If Peres were to win,

as we thought he would, there seemed to be a better chance of

re-starting the negotiations. Prince Sultan said that, in his

view, the situation would be no different whether or not Peres
was elected. Both he and Begin had the same policy. The
important thing was for the West to change its view, and

bring pressure on Israel to be more flexible. The Prime
Minister said that Begin had been quite inflexible and
impossivle to influence. By contrast, Peres seemed to realise
the need for a more flexible approach and for a re-start of
the negotiations. 'Ihe Americans wanted to negotiate with

Hussein. But we had told them that Hussein woula not

e
negotiate on his own but would do so only in concert with

other Arab countries.
/Prince Sultan
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Prince Sultan said he agreed. Saudi Arabia did not

want another Sadat. The Prime Minister said she was a greav

admirer of Sadat: she admired him for his courage and doing
at he thought was right; moreover he was surrounded 0y

countries. (Sir John Graham interjected that Sudan

abe

hostile to BEgypt). ZXrince Sultan said that Sadav

certainly had courage in relation to the Americans, and

this was admirable. t in relation to lsrael, his position
left much to be i What he had done might have
satisfied tai .eotions of the international community;
but the esconimic sjituati T éh Egypt was very bad, and his
policy in ! YAR ' iua only listened to the advice

of his moderate Arab friends, he might by now have reached

a satisfactory settlement with Israel. Only three days

1re

before going VO Jerusalem, he had visited Riyadh and had
been advised to find a joint ar proacu with other Arab states;
aken no notice. ¢/° Qo missed a golden
for economic co-operation with other Arab
states. For example, the proposal for the Arabd Organisation of
Industry(AOI), which would have been set up in Egypt, had
not come to fruition. Sadat should now renounce his deeds
and come back to his Arab friends and start aéﬁff' Saudi
Arabia and other Arab states would have been/too glad To
co-operate in finding a joint solution to the Israel
roblem. The Camp David accord, which Sadat claimed to

be a victory, had achieved nothing.

The Prime Minister said that there was no point in

trying to allot praise or blame. The prime objective was
to find a solution, and we all had to start from where we

were now, J1f anyone tried to set prior conditions, there
he repeated that she liked Sadat:

would be no solution.
a stubborn man out she liked stubborn people.
leaders, if they could be persuaded to work with

poweriul allies. Prince Sultan said that he

sonal grudge against sadat, but his metinods
it was not always the case that

made into good allies.

/Tornado




The Prime Minister said that she had raised the question
of the Tornado and its possible development for Arab needs
with Prince Fahd the previous day. She had mentioned it

that the Saudi authorities should know about it

:
Chancellor Schmidt raised the subject during his forth-

coming visit. She was confident that we could persuade
Schmidt to release the Tornado'‘s existing technology for

the development of an advanced version.

Prince Sultan said t hat he and his colleagues were

pleased to hear that the UK was proposing to develop the
Tornado with a view to building an advanced version in the
1990s: they would wholeheartedly support our eiforts in

this direction.

/Problems with Contracts
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SUMMARY NOTE OF A DISCUSSION BETWEEN THE PRIME MINISTER and
PRINCE ABDULLAH, COMMANDER OF THE NATIONAL GUARD, IN RIYADH,
ON 21 APRTIL 1981 AT 1015.

After an exchange of courtesies, the Prime Minister said that

she hoped the British Military Mission to the National Guard had
been carrying out its task successfully. Prince Abdullah
said that it had.

Prince Abdullah said that he had had a long list of issues
that he had wished to discuss with the Prime Minister- But in
the event these had mostly been dealt with the previous day.
Clearly, the Prime Minister's presence in Riyadh had helped.

It had enabled the Ambassador to move things forward. The

Prime Ministe asked whether there were any problems. Prince

Abdullah said that all problems had been eliminated. If others
had developed, he did not know of them.

The Prime Minister asked whether this meant that everything

been dealt with in the SANGMED negotiations. She knew it

near to completion. Prince Abdullah confirmed that this was

-\case. He had had it on his list before, but the difficulties

been taken care of.

On being pressed, however, Prince Abdullah said that there
might be two small points. He summoned Shaikh A ziz who
confirmed that there were no differences on principles. The

Prime Minister asked whether the difficulties about jurisdiction

had been cleared up. Shaikh Aziz said that there could be a

difficulty here. The Prime Minister said she was aware of the

problem, and would look into it when she got home. She asked

when a reply was due. Shaikh A ziz said as soon as possible.

The Prime Minister said that she attached great importance to

the SANGMED contract, and would ensure that everything possible

was done. Prince Abdullah said that those who committed crimes

against Saudi law should not have immunity. In reply to a question

from the Prime Minister, Sir Ronald Ellis said that only three

team commanders would have full immunity. The remainder of the

overseas employees would have a lesser degree of immunity.

/ The
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The Prime Minister said that the experts should sort that out,

but we would want to stick to accepted international practice.

The Prime Minister asked about SANGCOM. Prince Abdullah

said there were no more problems. Everything had been taken
care of. The Saudi Government had considered the Prime Minister
as their guest, and had therefore tried to eliminate all outstanding

issues. The Prime Minister welcomed this, and agreed that she

and Prince Abdullah should not now try to find problems.

The Prime Minister referred to the British presentation of
tanks which would be taking place early the following week.
She hoped that it would be successful. Prince Abdullah agreed.

The Prime Minister congratulated Prince Abdullah on the

success of his mediation between Syria and Jordan. The British
Government had been very worried about the growing tension
between the two countries. They regretted the increase in
Soviet influence in Syria, and had been disturbed by the fact
that President Assad's position did not appear to be very secure.
They were therefore grateful for what Prince Abdullah had done.
Prince Abdullah said that he had done no more than his duty.

Prince Abdullah said that the principal danger to the
security of the Middle East was not the Soviet threat, but Israel.

Once the problems with Israel had been solved, the Communists

would be deprived of the opportunity to cause trouble, If HNMNG

were to recognise the PLO, this would have a considerable effect

throughout the region.

The Prime Minister thanked Prince Abdullah for the clarity

with which he had presented his points, and for the hospitality

with which he had received her.

The meeting ended at 1040.

21 Aprils- 19815




GR1240

CONF IDENT IAL

FROM RIYADH 210657Z APR 81

TO PRIORITY F C O

TELEGRAM NUMBER 10 OF 21 APRIL
INFO PRIORITY JEDDA, BONN

INFO SAVING WASHINGTON

PRIME MINISTERS TALKS WITH THE CROWN PRINCE.

1. THE PRJME MINISTER HAD TWO MEETINGS WITH FAHD ON 20 APRIL,
EACH OF ONE AND A QUARTER HOURS. HE WAS ACCOMPANIED BY
PRINCES ABDULLAH AND SULTAN, BY RASHAD, PHARAON, MAS'UD,

THE SAUD| AMBASSADOR IN LONDON, AND TWO OTHERS. ON OUR SIDE
THE MINISTER OF STATE, PRIVATE SECRETARY, SIR JOHN GRAHAM AND
| WERE PRESENT. ES s

2. THE PRIME MINISTER OPENED BY EXPLAINING THE BACKGROUND TO
WHAT SHE HAD SAID IN THE STATES ABOUT A BRITISH CONTRIBUTION TO
A POSSIBLE RAPID DEPLOYMENT FORCE, MAKING THE POINT THAT WE

HAD DECIDED ABOUT A YEAR AGO TO IMPROVE OUR CAPABILITY FOR THE
RAPID DESPATCH OF MODEST FORCES TO AREAS WHERE THEY MIGHT BE
NEEDED, IN RESPONSE TO REQUESTS FROM OUR FRIENDS. THE AMERICANS

WERE NOW THINKING OF THE SAME THING THOUGH ON A MUCH LARGER
SCALE, AND IT HAD SEEMED RIGHT TO CONTRIBUTE TO THIS EFFORT,

AS A MATTER OF PRUDENT CONTINGENCY PLANNING FOR USE IN RESPONSE
TO REQUESTS. FAHD REPLIED THAT HE HAD NO DOUBT THAT THE PRESS
REPORTS WERE EXAGGERATED: SAUD! ARABIA HAD ALWAYS BEEN SURE

THAT THE SITUATION HAD BEEN AS THE PRIME MINISTER HAD DESCRIBED.
THERE WAS A CLEAR NEED FOR SUCH AN EMERGENCY FORCE FOR USE IN
RESPONSE TO REQUESTS,

3. FAHD THEN INITIATED A LONG DISCUSSION OF THE ARAB/ISRAEL
QUESTION, HE EMPHASISED THE NEED FOR THE RETURN OF THAT PART

OF JERUSALEM OCCUPIED BY THE ARABS UP TO 1967, AND FOR THE
REALISATION OF THE PALESTINIANS' LEGITIMATE RIGHTS INCLUDING

THE RIGHT TO RETURN TO THEIR HOMELAND, IF THEY WISHED, AND TO
CHOOSE THEIR OWN DESTINY AFTER ISRAEL! WITHDRAWAL. NEITHER OF
THESE PRINCIPLES WERE NEGOTIABLE. EQUALLY CLEARLY ISRAEL DID
EXIST IN THE AREA. THIS WAS A FACT WHICH IT WAS USELESS TO DENY.
HE URGED THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY AND BRITAIN IN PARTICULAR TO
TAKE ACTION TO ACHIEVE A SETTLEMENT ON THESE LINES. THE PRIME
MINISTER EMPHASISED THE INABILITY OF THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY
ALONE, WITHOUT THE U.S., TO ACHIEVE A RESULT, AND PRESSED

HIM TO USE HIS INFLUENCE WITH THE PLO SO THAT THE LATTER WOULD
MAKE A CONDITIONAL RECOGNITION OF ISRAEL'S RIGHT TO EXIST. /TURNING
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TURNING ASIDE AN ATTEMPT TO MOVE THE CONVERSATION ON TO OTHER
TOPICS, FAHD MADE TWO FURTHER POINTS: TO COUNTER THE COMMUNIST
THREAT THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY OUGHT TO RECOGNISE THAT THE ARAB
COUNTRIES NEEDED THEIR HELP IN ACHIEVING A SETTLEMENT OF THE
ARAB/1SRAEL QUESTION, AND AS AN [MPORTANT PART OF THAT,

THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY SHOULD RECOGNISE THE PLO. IN TALKING

TO SOME OF THE MORE PRO-SOVIET ARABS, SAUD| ARABIA HAD DIFFICULTY
IN ARGUING FOR CONTINUED COOPERATION WITH THE WEST, GIVEN THE
SOVIET UNION'S SUPPORT FOR THE ARAB COUNTRIES AND THE WEST'S
INDIFFERENCE. THE PRIME MINISTER SAID THAT WE COULD NOT DEAL
WITH THE PLO WHILE THEY CONTINUED TO SUPPORT TERRORISM, AND
THAT IT WOULD BE EASIER FOR US IF THE PLO COULD SAY THAT THEY
WERE READY TO NEGOTIATE PROVIDED THAT ISRAEL WAS WILLING TO
WITHDRAW.,

4. IN THE SECOND SESSION, IN THE EVENING, DISCUSSION COVERED
MOST OF THE REGION. THE PRIME MINISTER ASKED ABOUT THE YEMEN

ARAB REPUBLIC AND THE SUDAN, COMMENT ING THAT WE WERE I[N
DISCUSSION WITH THE YEMEN! AUTHORITIES ABOUT A PLANNED NAVAL
BASE, AND SHOULD LIKE TO SEE THAT BUILT IN COOPERATION WITH THE
WEST RATHER THAN WITH THE SOVIET UNION WHOM WE BELIEVED WERE

ALSO EAGER TO BE INVOLVED. AS FOR THE SUDAN, THE INTERNAL
SITUATION WAS NOT TOO GOOD, AND THEY WERE THREATENED FROM EAST
AND WEST. IF THE SOVIET UNION WERE TO PENETRATE THERE, IT WOULD
BE VERY SERIOUS. WE HAD A PARTICULAR INTEREST BECAUSE THEY

WERE cous;ntp|ns BUY[NG STRIKEMASTER AIRCRAFT

5. IN REPLY, FAHD SAID THAT THE YAR NO LONGER SEEMED TO BE
LEANING TOWARDS THE SOVIET UNION. THE REAL PROBLEM IN THAT

AREA LAY IN THE PDRY. AS FCR THE NAVAL BASE, SAUDI ARABIA WOULD
WELCOME ANY STEP TAKEN BY' A FRIENDLY COUNTRY IN HELPING THE YAR.
HE WONDERED WHETHER WE HAD ANY FIGURES FOR THE COST YET.

(HE WAS TOLD THAT IT HAD NOT YET BEEN COSTED.) THE PEOPLE OF y
THE YAR WERE NOT INCLINED TO THE LEFT, ALTHOUGH THERE WERE SOME
RADICAL ELEMENTS DATING FROM THE TIME OF NASSER AND THE PDRY
HAD STIMULATED THE so-caLLth NAT |ONAL DEMOCRAT IC FRONT WHICH

. SAUD| ARABIA'S POLICY WAS TO HELP THE PRESENT YAR GOVERNMENT
WITH AID (THEY HAD A PROJECT BUREAU IN SANAA AND THEY PAID
THE YAR'S BUDGET DEFICIT) AND TO PERSUADE THEM THAT SAUDI ARABIA
WAS DISINTERESTED AND A GENUINE FRIEND., NEVERTHELESS THEY
CONTINUED TO BUY SOVIET ARMS WHEN THEY COULD HAVE ARMS FROM THE
U.S. PAID FOR BY SAUDI ARABIA. SIMILARLY, ALTHOUGH WITH
GREAT CAUTION, SAUDI ARABIA WAS STUDYING THE QUESTION OF
WOOING THE PDRY AWAY FROM THE SOVIET UNION THROUGH A JUDICIOUS
PROGRAMME OF AID. SOVIET ACTIVITIES THERE HAD DONE NOTHING
TO IMPRORVE THE LOT OF THE PEOPLE AND THE SAUDIS BELIEVED THAT
THROUGH DEVELOPMENT A1D THEY MIGHT BY ABLE TO BRING HOME TO

THEM THAT THE SOVIET UNION WAS ACTING SOLELY FOR 178 OWN ENDS. /o mgrg
CONFPIDENTIAL -
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6. THIS LED FAHD INTO A TOUR D'HORIZON. SPEAKING OF SOMALIA AND
KENYA, HE CLAIMED TO HAVE TRIED TO BRING BARRE AND MO| TOGETHER,
BUT WITHOUT SUCCESS. IN THE SUDAN, HE AGREED THERE WAS A

DANGER IF THE RUSSIANS WERE TO INFILTRATE. SAUDI ARABIA GAVE SOME
ASSISTANCE BUT PERHAPS NOT ENOUGH, GIVEN THE SIZE OF THE COUNTRY:
NIMEIRI REALISED THAT THE SOVIET UNION, TOGETHER WITH ITS
FRIENDS, LIBYA AND ETHIOPIA, WAS ITS ENEMY, BUT THE REAL
DANGER TO THE SUDAN WAS INTERNAL. HE WAS CONCERNED THAT LIBYAN
SUPPORT FOR THE POLISARIO WOULD AGGRAVATE THE PROBLEM,

AND ALSQ ABOUT QADHAF1'S ADVENTURES IN CHAD. IN LEBANON THE
SITUATION WAS VERY DISCOURAGING, AND HE HOPED THAT SOME SORT OF
SOLUTION COULD BE FOUND. FINALLY PAKISTAN WAS A VERY

IMPORTANT COUNTRY WITH PROBLEMS IN ITS RELATIONS WITH INDIA

AND AFGHANISTAN AND WITH THE CHALLENGE IT PRESENTED TO RUSSIAN
POWER. SAUDI ARABIA WOULD HELP PAKISTAN, BUT THE PRINCIPAL

BURDEN THERE WAS THE REFUGEES.

7. THE PRIME MINISTER RAISED TORNADO. EXPLAINING THAT SHE

WAS GIVING HIM THE BACKGROUND IN CASE CHANCELLOR SCHMIDT OR
SOMEBODY ELSE WERE TO MENTION THE MATTER, SHE SAID THAT IN
RESPONSE TO INTEREST EXPRESSED BY SOME OF OUR FRIENDS IN THE
GULF AND BY KING HUSSEIN, WE WERE LOOKING AT THE NEXT
GENERATION OF AIRCRAFT DEVELOPED FROM THE TORNADO. IT WOULD BE
DESIGNED TO MEET NOT ONLY OUR OWN NEEDS, BUT THE NEEDS OF
OTHER POSSIBLE USERS. SINCE IT WOULD CONTAIN TECHNOLOGY
DEVELOPED FOR TORNADO AND THE TORNADO'S ROLLS ROYCE ENGINE,
WHICH WAS A JOINT PROJECT WITH THE FRG AND ITALY, THE

AGREEMENT OF THESE TWO COUNTRIES WOULD HAVE TO BE OBTAINED,
WHICH WAS WHY WE HAD APPROACHED THEM. IN THE MEANTIME THE

PRIME MINISTER HOPED THAT THE HAWK TRAINER WOULD BE ADOPTED

BY THE RSAF. IT WOULD MAKE AN |IDEAL REPLACEMENT FOR THE
STRIKEMASTER. ; F WL e

8. FAHD THANKED HER FOR THE EXPLANATION. HE WOULD PREFER
IT THAT GULF STATES SHOULD BUY FROM FRIENDLY COUNTRIES.

9. FINALLY, THE PRIME MINISTER URGED THE FRANCO/BRITISH BID
FOR THE ARABSAT PROJECT, STRESSING THAT IT REPRESENTED A
WHOLLY EUROPEAN EFFORT. FAHD MADE NO COMMENT.

FCO PLEASE PASS INEG" AND INFO SAVIN@ ADDRESSEES.

CRAIG (PASSED SAVING AS REQUESTED]
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[TEXT]
Following from Graham, Prime Minister's Party.

Riyadh telno 10 to FCQ: PM's vidit to Saudi Arabla

1. On 21 April the Prime Minister visited the King
Faisal Air Academy andhad talks, separately, with the
Ministers of the National Guard (Abdullah), Defence
(Sultan) and Interior (Naif).

2. With Abdullah the discussion turned mainiy on the
work of the various British missions, and the prospeets
for the medical project (SANGMED). Abdﬁllah, over-
ruling his staff, said there were n& problems arising
out of the work of the missions; as for SANGMED all
the difficulties had been cleared up, except for one

over jurisdictidn (the last point at the prompting
of his officials). It was agreed that officials
should look at this urgently and the Prime Minister
said she would take a personal interest. Reference
was also made to tank presentation. Concluding the

meeting, Abdullah made a strong pitch for the




*

_recognition of the PLO, a theme which had clearly
been coordinated.

’ The meeting with Sultan lasted an hour., He
referred to what the PM had said about Tornado
the previous day: Saudi Arabia welcomed this,
There was discussion of Hawk trainer aircraft,
Sultan saying that Saudi Arabia wag studying
various aircraft and would want to buy the best
for the next stage of its flying training pro-

gramme. He was assured that the Hawk is the best,.

He was non-committal about the renewal of the
memorandum of understanding. In general he
complained that British prices were too high and
British negotiations too inflexible. The PM

asked him to let her know of particular problems,
4. There followed a discussion of the Arab-Israel
question, Sultan took a very critical line on
Camp David and Sadat personally, whose policies

at home and abroad had all failed. Camp David
should be renounced. Saudi Arabia trusted

Mr. Haig on the other hand and hoped he would
prevail over others in Washington. Washington,

eg Dick Allen, who had objected to the sale to
Saudi Arabia of AWACS and equipment for the

F15s, should be told that "winter was coming w hen
the US might need the o0il". The Prime Minister

replied that we all needed the US and could not :
' £ind an alternative in the Soviet Union, ' Sadat | :

was a leader and Egypt was surrounded by enemies.
The task of peace-making which he had started

~

was not complete: we could not in any case undo
what had been done and it did not help to allot
blame. We needed to get all working together
for a solution without pre-conditions. Peres
migﬁt be more flexible than Begin but he wanted
1900670645 V& H 08 T-IE L1 DT I I 1005637964

to negotiate with King Hussain who would not be
willing to act without the other. Arabs.

5., Sultan said .he had briefed himself about the
projected YAR naval base. The estimated cost
was said to be £25 million. The British should
agree it all with the Yemenis: if the latter
then came to Saudi Arabia for help, they would
be ready to contribute funds with others

/ including

NOTHING TO BE WRITTEN IN THIS MARGIN




including the UAE and Britain. There had been recent changes in the
Yemeni military command and in the government which were favourable.

He advised us to approach the Yemenis again.

6. The Prime Minister told Naif sthat solutions to the problems of

the region were urgently needed. She was hopeful that durihg

Reagan's presidency progress might be possible., Naif stressed the
importance of recognising the Palestinians' rights including their
right to international recognition, The Prime Minister said that their
right to self-determination was recognised and not in doubt. The

problem was how to achieve it., To provide a basis for negotiation
however .the right of Israel to exist behind secure borders had alsp

to be recognised - as set out in Security Council Resolution 242
amplified in the Venice Declaration.

7. Naif said there were 30,000 Palestinians in Saudi Arabia. Like
any other foreigner they were subject to restrictions and leftists
were excluded. One had to recognise that some had been forced to
take to terrorism in desperation over the Palestinian question.

If the West changed their viewpoint:, most, perhaps all, would turn
away from terrorism. In reply to a question, he said that though
individuals might continue working with international terrorists, the
organisation would not.

8. The Prime Minister raised the guesxxen security of offshore
installations. Naif said he was studying the preliminary report and
would be sending a Saudi team to the UK. The Prime Minister welcpmed
this.

9. The Prime Minister thanked Naif for his understanding and help
over British subjects who got into trouble in Saudi Arabia, mentioning
two who had been five months in detention without charges, and Christie
who was prevented from leaving the country. Naif said he had to
follow the law but would look into these cases. Britain ought to
brief British subjects before they came to Saudi Arabia. In return
he hoped we would cooperate with the Saudi Ambassador over any
difficulties Saudis might encounter in Britain. The Ambassador said
that there had been no problems during his tenure. He put to Naif
however the need to grant multiple re-entry visas to British
HHEIHEEEGER subjects resident in Saudi Arabia., Naif said he would
pursue thatwith the MFA,

MESSAGE ENDS
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U”“"\ RY RECORD OF A VERS!/ Iﬂ“ BETWEEN THE PRIME MINISTER
AND HRH NAIF, MINIST )F THE INTERIOR, IN RIYADH ON
21 APRTL 1981 AT 1215

After an exchancge of courtesies, Prince Naif said that
= s’

the hopes of the Saudi Govermment for an early solution to
the dispute with Israel hinged on her visit, The Prime Minister
said that she agreed that the need for a2 solution was urgent

She hoped that it would be possible to achieve one during

the present United States Presidency, Prince Naif said

that the Prime mMinister's perseverance, decisiveness and speed
4 ’ -

of decision were well known. These characteristics made him
hopeful that 2 solution could be found while President Reagan
P

was in office. Lhe ime Minister said that it was going to
be difficult to work out any solution in full, The important
thing was to get negotiations started on the basis that each

side accepted the rights of the other. Prince Naif said that

the most important single issue was recognition of the richts
of the PIL0. (The interpretation was obscure at this point
and it may well have been that Prince naif was simply referring

to recognition of the PLO),

The Prime Minister said that the British Covernment agreed

the Palestinians had the right of self-determination. This

was not in question. The problem was how to hrinr matters to
the point where they conld exercise it. Tha would be the
subject of the negotiations. On the other side, it was clear
that Israel had the right to exist behind secure borders.

The issues had been set out in Resolution 242. This admittedly
did not go far enongh on the Palestinian question since it
treated the matter as a2 refugee issue. To that extent
Resolution 242 had been overtaken since all now accepted the

right of the Palestinians to self-determination.

Prime Minister asked how many Palestinians there
were in Saudi Arabia. Prince Naif said there were 30,000.

Agreeing that this was asmall number, he referred to the
restrictions placed on the entry into Saudi Arahia of anyone
whether Palestinian or not, thought to have leftist tendencies,
Most of the Palestiniang who worked both in Government and
in the priva‘e s performed well, Those who were
thought to be leftist were "discarded".

od . | / r[ﬁhe T’)I..ime T.1inLc"ter




The Prime Minister commented that those who were

excluded no doubt became troublemakers elsewhere.

was because of the failure
- young -
gtion that ? nﬁﬂle"tlnlanﬁ had

e
taken up t risn 'he failure of European Governments andof

to .
the United States to press for just treatment for the Arabs
had driven the to adopt extreme courses. The Prime

Minister asked whether the PLO would give up terrorism if

negotiations got under way. Prince Naif said that he md no

doubt that if the West changed its stanee and pursued a
solution, the majority of Arabs and Palestinians would desist

from entering terrorist organisations. The Prime Minister

asked whether the PIO would stop training other terrorists.
Prince Naif said that the PLO would stop but that one or

two individuals might carry on.

Offshore o0il installation

The Prime Minister said that the earlier British report

on the defence of offshore oil installations had only heen

a preliminary one. We now wished to follow up with an expert
report based on fuller analysis than had been previously
possible. This had been mentioned by the Secretary of State
for Defence during his visit to Riyadh, Prince Naif expressed
regret that he had not been in Riyadh during Mr, Nott's visit.
He had seen the preliminary report and thought it contained
many constructive points. The Saudi Government were now
thinking of sending 2 team to pursue the matter in the United
Kindom, "he Prime Minister said they would be very welcome.

We would ensure that they were given a full picture of how
we defended our own dffshore installations,

British subiects detained in Saudi Arabia

The Prime Minister thanked Prince NWaif for the under-
standing way in which he had dealt with some individual case:
of British citizens who had got into trouble in Saudi Arabia,
There were still one or two outstanding problems, notably
two who had been detained without charge and Mr, Christie.
Having mentioned the matter, she proposed to leave it to the

/ Ambassador




Ambasgador to follow the mat
Py

J

ime Minister his word that

atanding cases and give them top priority.

there would be certain aspects of the casew

investigated further. He would discuss T matter witl

Embassador. The Prime Minister said she was very grateful.

Princ

commented that while he would spare no
1

e
effort, the egal system had to be adhered to. The

law must _be observed There might therefore be a2 case for

an "awareness" campaign sponsored by the British Government
to make people coming to Saudi Arabia aware of the laws and
customs there so that they did not get into trouble through

ignorance. The Prime Minister undertook to bear this

sugge=tion in mind,

Prince Naif also said that sometimes Saudi wvisitors

to London got into trouble through ignorance of the language
and customs of the country. On occasion it was difficult
for the Saudi Ambassador to sort matters out. Would the
British Government use s good offices to facilitate the

T

Ambassador's work? The P3 Minister said that we would

certainly do so. ©h red to a recent case where a police
officer in Oxford hs n suspended from duty following an

incident involving

The Saudi Ambassador in London ralsed the quection of
multiple entry visas for British businessmen to Saudi Arabia,
Prince Naif said that in future British businessmen would be

issued with multiple entry visas valid for six months.
Invited by Prince Naif to raise any further problems affecting

his work in TLondon, the Saudi Ambassador said that there were

none,

The meeting ended at 1245.

21 April 1981
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TO IMMEDIATE FCO

TELNO 137 OF 21 APRIL 1921

AND TO IMMEDIATE MOD ( FOR DEFENCE SALES )
INFO IMMEDIATE TO BONN,

(NFO PRIORITY JEDDA

SAVING INFO WASHINGTON

FOLLOWING FROM GRAHAM, PRIME MIN|STER'S PARTY,

E}at}

RIYADH TELNO 133 - PARA 7 31 TORNADC

1. PRINCE SULTAN TOLD THE PRIME MINISTER ON 21 APR{L WHEN THE

TOPIC CAME UP BRIEFLY, THAT PRINCE FAHD HAD BEEN GRATEFUL FOR THE
EXPLANATION GIVEN BY THE PRIME MINISTER THE PREVIOUS DAY. SAUDI
ARABI A WAS HAPPY THAT THE UK WERE THINKING OF A NEW DEVELOPMENT FROM
THE TORNADO, THEY WHOLE-HEARTEDLY SUPPORTED THE IDEA., THE PRIME
MIN|STER SAID THAT WE HOPED TO BE ABLE TO PERSUADE CHANCELLOR
SCHMIDT TO AGREE TO THE RELEASE OF TORNADO AND ROLLS ROYCE
TECHNOLOGY FOR THE NEW AIRCRAFT,

2. THE PRIME MINISTER WOULD LIKE SIR J. TAYLOR TO SPEAK TO
CHANCELLOR SCHMIDT'S OFFICE, DRAWING ON THE TUR GENERALLY, BUT
WITH PARTICULAR REFERENCE TO TORNADO, SUBJECT TO YOUR VIEWS,

HE SHOULD SAY THAT WE HAVE EXPLAINED TO THE SAUDIS, THE CROWN
PRINCE AND PRINCE SULTAN, OUR LATEST THINKING ON A DEVELOPMENT

OF TORNADO, AS DESCRIBED IN SIR Je« TAYLOR’S LETTER TO THE
CHANCELLOR : THAT WE ENVISAGE TH!S AS A NEW ENDEAVOUR BASED

ON CONSULTATION WITH PROSPECTIVE PURCHASERS AT THE DESIGN STAGE 1
AND THAT THE INTEREST IN THE AIRCRAFT SEEMS TO COME PRINCIPALLY
AT THIS STAGE FROM SOME OF THE GULF STATES AND JORDAN. THE SAUDIS
HAD WELCOMED THE IDEA, IT IS STILL EARLY DAYS AND THE SUBJECT MAY
NOT COME UP IN SCHMIDT’S TALKS WITH THE SAUDIS 3 BUT IF IT DOES,
WE HOPE HE WILL FEEL ABLE MERELY TO TAKE NOTE OF SAUDI INTEREST

( ON THE ASSUMPTION THAT HE WILL NOT FEEL ABLE TO GIVE FRG
AGREEMENT STRAIGHTAWAY ) AND TO AVOID COMMITTING HIWMSELF TO

A REFUSAL.

3. PLEASE REPEAT TUR TO BONN.

FCO PLEASE PASS SAVING WASHINGTON
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EXTRACT FROM THE PRIME MINISTER'S PRESS CONFERENCE

Rivadh - 21 April

Q. (Nick Moore, Reuters)
You have said what a fine aircraft Tornado is =

indeed discuss that aircraft?

PM. The point with the Tornado is this - one is already
considering the next generation of aircraft for about ,the
1990s. The days are jone when we can design aircraft justd

for the use of the British Air Force. And indeed we already

have s ome collaborative arrangements as in the Tornado with
si

the Germars and Italians. We now have toconsider designing

I

an aircraft for wider use. What we are considering is the next

c
generation after the Tornado, designing it not only for
European use but also for use in other areas. FYor that
purpose, we need to use two or three pieces of technology
in Tornado. We need to get the co-operation on design at
outset. That is the point as far as Saudi Arabia is
concerned about the next generation following the Tornado
using some of the technology of the Tornado. It is a new

departure for Britain todesign with wider uses in mind.

;nqéaffgfgg.13 Press Office and Private Office (tTo
pase on to Press Office MOD and RCO)
Sir Ronzald Ellis
Mr. Alexander
Mr. Ilngham

PS/Mr. Hurd
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VISIT OF PRIME MINISTER TO SAUDI ARABIA, APRIL 1981

MEETING WITH PRINCE ABDULLAH, 21 APRIL 1981

MEDICAL SERVICES PROJECT (SANGMED)

SUPPLEMENTARY BRIEF

1e We understand from our private sources of information that

Prince Abdullah has got agreement in principle from the Council of
Ministers for a government-to-government arrangement for the provi-
sion of his medical services project. In addition we understand he
has indicated to his officials that they should start final
negotiations with the UK.

24 Over the last 12 months our negotiators have had many protracted-‘
discussions with the National Guard on their requirements. They
thought they had reached general agreement on draft documents which
would form the basis of the inter-govermmental agreement. These
discussions had thrown up a number of sticking points. Our position
on each was set out last November during a meeting between HMA Jedda
and the Assistant Deputy Commander, Sheikh Abdul Aziz Al Tuwaijri (T1).
Points not cleared at the meeting were the subject of a letter of

25 November 1980 from HMA (Annex) which set out our position on each
point. Although there was no formal response, we understood that

the National Guard was content with our answer as in December 1980

our negotiators were told by Sheikh Tuwaijri that the Guard intended
to divide the project between two countries, one of which would be UK.
3. Tihe K team returned earlier this month at the invitation of

the National Guard to start final negotiations but were surprised to
find that the leader of the Guard's team, another Sheikh Tuwaijri (T2),
took the line that the points raised at the November meeting were

still issues between us and described our negotiators as inflexible

CONFIDENTIAL
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because they could only stand by what was agreed at the November
meeting and by HMA's letter. The main points were:
8. Jurisdiction by HMG over the MOD team to be established
in Saudi Arabia to monitor the project. Our position was
accepted by T1 at the November meeting.
b. Confidentiality of contract between HMG and the prime
contractor.
T2 regards our position on these as an affront to Saudi sovereignty.
There were several other points raised at the time, all of which
are still am issue in his eyes.
4. It is characteristic of T2 to behave like this. He does not
like taking decisions yet has strong personal views on the sticking
points. We are worried that his reports to T1 and thus to Prince
Abdullah will colour their views on our attitude to the project.
Furthermore, this arid argument could continue for some time and
lead to a deterioration in the atmosphere which up to now has been
cordial and understanding.
5e Our negotiators were asked by T2 to return as soon as possible
with a more flexible approach and complete authority, by which he
means willingness to agree all his conditions. They returned on
Sunday 19 April for a further meeting, but clearly this is unlikely
to produce a satisfactory outcome, and the sooner the problems are
brought to Abdullah's attention the better.

6. The Prime Minister is therefore recommended to raise this with

Abdullah along the lines of the existing brief (PMVK(81)4) and to

add:

CONFIDENTIAL
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"Concerned to learn that some matters of policy we thought

had been explained satisfactorily still seem to be an

issue between our negotiators. Like to assure HRH that

the proposals presented by our negotiators fully reflect

HMG's policy in all respects after the most careful

consideration.”
The aim is to stimulate Abdullah to call for a report on the progress
of the negotiations and to correct any impression that we are not

being flexible.

Ministry of Defence

April 9181

CONFIDENTIAL
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‘His Excellency : i
-Shaikh Abdul Aziz sl Towaijiri
‘Deputy -Coxmarnder - .
Saudi iresbian National Guard

W (2‘( l‘.’oven;bar 1980

. 2 A o & 3

Your Excellency, ;
- -kt our recent meeting I promised thst Eer Fejeaty's
Government would give furtnsr consideration ts the differ-
-ences which we were not atle to resolve. A

& The first point wes your desire to have access to the

terms snd conditione of the- corntract pleced by Her Majesty's
Government on tne Contractor. A4s we have previously
‘explained, it is Her Majesty's Governmert's long established
practice to observe the confidentiality of ‘the contracts it
‘places on its contractors. Foreover, in eonsiZering the
‘National Guard Medical Services rroject we have taken great
care over z period of time to select a group consieving of tue
kost suitably qualified companies to undertske tDe reguirements
“0f the Netiomal Guerd. Her Malesty's Govermmert's prorosels
for participaticn in this project are, therefore, mede on tre
bssis of Ihe emrloyment of Internstional bBospitsle Croup (155,
end ite approved sub-cortrscitors. Her hajesty's Geverrment
understands the desire of the National Gnerd to particinate in
‘'this work and to this end has already indicsted its willinszecs
To &ssocizie the Netibnal Guard with the seliection of rotentisl
Bub-contractore, to IHG and the approved sub-contr-ctors.

In view of the gpeciel significance to both countries ci
this impcrrant jproject Her thejesty's Government heve reviesed
their policy carefully and believe that & wgsy could be found
Wittoul breaching it to provide after Bignasture of tre
principal contract such detezils sbout the arrangezertis negctiect
witt the Centracter as may be needed by the Naticnal Gusr? to
cemcenstrate that ‘he rrovisions of the contract reflect tre
requirements pleced on Her liajesty's Governmeat by the hMLU arnd
1L, and thereby fully to protect the haticnal Guard's icterss's

YU &lso asied me to c.rsider Her lajesty's Government's
position on the question of tre pe3siltle withdrewzl of the tesx
in the event of darper et & time of hoetilities in the light of
the srrenverente screed fnr the corzunications project. 1 keve
looked at thcse erranremeunts srd find thet they sre less helpiul
to the Nstionel Gusrd than vie existing UK proposal. This
proposel prevides for the cortinued operation of trhe medicel

services by the Contractor. 4he guestion of the withdrswel =£




the Teax, which consists of UK Government military and
civilian personnel, arises conly if both governments,
following ccnsultetion, consider that the dangerto the
Tear is such as to require its withdrawal to s place of
sefety. Iy government confirms that this proposal is
necessary beceuse it cannot in advance recuoire its
officisls to stay at tLeir posts regardless of any danger
involved. but I essure Your rxcellency thet the comsule
tation propcsed would be carried out in s spirit of
understanding end desire by both goverrments to arrive at
& mutusl acceptable ccurse of action.

You drew my attention to the wish of Her Majesty's
Governmert to make & two percent charge of the total
project costs to cover its sdc-inietrative expences. ‘“he
British Government will be devoting corsiderable resources
to the support of this project and is uneble to weive this

charge.
Yinally as regards the arrangements for the ccntinua-
tion of medical services in tune unlikely event of one of
the governrents ferminnting the MCU 1 an pleased to coufirn
that we sccept your suggestion of an 18 month period of
notice. :

I teke this opportunity to renew to Your Ixcellency oy

‘eoutinued resypect and co-opereiion.

F%:;grSL REFXvQ§h “?¢,¢4\ﬂ

JAMZYS CRLIG
HiM Ambassador
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TO IMMEDIATE FCO
TELEGRAM NUMBER 427 OF 21ST APRIL,198%
FOLLOWING FOR HEAD SAD FROM GRAHAM

UK/INDI AN TRADE PROBLEMS

4. THE INDIAN MINISTER OF COMMERCE RAISED WITH THE PRIME MINISTER
THE OLD PROBLEMS OF FOLKLORIC ITEMS, OPIUM AND TOBACCO (UK FIRMS
NOT BUYING INDIAN OPIUM OR TOBACCO), SHIPPING (CONFERENCE LINES’
RATES TOO HIGH BECAUSE THEY REFUSE TO MODERNISE METHODS. EG.
CONTAINERS) AND AFLATOXIN.

o, THE PM UNDERTOOK TO LOOK INTO ALL THESE ISSUES. ALL THESE ARE
OLD PROBLEMS® AND THE DOT WERE ACTIVE OVER THE FOLKLORIC ITEMS

ON MAUNDY THURSDAY (SEE TWO U/N CREDA TELS OF 16 APRIL TO DELHI). IN
EACH AREA, NO DOUBT, EITHER THE |NDIANS DO NOT HAVE A GOOD CASE, OR
ACTION MUST PROPERLY BE WITH THEIR EXPORTERS (TO | MPROVE MARKETING
QUALITY ETC) OR WiTH OUR BUSINESS FIRMS (EG. SHIPPING) .
NEVERTHELESS WE NEED TO SHOW WILLING. OUR IDEA IS TO SET UP A

SMALL WORKING PARTY TO GO INTO THESE QUESTIONS AND TO OFFER T0

COME OUT TO DELHI SOON ( ALTHOUGH THE OFFER TO VISIT ALONE MIGHT
HELP IN THE CONTEXT OF THE STEEL MILL). IF, FOR EXAMPLE, WE COULD
SAY TO THE INDIANS THAT, AS A RESULT OF THEIR REPRESENTATIONS TG

\R BIFFEN, THE UK I"PORTERS OF *'FOLKLORIC'' ITEMS HAVE NOW CLEARED
ALL THE 60ODS (EITHER BY TRANSFER TO THE QUOTA OR RE-EXPORT), WITH
THE EXCEPTION OF THREE (OR WHATEVER) WHOM WE ARE PROSECUTING FOR
FRAUD, THAT WOULD BE. SOMETHING. AS FOR TOBACCO AND OPIUM, | DOUBT
If THERE IS MUCH TO BE DONE {MMED| ATELY. BUT COULD WE OFFER UNDER
OUR AlD PROGRAMME TO PROVIDE CONSULTANTS IN THE PACKAGING AND
MARKETING FIELDS, A MAJOR DEFECT IN INDIAN INDUSTRY AS A WHOLE

) FAR AS | CAN SEE? OR UNDERTAKE TO ENCOURAGE A FIRM OPERATING

IN THAT AREA TO ENTER INTO A PARTNERSHIP WITH AN INDIAN FIRM?

ON SHIPPING WE OUGHT AT LEAST TO TALK TO OUR SHIPPERS TO FIND OUT
WHAT THE PROBLEM IS, FROM THEIR POINT OF VIEW. IT MAY BE THAT THE
DOT HAVE DONE ALL THESE THINGS, BUT | HAVE NO EVIDENCE.

3. THE PRIME MINISTER ATTACHES |MPORTANCE TO THE FOLLOW UP AND
YOU MAY THINK IT RIGHT TO INFORM THE PUS AS WELL AS ALAN

GOODISON. | SHOULD LIKE A REPORT ON 27 APRIL .
THomSonN
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F¥M FCO 211015Z APRIL 81

TO IMMEDIATE ABU DHABI

TELEGRAM NUMBER 130 OF 21 APRIL

AND TO IMMEDIATE MUSCAT

INFO PRIORITY BONN AND JEDDA.

FOLLOWING FOR ALEXANDER, PM'S PARTY. FROM MED

CHANCELLOR SCHMIDT AND SAUDI ARABIA

1. EMBASSY BONN HAVE SUGGESTED THAT BEFORE DEPARTING FOR
SAUDI ARABIA ON MONDAY, 27 APRIL, HERR SCHMIDT WOULD WELCOME
A BRIEF MESSAGE FROM THE PRIME MINISTER CONTAINING PERSONAL
IMPRESSIONS OF HER GULF VISIT: THIS IN ADDITION TO ANY REPORTS
RELAYED BY THE SECRETARY OF STATE WHEN HE CALLS ON CHANCELLOR
SCHMIDT ON THURSDAY (FCO TELNO 228 TO JEDDA). WED CONSIDER
THAT THIS WOULD BE HELPFUL IN PREPARING THE GROUND FOR NEXT
MONTH'S ANGLO-GERMAN SUMMIT.

2. A MESSAGE PREPARED AT THE END OF THE OMANI LEG (WHEN THE
PM WILL BE SUMMARISING HER IMPRESSIONS FOR JOURNALISTS) COULD
BE PASSED BY BONN TO THE CHANCELLOR'S OFFICE ON SUNDAY, 20 APRIL.
CARRINGTON

NNNN
DISTRIBUTION

LIMITED PS/LPS

MED PS/PUS

_WED _ MR BULLARD
NEWS DEPT MR J MOBERLY
PS MR FERGUSSON

e e, S ol 1

KRl Sasd W K ;r‘u\h




-

“RECORD OF A CONVERSATION BETWEEN THE PRIME MINISTER AND PRINCE FAHD,
DEPUTY PRIME MINISTER OF SAUDI ARABIA, IN RIYADH ON 20 APRIL 1981
at 1815

|
i

>

Present:

Prime Minister HRH Prince Fahd

The Hon. Douglas Hurd, CBE, MP HRH Prince Abdullah

HE Sir James Craig, KCMG HRH Prince Sultan

Sir John Graham, KCMG HE Shaikh Nasir bin Mangqur

Mr. M.0O'D.B. Alexander HE Dr. Rashad Pharaon
HE Shaikh Ma'moun al Qabbani
HE Shaikh Abdurrahman Mansouri

Prince Fahd said that these days of the Prime Minister's wvisit

were among the happiest during his time in the Government. He
saw them as an opportunity to try to reshape the basis of the
relationship between Saudi Arabia and the United Kingdom. If a
new bilateral accord could be developed, it would have an effect

on the international situation generally. The Prime Minister said

that she was greatly enjoying her visit.

Yemen Arab Republic (YAR)

As regards the content of this second discussion with Prince
Fahd, she wanted to touch briefly on some bilateral issues and to
talk about the situation in the YAR and in the Sudan, in both of

which countries there was the possibility of further Soviet

expansion. Friendly countries must not stand back. If they did

so, they would regret it. She knew of the Saudi Government's
generosity towards the YAR. However, the Soviets were also giving
aid. They had offered to build a naval base for the YAR Government.
If they were allowed to do so, it would radically alter the balance
of power in the region. Britain had carried out a study of the
issues relating to the construction of a naval base.

If there was to be such a base, Britain would like to be involved.
We were conscious that one could not interfere in the YAR. But
there would be a real reason for concern if the YAR went down the
same path as the People's Democratic Republic of Yemen (PDRY).

& :}!T'r!rwu .
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Prince Fahd said that he entirely agreed about the YAR.

Happily the Government there was no longer inclining so strongly
towards the Soviet Union. The Saudis had told them that it would
be against their interests to pursue such a course. The Government
of the YAR should study carefully what had happened in PDRY, where
the people were suffering under a leftist government. As regards
the naval base, the Saudi Government would welcome any step to
help in the way suggested which was taken by a friendly country.

If the Soviet Union were to do it, they would undoubtedly ensure
that they became well established with both men and equipment.

The Prime Minister said that the naval base study was a preliminary one

and had not been costed in any detail. Nor was it easy to

keep in touch with those responsible in the YAR. She was always
on the watch for possible new victims of Soviet subversion. She
hoped that it would be possible to strengthen those in the YAR who

were opposed to communism. Prince Fahd asked the Prime Minister

whether she was saying that if the Soviet Union built the base,
they would benefit from it and that there would be consequent

dangers to the area. The Prime Minister said that the construction

of the base by the Soviet Union would be a very regrettable
development. Prince Fahd said that he agreed that if the YAR

became a Soviet satellite, there would be considerable new dangers.

This would be true whether or not a naval base was built. The
majority of the Yemenis were opposed to communism. But there was

no reason for complacency.

Sudan

The Prime Minister said that anything that happened in a

country in the region affected all the others. The Sudan appeared
to be in deep trouble. President Nimeiri was not very well.

There was concern lest the country should have more trouble
internally and become de-stabilised. If this were to happen, it
would create difficulties for Egypt and for the region in general.

It was not for her to say what should be done, but she

knew the %Egan Government was seeking additional training facilities,
including / procurement of the Strikemaster aircraft. Anything

that could be done to help the Sudan would be of considerable

importance.

1) "ﬂi /_Tornado
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Tornado

The Prime Minister said that when Chancellor Schmidt wvisited
Riyadh shortly, he might well mention Tornado. She was well
aware that Saudi Arabia did not need Tornado at present but Prince
Fahd might find some background useful. The Tornado was a joint

Anglo/German/Italian project. All three countries had to agree

to any sale. There would beno difficulty with Italy about sales

in the Gulf area. The Prime Minister said that she hoped and
expected that an accommodation could be reached with the Federal
Republic. There were aspects of the technology in Tornado which
would be needed for the development of the next generation of
aircraft. As for a sale of the present aircraft, the release of

these aspects would also need the agreement of the German Government.

The Prime Minister said that Britain wished to develop a new
generation of aircraft based on Tornado for use in the 1990s.
We had had enquiries from friends in the Gulf about such an aircraft.
It would be designed not only for the British market but also in
consultation with our friends in order to meet their requirements.
Hitherto we had developed weapons systems for our own use and then
adapted them for sales overseas. Those days were gone. In
future we would have to design in conjunction with those interested,
weapons systems for wider use. We were already considering a
design based on Tornado. This wmﬁg%%ﬁz most advanced features of
that aircraft, notably the engine. The Prime Minister was
mentioning it now so that if any of our friends who were interested
in the aircraft mentioned it to Prince Fahd, he would be familiar
with the background. It might seem a long way ahead, but in

designing aircraft one had to think up to 10 years ahead.

Hawk

In the meantime, the Prime Minister said she hoped that the
Hawk aircraft might find favour with the Saudi Government. It
was more advanced than the Strikemaster already used by the Saudi
Armed Forces. Hawk was the most advanced training aircraft flying.

It was being adapted for a ground attack role.
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Arabsat

The Prime Minister said that there was an 2nglo/French bid
in for the construction of Arabsat. She understood that the
decision was to be made shortly. She only wished to make one
point. The European countries were frequently told that they should
not rely on the United States but should try to do things on
their own. The Anglo/French tender for Arabsat met this requirement.
It was a wholly European effort. The Prime Minister added that
British industry was now in better shape than it had been for a
long time. When British Aerospace had been de-nationalised
recently, the shares on offer had been over-subscribed. She hoped
that in future our bids for major contracts would be fully
competitive. If anything was being done that was not right, she

very much hoped that Prince Fahd would let her know.

YAR and PDRY

Prince Fahd said that the Saudi Government were following

events in both countries closely. They hoped to be able to do

the right thing vis a vis both of them. Their information was

that the PDRY had more military equipment than it could use. There
was also manpower present in the country from many communist states.
Sometimes he wondered who all this was to be used against. It

was well known that the PDRY was in part a base for the Soviet
Union. The latter would not be accumulating weapons in the PDRY
unless they intended to use those weapons to further their own

interests, eg against states of the Gulf and against Sudan.

The Saudi Government was therefore considering the best way

to make the PDRY less dependent on the Soviet Union. They were

thinking of proposing to the PDRY Government development projects

which would benefit the country's people, eg hospitals, schools,
roads and the like. This would point up the contrast between what
Saudi Arabia offered and what the Soviet Union offered. It would
show who were the country's friends and who were its enemies. The
Soviet Union of course was warning the PDRY against talks with
neighbouring governments. The argument used was that if the PDRY
took help from Saudi Arabia, the smaller country would become a
satellite. But neither the Soviet Union nor the PDRY Government

would in fact prevent the projects from being carried through.
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When Prince Fahd had seen the PDRY President, the latter had been

friendly and encouraging. He would now have to give proof of

his intentions. If he refused to agree to the projects, his
friendliness would have been shown to be mere words. If, on the
other hand, he agreed to allow the projects to go forward, it

would be clear that he had realised the gains to be won from
friendship with Saudi Arabia and the losses involved in associating
with the Soviet Union. Prince Fahd stressed that the Saudi
Government was approaching the problem with great care, watching

the reactions of those involved.

As for the YAR, Saudi Arabia gave a great deal of help. The
YAR Government knew that without this help, it could not achieve
even a moderate standard of living. Up until recently, President
Saleh had been suspicious of Saudi Arabia. He had been surrounded
by advisers who accused the Saudi Government of trying to interfere.
The Saudi Government had not denied the charge; they had preferred
to let the facts speak for themselves. The President had indeed
realised that the earlier accusations had been false. The activities
of the Democratic Front, which was connected with the PDRY, had

been exposed.

However, difficulties remained. Prince Fahd had met President
Saleh in Taif in the previous summer. The President had assured
him that the YAR would never become communist. He had said that
he would have nothing more to do with the Soviet Union. Prince
Fahd had advised him to get rid of his existing commitments to
that country, his Soviet advisers, etc. and to turn to the West.
Since Saudi Arabia had already bought and paid for arms and aircraft
for the YAR from France and the United States, it seemed pointless
to turn to the Soviet Union for arms for which the YAR would
itself have to pay. Inspite of his assurances, President Saleh
had already bought and paid for $250 million worth of arms from
his own budget. The value of the whole deal would amount to
$640 million. All this suggested that, inspite of Saudi efforts,
there were still elements close to President Saleh who were trying
to fuel his suspicions. They were arguing that the Saudi Government
expected something in return for what it had given. Nonetheless,
the Saudi Government intended to continue with its explanations.
There were signs that President Saleh had realised in recent months
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that his troubles came from the PDRY. The Saudi Government
intended to be consistent and to be cautious. They had had a
similar experience in Somali where it was only after two years'
effort that they had persuaded the Somali Government to distance

themselves from the Soviet Union.

Sudan

The danger to the Arabs and to Africa from a collapse in the
Sudan would be considerable. Saudi Arabia was giving the
Sudanese Government substantial assistance. But the Sudan was
a big country and the Government there was not, and had not been
for some time, a stable one. Fortunately President Nimeiri was coming
to realise that the Soviet Union was his principal enemy. His
efforts to create friendly relations with Ethiopia, whose
Government was of course pro-Soviet, seemed to have failed. It was
very important that friendly Governments should assist President
Nimeiri to ward off both the external and internal threats to his
Government. He faced numerous problems. The economic situation
in the country had deteriorated significantly, there had been a

recent coup attempt, and there was the crisis with Libya.

Somali

Prince Fahd said that the Saudi Government had been trying to

help Somalia both with project aid and with food. They had also

been active in an attempt to achieve a rapprochement between Somalia
and Kenya. If those problems could be cleared up, it would help

to stabilise the situation in East Africa. The Presidents of the
two countries had met in Taif last year at the invitation of the
Saudi Arabian Government to discuss their differences. But the
suspicions persisted. A member of the Somali Government had
recently told Prince Fahd that it might help to bring the two
Presidents together again. President Said Barre had said he

would think about it. He had so far not refused. The Saudi
Government still hoped that agreement between the two countries

would be possible.
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Tornado

Prince Fahd said he was grateful for the Prime Minister's
briefing. If Chancellor Schmidt raised the question, he would be
in the picture. It pleased him that the Gulf States were interested
in buying Tornado. He preferred them to make their purchases from
friendly countries. The Arabs lived in an area of turmoil but
with the help of friends like the United Kingdom and the United

States, he hoped that good solutions could be found.

Lebanon

Prince Fahd said that the situation in the Lebanon was very

discouraging.

Pakistan

The problem of Pakistan was both large and complicated. It
involved relationships with India, Afghanistan and the Soviet Union.
The immediate problem was that posed by the Afghan refugees. The
Saudi Government gave the Pakistan Government help in coping with

them. Prince Fahd understood the United States was reviewing its

policy towards Pakistan. He hoped they would adpot a better policy. If

Pakistan was strong, it could withstand a sudden attack for a
period until help arrived. A weak Pakistan would not be able to

do this. Prince Fahd said that he was always surprised by the fact
that India regarded Pakistan as a threat and an enemy. If there
were attempts by India to divide Pakistan any further, there would

be very serious problems.

North West Africa

Prince Fahd said that the attempt by the Libyans to create
a union between Polisario groups and Mauritania  yould create new
crises in North Africa and would result in a further deterioration
in the situation there. The CT181S yhich already existed as a
result of Libyan action in Chad was not to be taken lightly.
If Colonel Qadhafl got away with the intervention in Chad, he
would try his hand elsewhere. Everything he did was done at the

instigation of the Soviet Union.
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Conclusion

Prince Fahd said that all these matters were vital and

important. He was always pleased to discuss them. He hoped

that such discussions could continue in order that both countries
would be, as the Prime Minister had said, aware of danger before
it struck. The Prime Minister expressed her gratitude for the
time that Prince Fahd had devoted to talks. She said that she

agreed with much of what he had said.

The discussion ended at 1940 hours.
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CONFIDENTIAL

RECORD OF A CONVERSATION BETWEEN THE PRIME MINISTER AND PRINCE FAHD,
DEPUTY PRIME MINISTER OF SAUDI ARABIA, IN RIYADH AT 1215 ON 20 APRIL

Present:
Prime Minister HRH Prince Fahd
Rt. Hon. Douglas Hurd HRH Prince Abdullah
Sir James Craig HRH Prince Sultan
Sir John Graham HE Shaikh Nasir bin Mangur
Mr. M. Alexander . HE Dr. Rashad Pharaon
HE Shaikh Ma'moun al Qabbani

HE Shaikh Abdurrahman Mansouri

Prince Fahd welcomed the Prime Minister. The Saudi Government

was pleased that her visit, the first by a British Prime Minister,
was taking place. They knew the visit would be a friendly one;

they hoped that it would be constructive. The Prime Minister

thanked Prince Fahd. She was delighted with the cordial welcome
which had been extended to her. She had been particularly pleased

about her long discussions the previous evening with King Khalid.

The Prime Minister suggested that the discussion might start
with a review of world affairs. It was possible that, since they
had a different perspective, she and Prince Fahd would have slightly
differing views on one or other issue. Part of her purpose in
visiting Riyadh was to enable her to see preoblems as Prince Fahd
would see them. She hoped in this way to obtain a deeper
appreciation of any situation that might develop. She was
confident that her views and those of Prince Fahd on the necessity
of preventing further Soviet encroachment into the region would be

the same.
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Administration and her own were in general agreement on international

The Prime Minister said that she was happy that the new US

matters. There was now a closer accord between the US and the UK

than there had been for some time.

Rapid Deployment Force
The Prime Minister said that she understood that the Saudi

Government had been concerned about remarks attributed to her

relating to the Rapid Deployment Force (RDF). (Prince Fahd indicated
assent.) A word of explanation might therefore be in order. For
some time the British Government had recognised the need to create

a national force available to operate anywhere in the world if a
request for help was received. Such a force would have to consist

of men instantly available and properly trained. A British force

would, of course, have to beO? drelatively small scale. The British

Government had begun to make plans and commitments over a year ago.

Subsequently the US had had the idea of creating anRDF, on a
larger scale, for use to respond to requests for assistance. An
essential feature of the RDF would be that it should not be stationed
anywhere. It would consist of units prepared and earmarked
for rapid deployment. It was basically an aspect of contingency
planning. The Prime Minister had told the Americans that if they
decided to go ahead with the idea, Britain would like to make a

modest contribution.

There was an impression that some in Saudi Arabia and the
Gulf States had thought an RDF might be stationed in the Gulf
or be intended for use only in the Gulf. This was not so. The
situation was simply that if, when someone asked,if you had the means
to respond, you could do so. If you did not have the means,
you could not. In the modern world crises developed rapidly.

Prince Fahd said that some newspapers had indeed distorted

statements made about the RDF. But the Saudi Government had always
been confident that the situation was as described by the Prime
Minister.
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He accepted that there could be situations, in some parts of the

world, which required the creation of a force such as that envisaged

by the US and the UK. Statements, by Communist sympathisers and
those unfriendly to the Gulf States and to the UK and the US, suggesting
that the force would be stationed in the Gulf or would interfere there
were mere propaganda. An emergency force, earmarked to make

available help rapidly, only in response to a request and not to be
stationed in the Gulf, would be acceptable and welcome. The

Prime Minister added that the rr might be occasions when a small

British force would be more acceptable thar involvement ©f the US.
The latter would constitute a much more powerful signal. The
British Government were very conscious of the dangers of escalation
and of super-power confrontation. Prince Fahd indicated that

he had taken the point.

Arab/Israel Dispute

The Prime Minister asked Prince Fahd to describe how he saw

the security situation in the area as a whole. Prince Fahd

referred to the Arab Summits in Tunis and Amman, and to the Muslim
Summit in Taif. None of the resolutions taken at the Summits
had been directed at any one nation or group of nations.

The main topic at the first two Summits had been how to recover
for the Arabs their legitimate rights in the occupied territories
held by Israel. The Camp David decisions were discussed.
Although it was not the wish of any Arab that President Sadat's
initiative should fail, it was the unified view of the Arab
countries that the Camp David Agreements could not be approved.
They neglected two points: Jerusalem, and the legitimate rights
of the Palestinians to return to their homeland if they wished,
to decide their own destiny, and to have Israel withdraw from all
territories occupied in 1967. The Arab peoples were convinced
that their position on both points was legitimate and not for
negotiation. They did not believe any free country which

respected justice would object to either. Israel should be

pressed by the super-powers and by other major nations to accept them.
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The Saudi Government were convinced that a fair and just
solution had to be found to the 30-year-old conflict. The longer
it went without solution, the more crises it would give birth to,
and the more difficult it would be to solve. It had given the
Soviets a foothold in the region. It would enable them to spread
their influence further if a solution was not found. Any attempt
to solve the conflict on a basis which did not involve the
return of the Palestinians, the withdrawal of the Israelis from
the occupied territories, and an answer on Jerusalem - whether advocated

by the Europeans, the UN or whoever - would be a waste of time.

The Saudi Government understood that Israel did not wish these
issued discussed. It was as clear to the Saudi Government as
it would be to the Prime Minister that Israel did exist. It
was a fact which it was useless to deny. But Israel was not
satisfied merely to exist as an independent state. It was following
a policy of expansion and of occupying territory by force of arms.
Israel did not want a Palestinian State, did not want to give up
Jerusalem, and did not want to withdraw from the occupied territories.
Israel would not be convinced that it was mistaken unless it
was put under pressure by the international community. Failure
by the international community to exercise such pressure would
amount to acceptance of the doctrine that land could be acquired

by force. This would lead to disaster.

The Prime Minister said that she agreed with the last point.

She asked whether Mr. Haig had talked about the next steps during

his visit to Riyadh. The fact was that the problem could not

be solved without the US. There were still 3 or 4 months in which

to develop ideas since nothing could be done until after the elections

in Israel. (Prince Fahd indicated agreement.) Prince Fahd said

that Mr. Haig had not outlined any future programme. Perhaps he

wished to discuss the issues with President Reagan. The Prime Minister

said that in the light of the assassination attempt on President

Reagan, it might be a little time before new ideas were forthcoming.
Meanwhile, the Europeans were trying to analyse the problem
in more detail. They were trying to look at the real issues

involved in Jerusalem, etc. In fact, they had not yet got very far.
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Prince Fahd said that the Saudi Government considered the European

endeavour as a step forward. It seemed to him that it was one
which the US President and his Administration appreciated. iy
would make it easier for the President to deal with Congress.

The positive American attitude represented a change from that during
President Carter's period of office. It was only towards the end
of his Administration that President Carter had recognised the
European initiative as something which might strengthen his hand.
The European initiative was logical and reasonable. It was not
directed against Israel. It showed that the Europeans had recognised
the need to give the Palestinians the right to determine their

own future. It had unfortunately been clear ever since he took
office that Mr. Begin would not withdraw from an inch of occupied
territory unless he was put under pressure to do so. It was
therefore to be hoped that the US and Europe would decide to
follow an even-handed policy based on justice and according to the

Palestinians their legitimate rights.

The Prime Minister asked whether there was any hope of securing

a mutual and simultaneous recognition by the Palestinians and by
Israel of each others rights. She herself had said many times in
public, in relation to Israel, that no nation could hope for
recognition of its own right to exist in security if it denied
that right to others. The US could be relied upon to put the
argument to Israel. Who would do so to the Palestinians?

Prince Fahd said that he could not talk for the Palestinians.

But in his view, if the Palestinians were given freedom to return

to their homeland, and to determine their own destiny; if Jerusalem
were returned to its pre-1967 position; and if there were international
guarantees of the settlement, the PLO would be ready and willing to
recognise Israel's right to exist. The PLO were repeatedly asked

to give this recognition, but it was not made clear what they

were to be offered in return. If they made their major concession

without compensation, their position would be much weakened. 15

however, there was a possibility of meeting +the requirements he had

just summarised simultaneously, this would in his view provide a

good basis for a solution. If this seemed feasible, the Saudi
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Government would be prepared to discuss the matter with the

Palestinians in advance.

Prince Fahd said that he had been over this ground with Lord
Carrington during his visit last year, and had thanked him then
for the endeavours of the Europeans. If the Europeans were
prepared to accord the Palestinians their rights, this would be
much appreciated by the Arabs. He assumed that the US and Europe
wished to see the countries of the Middle East following policies
similar to theirs. One way to make this possible, and to limit
the scope for further Soviet encroachment, was to solve the crisis
with Israel. It was extremely difficult to convince Arabs that
they should wait until the problems of Soviet infiltration and
of the occupation of Afghanistan had been solved. The Arabs
wanted their own problem dealt with first. The adoption by the
US and Europe of a policy which would lead to a sensible solution

would result in early changes in the situation in Arab countries.

One important issue was the recognition of the PLO.

Accepting and dealing with the Palestinian leaders as the responsible

and moderate men - they were would make them more so. Prince Fahd
said that he personally wished, as did the Saudi Government, that HMG
could take up with the other Europeans the need for recognition

of the PLO. Arab feelings were hurt by the fact that European
Governments accorded Israel respect which they did not accord to

the Arabs and to the Palestinians. It would be better if both
Israelis and Arabs were treated equally. The Saudi Government found
in dealing with Arabs inclined to support the Soviet Union that

they had no counter to the argument that the Soviet Government

gave arms and recognised the rights of the Palestinians, while the
Western Governments did nothing. Prince Fahd therefore wished to
express, in the name of his Government, the hope that the UK

would adopt a different stance on the major Arab problem. What

was needed was a new look, characterised by even-handedness and

recognisable as such.

The Prime Minister said that the Europeans would continue their
work. It was difficult to carry forward specific ideas any further
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unless one had a clear idea of how they might be implemented.

Much remained to be done, but it would be done. On the PLO,

she said that HMG did not recognise the On%?ﬁjﬁtiogecause of the
terrorist activities of its extreme wing, and because it advocated
destruction of Israel. If the PLO could say that they would
accept a negotiated settlement if Israel withdrew from the occupied
territories, this would not undermine their negotiating position.
Acceptance of the settlement would depend on fulfilment of the
conditions. This sort of approach would provide a better basis
for progress. The Prime Minister also noted that the UK and

Pakistan alone had recognised the West Bank as belonging to Jordan.
At this point the discussion had to be broken off to enable
the Prime Minister to keep another engagement. It was agreed

that the discussion would be resumed later.

The meeting ended at 1330.
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THAT ALTHOUGH OTHER GUESTS HAVE BEEN INVITED FOR 1320, PRIME
* MINISTER HERSELF WILL NOT ARRIVE UNTIL 1339,

SHAIKH HAMDAN BIN RASHID, MINISTER OF FINANCE AND INDUSTRY,
WILL MEET THE PRIME MINISTER ON ARRIVAL AT DUBAI AIRPORT ARD
ESCORT HER AT THE TRADE CENTRE, CHAMBER OF COMMERCE RECEPTION
AND DHOW TRIP. (SHAIKH MOHAMVED BIN RASHID LEFT FOR JAPAN AND
USA ON 14 APRIL AND IS NOT NOW EXPECTED BACK BEFORE THE END
OF THE MONTH). : :

IT IS VIRTUALLY CERTAIN THAT THE WEIR WESTGARTH CONTRACT WILL
NOT REPEAT NOT BE READY FOR SIGNATURE ON THE 22ND.

ALL REPEAT ALL THE NO 1a OFFICIALS AND ALL THE ACCO“°'"\|”"
PRESSMEN HAVE BEEN INVITED TO SHAIKH RASHID®S DINNER ON THE
EVENING OF THE 22ND. IT 1S FOR CONSIDERATION, HOWEVER,

WHETHER THE NUMBERS SHOULD NOT BE LI™ITED, TO MINI#fSE DELAYS




(D) ALL REPEAT ALL THE N9 1g OFFICIALS AND ALL THE ACCOMPANYING
PRESSMEN HAVE BEEN INVITED TO SHA!KH RASHID® S" DINNER ON THE

EVENING OF THE 22ND. IT 1S FOR CONSIDERATION, HOWEVER,
WHETHER THE NUMBERS SHOULD NOT BE LIMITED, TO MIN|M|SE DELAYS
WHEN THZ WHOLE PARTY, RETURN TO BOARD THEIR AIRCRAFT.

2« | SHALL TELEGRAPH SEPARATELY TO ABU DHABI ONLY GUIDANCE ON C4R
ARRANGEMENTS FOR THE ARR|VAL IN DUBAI, DETAILS OF THE CHAMBER OF
COMMERCE RECEPTION AND A LIST OF THE 2¢ BRITISH RESIDENTS INVITED
TO MEET THE PRIME MINISTER AT MY HOUSE,

e SINCE UK~BASED STAFF IN ABU DHABI WILL HAVE HAD A CHANCE TO
"EET THE PRIME MINISTER AT THE QBP WHEREAS STAFF HERE WILL NOT,

| HOPE | CAN BE ALLOWED FIVE MINUTES TO PRESENT THE UK=BASED STAFF
AND WIVES (TOTALLING 12 PERSONS) |IMMEDIATELY BEFORE THE BUSINESSMEN® S
MEETING AT 1833,

HASKELL,




RECORD OF A MEETING BETWEEN THE MINISTER OF STATE AND THE SAUDI
FOREIGN MINISTER IN RIYADH AT 1530 ON 19 APRIL 1981

Present:

The Hon. Douglas Hurd, CBE, MP Prince Saud

Sir John Graham, KCMG Sheikh Abdul Rahman Mansouri,

Deputy Foreign Minister for
Mr. J.W.D. CGray Political Affairs
Mr., C.T.W. Humfrey

Sheikh Nasser Manqur, Saudi
Ambassador in London

Sheikh Ma'amoun Qabbani, Head
of Western Department, MFA

Prince Saud enquired about the Prime Minister's visit to

India. Sir John Graham said that the Prime Minister had conveyed
a message from President Zia saying that he wanted friendly
relations with India. Mrs. Gandhi had replied that she too wanted
friendly relations. But the Indians remained very suspicious of
Pakistan and were concerned about it being armed. Mr. Rao was

due to visit Pakistan the following month. And Mrs. Gandhi

did say that she thought the Pakistanis might now want peace.

But overall, we did not think that we had really made much headway

in persuading the Indians to take a more relaxed view of Pakistani

intentions. Prince Saud said that during his recent visit to

India the Indians had likewise queried with him the need for a
strong Pakistan. He had spoken of the Soviet threat to Pakistan

and had pointed out the difference in strength between Pakistan

and India which meant that Pakistan was no longer a threat to

India. It was doubtful how far the Indians accepted these
arguments. He had also told the Indians that other countries in

the region did not understand their attitude to the Soviet Union
since these countries all felt threatened by the Soviet intervention

of Afghanistan. If India did not reflect this in her policy then

these countries would inevitably be suspicious of India. Sir John

Graham said that the Indians maintained that their objective was
to secure a Soviet withdrawal from Afghanistan but held that
military pressure to achieve this would be counter-productive.
The Indians appeared to accept the Russian explanation for their

invasion at face value.

/Prince Saud




. Prince Saud said that India's relations with Bangladesh,

Sri Lanka and Nepal, which he had also visited, were not good.
The Indians were therefore feeling somewhat isolated and he hoped
that Mrs Thatcher's talks would have had an influence on their
thinking and led them to reassess their position. The
Bangladeshis were suspicious that the Indians wanted to assist

the return of the Awami League.

Prince Saud said that Mr. Haig, in his visit to Saudi Arabia,
had maintained that he did not believe that the US should station
troops in the region. The aim instead was to help their
regional friends. The Saudis had told the Pakistanis that the US
did not seem to be seeking commitments in return for its assistance,

but the Pakistanis were still afraid of this. Sir John Graham

noted that the US had given Pakistan just five days to make up
its mind on US assistance in order to fit in to the Congressional

timetable. This had proved impossible for the Pakistanis.

Asked about the Pakistani attitude to the Soviet Union over

Afghanistan, Prince Saud confirmed that the Pakistanis wished to

negotiate with the Russians. This was because they did not
believe when the chips were down anyone e¢lse would come to assist
them against the Russians. They thought they were in a period

of maximum danger from the Russians and considered, with some
past justification, that the Russians would use India to put pressure
on them. They were therefore playing for time in the belief that
the situation would improve in two or three years. The UK could
help to comfort the Pakistanis through its commitment to Pakistan.
Mr. Hurd said that we had tried to get closer to the Pakistanis
and also encourage the US to win the Pakistanis' confidence.

We thought that Pakistan, like the Gulf States, wanted a powerful
US but did not want an American presence on their soil.

Prince Saud said that Mr. Haig had stressed the US wish to

strengthen its economical and military ties and to develop closer
relations with Europe and its friends in the rest of the world.
The threat to the Gulf was, however, different to that of Pakistan
and the problem of cooperation with the US was also different

because of the US relationship with Israel. Sir John Graham

noted that the Pakistanis were also concerned by the US relation-

ship with Israel and Prince Saud agreed that this was so since
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.they feared that the US wanted a strategic grouping including

Israel, Egypt and Pakistan.

Sir John Graham noted that Mr. Haig had said firmly in

London that the Palestinian problem and the Gulf security problem
were inter-linked. We thought that the Americans realised the
importance of the Palestinian issue. Mr. Hurd pointed out that
they had nevertheless given us no idea of how they would tackle
the problem. Prince Saud said that the US did not want to make

any move before the Israeli election. When questioned, however,
the Americans were not clear as to what they would ask of an

Israeli Labour Government if it were elected. Sir John Graham

said that there was a significant difference between Begin and
Peres. Begin believed in Eretz Israel as a matter of principle
whereas Peres did not but rather sought security assurances in
relation to the West Bank. This difference allowed potential
scope for negotiation with Peres. Moreover, Peres was concerned
that Israel should not incorporate large numbers of Arabs and this
implied favouring an Israeli withdrawal. Prince Saud said that

it was true that the Israeli Labour Party wanted areas of Arab
population not to be included in Israel, but they saw them
becoming like South African Bantustans.

Mr. Hurd said that there were two possible ways forward that
the Americans might take. The first was to try another round of
Camp David talks, perhaps trying to agree something on Gaza first.
This would not be a real step forward. The second way, which we
were urging on them, was to move away and forward from Camp David
so that the Palestinians and other Arabs could be brought into
the peace process. In order to persuade the Americans to pursue
the second path there needed to be some movement on the part
of the Palestinians to accept Israel's existence, albeit
conditionally. Our aim in the next few months should be to produce
some PLO movement in this direction. Prince Saud said that the

Palestinians were being offered too small a return for such a step.
Why should they take it to achieve a headline in the New York
Times? The important thing was to change US policy so that the

US stated that a solution should be based on the 1967 borders
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.and on Palestinian self-determination. It was necessary for the

US to put pressure on Israel and for the Israelis to compromise.
Mr. Hurd said that what we were asking of the Palestinians was

a conditional move. Our problem, which had been illustrated
recently in Questions in Parliament, was that the Israelis were
able to point to, for example, a recent statement by Qaddumi

that the PLO would never accept Israel's existence. Mr. Gray
pointed to the importance of public opinion for US policy.

Prince Saud disagreed that public opinion in the US was a problem.

This was borne out by opinion polls which he had seen which
showed a greater understanding of Middle East issues. Sir John

Graham stressed that the PLO would not be making a major

concession by making a conditional statement. But Prince Saud
said that Palestinians could only accept such a step if the US

was to say that if they did so then the US would bring about a
settlement. The historical precedent was discouraging since
Jordan had accepted a conditional statement in 1967 in Resolution
242 but that had brought about no movement. The only way to
produce a movement in Israeli public opinion was through a change
in US policy. 1Israeli public opinion had swung against the policy
of settlements only after the US had made it clear that it was
opposed to them. Israeli public opinion reacted when it saw

that there was a price to be paid.

Mr. Hurd referred to the uncertain and deteriorating situation
in the Lebanon and asked about Saudi views. Prince Saud said
that the problem was the wide differences of view within Lebanon
itself. There was no consensus which would provide a basis
for a solution. 1Israel was a bad influence acting through the
Christian extremists. These extremists were destroying the
possibility of a solution by insisting on complete Syrian
withdrawal. Given memories of the Christian attacks on the
Muslim population in the past, the Syrians could not withdraw
until there was an agreement between the Christians and the
Muslims. The Phalangists were in a position to bring about such
an agreement but were not prepared to do so. If there was a
Lebanese consensus in favour of Syrian withdrawal then the Arabs
would back it.

/Mr. Hurd
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improving Syrian/Jordan relations. Prince Saud said that the

Mr. Hurd said that the Saudis had been very helpful in

reappearance of the missing Jordanian diplomat was a positive
development on which he hoped more could be built. Mr. Hurd
noted that when Mrs. Thatcher had seen King Hussein the King
was still apprehensive and sore about Syrian propaganda.

Prince Saud said that this soreness was justified. Recent

developments were hopeful but progress depended on political

will on both sides.

Mr. Hurd said that we were concerned about the finances
of UNRWA. Despite both the UK and Saudi Arabia having increased
their contributions to UNRWA its future seemed in jeopardy. He
asked how much the Saudis valued the organisation and whether

other Arabs could not do more to assist it. Prince Saud said

that the Saudi position was based on the view that the Palestinian
refugee problem was a result of the UN Resolution that created
Israel and therefore those countries who voted for it should

pay for the work of UNRWA. (It was noted that the UK had
abstained on the vote!). UNRWA should get its money from the

US, the Soviet Union and the other countries concerned. The
Saudis were willing to contribute but wanted UNRWA to do more

to make people in the countries concerned aware of the refugee
problem and the causes of it. They were willing to increase their
contribution to UNRWA further if this was done. He thought that
the other Arab states had in fact made significant contributions.
UNRWA should consider collecting money from the private sector

in Western countries in the way that other UN agencies did through
fund-raising activities. Mr. Hurd thought there might be
something in this.

/Sir John Graham
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Sir John Graham asked about the Non-Aligned Movement's

activity in seeking a solution to the Iran/Iraq war. Prince Saud

said that the NAM were trying to develop a working relationship
with the Islamic countries. The Saudis and others, however, had
strong reservations about this because of the Cuban role in the
NAM. They constantly argued that Cuba should not be considered

a non-aligned country and were concerned about the tendency to
alignment in the NAM. The NAM would not achieve any breakthrough
on the Iran/Iraq problem and they had not put any proposals to the
two sides. 1In Iran itself the growth of Khomeini's support for
Bani-Sadr was a new development but it remained to be seen
whether this was a real change or whether Khomeini was supporting
Bani-Sadr only to repudiate him later if he failed despite such

support. Khomeini was clever at keeping people in check.

Mr. Hurd asked about the fighting. Prince Saud thought that

the Iragis were more capable than the Iranians of mounting a spring
offensive. Mr. Hurd asked who had the best hope of finding a
solution to the conflict. Prince Saud thought that it would be

the Islamic countries working with Palme. They were able to talk

more frankly to the Iranians than anyone else. Sir John Graham

pointed to the danger that if the war dragged on the Russians
might be brought in. Prince Saud agreed and said that was why the

Islamic Committee had already presented a proposal to both sides.
They had now received comments on this proposal. But they were
still caught in the circle of which came first, the ceasefire and

withdrawal, or negotiations. At least both sides were still in

play.

Mr. Hurd asked about the situation in the Yemen and how

concerned we should be about it. Prince Saud said it remained

confused both in the north and the south. There were continuing
problems in YAR/Saudi relations though the YAR were now more aware
of the implications of purchasing arms from the Soviet Union - they
had found that they did not necessarily need these arms and the
terms on which they got them were worse than they had bargained
for. 1In the PDRY, internal repression and the Soviet presence

was continuing. Kuwaiti and UAE Ministers had just returned from

trying to persuade the PDRY to normalise their relations with Oman.




The outcome was not clear but publicly the PDRY appeared negative.
Mr. Hurd referred to the recent fighting which had taken place
inside the Omani border. The Omanis were concerned about this.
Sultan Qaboos had suggested to him last February that any steps
which countries might make towards the PDRY should be reciprocated
before they were taken any further in each case. Prince Saud asked
whether the UK was making any step and Mr. Hurd noted that we were
making a very small contribution to flood relief in the PDRY.

We would like to keep in touch with the Saudis about policy towards
the PDRY.

Mr. Hurd said that in the YAR we had been discussing the
building of a naval facility. The Yemenis still seemed uncertain
whether they wanted such a facility but we had sent out a team
who had prepared a report. We saw this as a way, perhaps with
Saudi help, of avoiding the Soviet Union getting in on the act.
Sir John Graham noted that the YAR naval commander whom he had met
was not at all pro-Russian despite having been trained there.

Prince Saud said that there had been contacts from our Ambassador

to the Saudi Ambassador in Sanaa about this but there had been no
direct contact from the Yemenis to the Saudis. Saudi Arabia would
in principle naturally prefer that any such Yemeni cooperation
should be with the UK. rather than the Soviet Union.

Prince Saud asked about his friend Dr. Hammadi's visit to
London. Mr. Hurd said that the talks had gone better than we
or probably Hammadi had expected. There were no real bilateral
problems now better the UK and Iraq apart from the case of one

British businessman in prison. The Iraqis had inevitably had some

queries about our interpretation of our neutrality obligations in

the Iran/Iraq war as regards defence equipment. We were grateful

for all that Prince Saud might have done behind the scenes to help

forward this relationship. Prince Saud said it was good that the

Iraqis wished to expand contacts. They were seeking the chairman-
ship of the Non-Aligned Movement and it was healthy that they were
truly non-aligned in their policies. They would also be holding
the meeting of Islamic countries in Baghdad soon and had sent an

invitation from the Islamic Secretary General to Iran to participate,

/ Mr. Hurd asked




Mr. Hurd asked about Iraq and Gulf cooperation. Prince Saud

said that the future depended on the Iraqis. But their party
system was an obstacle to their involvement with the Gulf
countries. The Saudis were pleased with the solid progress being

made in Gulf cooperation.

Mr. Hurd said that he wished to raise one bilateral point,

This related to the dissolution of the Arab Organisation for
Industrialisation which had left one British company, Westlands,
with a substantial remaining problem about which they were still
disappointed. We had urged Westlands to look to the future and

we believed that they accepted this. But it would be a great help
if Prince Sultan would agree to see Lord Aldington, the Chairman
of Westlands, as had been earlier requested. There had been no

response to this request. Prince Saud undertook to talk to Prince

Sultan about this. He knew that there was a problem for the Saudis
in looking at any single issue involved before there was an overall

settlement to the AOI question.

Prince Saud asked after Lord Carrington and said that he was
, Lord Carrington's ’
looking forward to / role in the Presidency of the EC. Mr. Hurd

stressed that the Presidency itself, as with the Arab Leaqgue, did
not automatically confer any additional power. Prince Saud said
that nevertheless he expected much of Lord Carrington. He joked
that if he did not solve the Palestinian question as he had done
the Rhodesian, this would be an act of racism! Mr. Hurd said that
in this context and that of the Ministerial Meeting of the Euro/Arab
dialogue, it was very important that the Palestinians and the other
Arabs should associate themselves with a peace process even if this
was not Camp David. This would give Lord Carrington the ammunition
he needed to try and advance the process. Prince Saud stressed
that to agree to such a movement the Palestinians would first need
a commitment from the US about the direction of its policy. Without
such a commitment they would not be prepared to make a gesture just

to obtain newspaper headlines. Sir John Graham noted that the

previous December Arafat had come close to making a conditional
statement. Prince Saud said that this was so but that soon after-
wards the US had made a number of strongly anti-PLO statements
thereby disappointing the Palestinians. Mr. Hurd said that he

entirely agreed on the need to eéncourage an evolution in US policy.

/ One way




One way to achieve this was to point out to the Americans that
they could not get the strategic position which they wanted in the
Middle East while the Arab/Israel problem festered. A second way
was to persuade the US that the PLO was not committed to the
destruction of Israel. We accepted that the Arabs could argue

the reverse in relation to the Israeli Constitution but our aim
should be to change the positions of both sides. We were afraid

of missing what might be an opportunity to do this. Prince Saud

said that all that it needed was for the US to take the Palestinians
into their confidence. Mr. Gray wondered whether the US might not

make a conditional statement. Prince Saud replied that the US had

so far gone no further than saying that if the PLO renounced
terrorism it would be willing to talk to them - but this did not

amount to a commitment to a change in US policy.

Sir John Graham asked whether the PLO might not make a

conditional commitment simply to a negotiated settlement.

Prince Saud said that this was still putting the cart before the

horse. The UK should get Arafat to come to London. Sir John Graham

asked whether in this case Arafat would say what we wanted him to.

Prince Saud asked why we did not try this out with Arafat.

The meeting finished at 1645.

20 April 1981
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CONF IDENTIAL
FM FCO 18122@7 APR 81
TO IMMEDI|ATE BOMBAY
TELEGRAM NUMBER 85 OF 18 APRIL
INFO |IMMEDIATE JEDDA WASHINGTON ROUTINE ANKARA
FOLLOWING FOR PRIME MINISTERS’ PARTY
1. THE U S EMBASSY HAVE ASKED US TO PASS THE FOLLOWING MESSAGE TO
YOU FROM THE STATE DEPARTMENT:
QUOTE

ON APRIL 1, FOREIGN MINISTER TURKMEN ASKED THE
SECRETARY TO RAISE ASSISTANCE TO TURKEY DURING HIS VISIT
TO SAUD| ARABIA. IN HIS DISCUSSION WITH CROWN PRINCE FAHD
ON APRIL 8, SECRETARY HAIG URGED THE SAG TO PROVIDE SUB-
STANTIAL ASS|ISTANCE FOR TURKEY AGAIN IN 1981. FHAD’S RE-
SPONSE WAS NON-COMMITTAL.

IN 1980 SAG BALANCE-OF=PAYMENTS ASSISTANCE FOR TURKEY
TOTALED 258 MILLION DOLLARS. TURKEY’S NEEDS FOR EXTERNAL
ECONOMIC AID ARE AT LEAST AS GREAT IN 1981 AS IN 1988.

IT WILL NOT BE POSSIBLE FOR SOME OECD DONORS TO PROVIDE
AS MUCH ASSISTANCE THIS YEAR, THUS, AID FROM OTHER DONORS
TAKES ON ADDED IMPORTANCE. WE BELIEVE IT wWOULD BE HELPFUL
IF PRIME MINISTER THATCHER AND CHANCELLOR SCHMIDT WOULD
ALSO ASK THE SAG TO PROVIDE AID TO TURKEY AGAIN IN 1981.
UNQUOTE.

CARRINGTON
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FOLLOWING FROM ALEXANDER, PRIME MINISTER'S PARTY,
YOUR TELNO 2341 PRIME MINISTER’S VISIT TC SAUD| ARABIA

THE PRIME MINISTER WOULD PREFER TO AVOID A STATEMENT AT THE END
OF HER YISIT TO SAUD! ARABIA IF POSSIBLE. |F THE SAUDIS ARE
INSISTENT, THE PRIME 4INISTER WOULD PREFER SEPARATE PRESS RELEASES

TO A JOINT COMMUNIQUE.
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CONFIDENTIAL

.m. PATTISON

The Prime Minister is content with the draft

letter about Tornado sales to Arab countries.

T.P.L.

16 April 1981
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PRIME MINISTER

Tornado Sales to Arab Countries

Lord Carrington has seen a copy of Dawson's letter to me of 10 April
with the siclosed annexes on the Tornado 'family' and revised briefs for the
Prime Minister's visit to the Gulf States. These papers indicate that our
main objectivenow is thesale to Arab customers of a completely new aircraft
(the P110) available towards the end of the decade, specifically designed
for the Middle East and incorporating modern technology developed during
the AST 403 studies combined with major components of the Tornado.

The Tornado itself in its IDS or ADV versions, would be supplied to Arab
customers in three or four days time to fill the gap.

Your message of 16 February to Chancellor Schmidt referred solely to the

question of sales of the two existing versions of the Tornado itself. 1In

light of latest developments, and of Herr Schmidt's own visit to Jedda a few

days after the Prime Minister's, Lord Carrington believes it important that

we should give the Federal Chancellor's Office an up-to-date and comprehensive
account of the way our thinking is progressing. He sees a risk that, unless
we do so, the Germans may feel that we have been less than wholly frank

and consistent in what we havesaid to them.

When SirJock Taylor paid his introductory call on Chancellor Schmidt,
the latter expressedsceptism about the seriousness of our proposal to sell
Tornado to the Arabs; he said he thought our proposals were merely
a political gesture. Sir Jock put matters straight. But, because the
interview had to be cut short, Herr Schmidt invited him to write to the
Chancellery on any further points he wished to cover. Lord Carrington
considers that this provides a useful opportunity to keep the Chancellor
informed of the latest developments on Tornado and the P110 as well as to

deal with the security question which the Chancellor mentiohed.

/I




CONFIDENTIAL

I attach a draft text which the Secretary of State wishes to instruct
SirJ. Taylor to include in his letter to the Chancellor's Office.s Ths
takesaccount of comments from the Erbassy in Bonn on an earlier MOD draft.

In addition, LordCarrington believes it would be helpful if further
word could be sent to the Chancellor about any talks on TorBado which you

may have in Jedda, before HerrSchmidt leaves Bonn on 27 April,

A
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SUBJECT:

DRAFT TEXT OF LETTER FROM HM AMBASSADOR BONN TO THE
FEDERAL CHANCELLOR'S OFFI1CE

e In the course of my discussion with the Chancellor
on 7 April, I undertook to provide further information

on the security implications of selling Tornado in the

Middle East. I would, however, like also to take this

opportunity of bringing you up to date with the latest
developments in our discussions with Arab countries
and of filling in some background detail to the Prime
Minister's message of 17 February.

2. In her message, the Prime Minister stressed the
political importance of strengthening the Arab states
by encouraging them to stand on their own feet in
military terms. It is for this reason, and because

of the importance which HMG attach to the industrial
and technological argumentis, that we have been SO

“nclosures—fag(s).eeveseesss anxious to ensure that the option of a purchase of

Tornado, and of a derivative of this aircraft, was
kept fully open while the Arab countries considered
their future requirement for an advanced technology

fighter. We therefore regard the prospect of Tornado

/sales
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sales as much more than a political gesture and

believe it important to encourage any interest which

the Arab states show in the aircraft.

I At present the degree of interest varies from
state to state. Different countries have different
aircraft requirements in different timescales.

Jordan, which has the most effective Arab airforce

in the Middle East, appears to be taking the lead

in advising a number of other Arab states on a joint
purchase of some 300 advanced combat aircraft. Once
the Jordanian evaluation is complete it will be
discussed with other Arab nations at a technical
conference. The United Kingdom first learnt of this
intention at the time of the Amman Summit in the
autumn. Just before the Taif Summit in February we
discovered that King Hussein was on the point of putting
a recommendation to his colleagues. We were told that
Tornado had not been considered because of doubts
about its availability for the Middle East. We

judged that a decision in favour of an alternative
aircraft would cause long term damage to the advanced
aircraft industry in the three partner countries. ¥t
,mas_inL_Lhisﬁ;aasanﬁaisrmqu—as—éaf—pe%%%%e&%—ye&%eﬁsj

LT AL
~hat fhe Prime MinisterLseE' a personal message to
King Hussein asking that the Tornado should also be
considered. This message appears to have averted an
immediate decision in favour of an alternative aircraft.
The Omanis also expressed an interest in Tornado but
it appears that the Saudis have taken no firm position
at this stage.
/4.
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potential Arab customers. and—withourown—indusiry,
atreugh the skunakionty SEIL fluid,
our thinking has,#ewevexn, developed a good deal
since the Prime Minister's message. You may find it
helpful if I were to set out the position in detail.
Theno are Some wwdicakions maiy loe maimly
R—éﬂ—nﬁw—ci-eﬁ—r[_that the Arab countries {}e—k;@ﬂn—]-ng
inkenasced im

for [an advanced air superiority fighter aircraft,
available towards the end of the 1980s, There would
be an obvious attraction for them if this new aircraft
could be the latest in a ''family'' of aircraft,
earlier generations of which might be available for

K-’Cgi«'nm'. tc
them in the mid 1980s. We are therefore nowLﬁlinkﬁm1r
of a new design, based on Tornado technology and using
Tornado components, which would be specifiesllsy
developed in the United Kingdom for the Arabs as =a
partnership venture involving Arab funding. We
hope that a longer-term project of this nature will
not give rise to serious political difficulties
in the Federal Republic. Nevertheless, in the shorter
term the Arab countries may want to procure some of t1he
existing IDS and ADV versions of the existing Tornado in
order to fill the gap before the new aircraft is
available. HMG consider that a proposal of this
nature has considerable appeal to potential Arab
customers and offers the possibility of significant
benefits to the industries of the three partner
countries by building on our achievement, and safe-
guarding our future capability in this area of high
technology.

5. We therefore believe it important to counter the

reservations which the Arabs  continue to express about
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our’eliability as a secure source of supply, and

have taken certain measures to sustain Arab interest,
King Hussein has asked to fly an RAF Tornado in the
course of a private visit which he is currently making
to the United Kingdom and we have made arrangements
for him to do so. This will be followed by a similar
flight for an Omani pilot and a similar invitation
has been offered to Saudi Arabia. I hope these
measures, which the United Kingdom has taken on its
own responsibility, indicate the importance we attach
to maintaining Arab interest. I should stress, however,
that discussions are still at a very early stage and
we do not. yet know whether the Arabs will decide in
favour of Tornado and, if so, what configuration of
aircraft they will choose and in what timescale.
6. Finally, I should like to deal with the important
problem of security which the Chancellor mentioned to
me. The United Kingdom is just as concerned as the
FRG that the essential characteristics of our main
front line aircraft should not be compromised. If
the Arabs decide on an entirely new advanced combat
o dnauld avencoms  oun
| nircraftLye—ﬁﬁhﬁﬁ%—ﬁﬂtit%p&%eaany security difficulties#khmk

.0,
¥t o il
We have, however, discussed the security £§ﬁf&eu&tﬁ@ﬁ

on the current IDS Tornado with officials at the
Federal Ministry of Defence. It was agreed that there
are only four areas of particular sensitivity and
these could be safeguarded in the following ways:
a) the nuclear weapons panel - this would be deleted
from any aircraft sold to the Middle East;
the characteristics of the terrain-following radar

- these could be altered by design changes;
a e e




electronic warfare equipment - this is always
re-designed for export aircraft;
d) the weapons fit - no commitments have been made
to the Arab states on weapons.
Apart from these four areas, where safeguards can be
devised, we do not expect that any’part of the existing
aircraft will need to be classified above
confidential. The United Kingdom would take similar
steps on the air defence variant. We would of course
wish to hold further discussions on security with the
appropriate German authorities once we know what
sort of aircraft the Arabs wish to purchase.
T In the meantime the immediate problem is to
convinoce the Arabs that we are serious and that both
political and security problems can be overcome,
Mr Nott took every opportunity to make this point,
without prejudcing the position of our pariners, in the
course of his recent visit to the Middle East and the
Prime Minister will follow this up during her own

‘______-\-N ‘)ﬂ.g‘u'\‘ -

Apﬂfwﬁﬁ& Eﬁw& visit.q:@ny $wrther information which becomes P
Hﬁ&ﬂ?ﬁsp&ihkﬂﬁ ﬂ___hiyailable,wﬁj?ﬂbe fed back to you before the 'hnnne]ln%
e %Go«n&ngz

for e £8

leaves for Saudi Arabia. es—27#Aprih Thereafter we

o
AT anticipate that a—{ffy early decision in principle

will be required to continue the dialogue with the

Arabs, that—has aiready-begun.
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TO IMMEDIATE FCO

TELNO 322 OF 16TH APRIL 1981
REPEATED |MMEDIATE NEW DELHI.,

PRIME MINISTER’S VISIT TO SAUDI ARABIA

1. THE DEPUTY FOREIGN MINISTER TELLS ME HE HAS RECEIVED
INSTRUCTIONS FROM PRINCE SAUD IN DELHI TO START DRAFTING A JOINT
**STATEMENT’® TO BE ISSUED AT THE END OF THE PRIME MINISTER’S
VISIT. IN REPLY TO MY QUESTION HE SAID HE THOUGHT THIS MEANT

A JOINT COMMUNIQUE.

i | REPLIED THAT IT WAS NOT OUR CUSTOM TO HAVE JOINT
COMMUNIQUES. BUT HE SAID THAT FOR A PRIME MINISTERIAL

VISIT THE SAUDIS WOULD LIKE TO HAVE SOMETHING., THE HEAD OF
WESTERN DEPARTMENT WHO WAS PRESENT RECALLED THAT DURING

YOUR VISIT TO TAIF IN AUGUST THE TWO SIDES HAD JOINTLY DRAFTED
SEPARATE PRESS RELEASES AND CLEARED THEM WITH EACH OTHER.

3. WOULD TH!S SOLUTION BE ACCEPTABLE PROVIDED | CAN (AS |
EXPECT) RIDE THE SAUDIS OFF THE IDEA OF A JOINT COMMUNIQUE?

GRAIG

e [COFIES SENT TO NO 10 DOWNING ST.]
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PCD .
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SIE J GRAHAM
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v0 JEDDA
00 DpLHI

GilS 120

OF 1u APRIL 1941

MINISTER'S VISIT TO SAUDI ARABIA
WE SHOULD RESIST AGREETING TO
FORM OF SUBSTANTIVE STATEMENT AT THE END OF THE PRIME
STER'S VISIT. A JOINT COMMUNIQUE COULD WELL BE DIFFICULT TO
HD I3 LIKELY TO BE UNDULY TIME-CONSUX NEGOTIATE,
JOF LEAVING A BAD TASTE.
RELEASES #OULD SERVE TO UNDERLINWE ANY DIFFERENCES

STER'S VIEWS, THEREFORE, WE RECOMMEND

P U4 AMBASSADOR SHOULD TRY TO RIDE THE SAUDIS OFF THIS
PROPUSAL. IF Tk IS NOT THE MATTER CAN BE DISCUSSED
FURTHER AFTER THE PRIE MINISTER AND MR HURD'S ARRIVAL IN RIYADH.

CARRINGTOR

J 1OBERLY
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00 DUBAI
Q0 ABU DHAEI
00 DZLHI

GR3 22v
RESTRICTED
i1 #CO 1014004 APRIL
TO IMJEDIATE DUBAI
TELEGRAM HUMBER 68 OF 1o APRIL 1931
i A4EDIATE ABU DHABI,NEW DELHI
i : DUBAI ALUMINIUM SMELTER INSURANCE
INSURANCE ASSOCIATION HAVE JRITTEN TO THE
THE CABIWET TO SUGGEST THAT THE PRIME HINISTER
AADE AWARE THAT SHAIKH RASHID MIGHT RAISE WITH HER
THE QUESTION OF THE SUBSTANTIAL INSURANCE CLAIM OQUTSTANDING
FOLLOJING TiiE DAMASE TO THE ALUMINIUM SHMELTER.
2. JE THINK IT UNLI: THAT RASHID WILL DO S0. BUT IN CASE THE
PRIHME HMINISTER H THE FOLLOWING

i
DEFENSIVE BRIEF,WE SUGGEST
QUOTE COHCERNED HEAR OF THE DAMAGE TO THE SMELTER. BRITISH
{SURERS HAVE LON ADI" OF MEETING ALL LEGITIMATE CLAIMS
AGAINST THEM,NO M HOY LARGE, NWOTTION OF THEIR NOT
IE

HOWOURING THEIR LEGAL LIABILITIES. ARISING OUT OF DUBAI
INCIDENT. AM SURE THE INSURERS ARE DEALING AS QUICKLY AS THEY
CAN JITH THE CLAIM UNQUOTE.
“AY JISH TO EXPLAIN THE CIRCUMSTANCES OF THE DAYMAGE TO THE
TO THE PRIME MINISTER'S PARTY EITHER ON ARRIVIAL IN DUBAI OR
ABU DHABI JHERE THERE WILL BE A

No. 10 DSVviva .-

LIAITED COPIED TO
HED MR WRIGHT CABINET

?CD

f5 el
et
;‘,/V—’-;wgégagf RESTRICTE!
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GPS 100

RESTR ICTED

Fi1 FCo 161205Z APR 1981

To IMMEDIATE WASHINGTON
TELEGRAM NUMBER 588 OF 1£ APRIL
INFO BIS NEW YORK

FROM NO 10 PRESS OFF ICE.
1. YOUR TEL 1116 OF 3 APRIL ABOUT REQUEST BY PETER OSNOS,
WASHINGTON POST, FOR RADIO INTERVIEW WITH PRIME MINISTER ON

18 OR 22 JUNE.

2. REGRET IMMEDIATE ANSWER NOT POSSIBLE. CONSIDERATION MUST
AVAIT PRIME MINISTER’S RETURN (2F APRIL) FROM INDIA/GULF TOUR,

3. PLEASE TELL OSNOS HIS REQUEST WILL RECEIVE EARLIEST POSSIBLE
ATTENTION. GRATEFUL TO KNOW = WITHOUT COMMITMENT = IF QTHER

DATES POSSIBLE. SUGGESTED DATES MAY BE INCOMVENIENT EVEN IF
PRIME MINISTER AGREES IN PRINCIPLE,

CARR INGTON
[COPIES SENT TO NO 10 DOWNING STREET]

RESTRICTED
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Training Charges

1. The letter of 6 Aﬁril from Number 10 to your
Private Secretary refers to the damage to British
interests in Saudi Arabia as a result of the over-zealous

—

recovery of charges for SAS training. This, I thinkK,

highlights a wider problem over the impact of MOD training

charges on our interests abroad which has concerned me for

some time.

L When colleagues considered the MISC 42 reports,
it was accepted that full costs (as defined by the
Treasury) or as near full costs as the market would bear,

should continue to be the basis of charging policy. I
understand that, in endorsing subsequently the scale of
charges to be made for training in the UK, you directed
that there should be some flexibility; especially where

et —
there is a direct defence policy interest (including

defences sales). This is a welcome move. No doubt your

officials will now be considering how to implement your
directions. You may therefore like to have a note of how
we here see the problem.

3% Clearly problems exist. My attention has been
drawn to a number of instances where our charging arrange-
ments may be having an adverse effect on our national
interests. One in particular, on which our officials have
been in touch, is the charge we make for Canadian work-
up training and the possible'reciprocal (and costly)
effect on what the Canadians may charge us for our use of
/their 4
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their facilities. We have also had recent indications

from the Ambassador in Oslo that the Norwegians may be

turning elsewhere, perhaps to the Dutch, for training

because our costs are too high. The latest indications

we have of dissatisfaction with the level of our charges

come from a report by the leader of the Red Arrows team

to the Middle East. You may have seen his signal of

24 March, reporting on representations made to him on the

high cost of British training. These and other examples,

coming as they do on top of the evidence last year that

third world countries like Ghana, Kenya and Malaysia had

to reduce the amount of training they could buy from us,
are worrying. Not only does this prompt such countries to
look to us to provide an increasing level of subsidised
help under the UKMTAS (the level of which is not increasing

in real terms), but there is surely a risk of pricing
R e T,

ourselves out of the market. Worse, are we in some

instances —Cr TNt 0T Canada, in danger of cutting off

our nose to spite our face?

4, The examples, to which I have referred, relate
only to past experience. I understand however that a
further very substantial rise in charges is envisaged for

1981/82. This increase will make our problems worse.

B I entirely understand the difficulties which
face with the Defence Budget. Clearly any revenue you
generate is helpful. But in the longer term we may be

danger of reducing revenue in real terms, since demand

cannot be infinitely elastic. I am sure that your
initiative in relation to charges will be implemented in
a way which meets our general need to maintain, by

training and sales, good defence relations with friendly

/foreign
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friendly foreign states as well as satisfying your
particular need to recoup as large a proportion as
possible of your costs. My officials would be glad to

give whatever help they can to yours in working out

details of a more flexible approach.

6. The letter from Number 10 to which I referred

also touched on the related question of the allocation

of training places. 1 agree that this can sometimes

bresent difficulties, particularly with Staff Colleges
where competition is fierce. One factor is the demand,;
another is the ability of friendly countries to provide
suitable candidates. Clearly we do need to give careful
thought about which countries should be offered slots and
in what numbers. Our officials are in touch on this.

I believe that it is in our interests to do all we can to

identify and meet the effective demand.

7. I am copying this minute to the Prime Minister,

the Chancellor of the Exchequer and to Sir Robert Armstrong.

(CARRINGTON)

Foreign and Commonwealth Office
15 April 1981
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With the Compliments
of the
Private Secretary

to the
Secretary of the Cabinet

M, A, Pattison, Esq

Cabinet Office,
London, S.W.1.




CABINET OFFICE
70 Whitehall, London swia 2as Telephone o1-233 8319

From the Secretary of the Cabinet: Sir Robert Armstrong Kcs,cvo

Ref: A04732 15th April 1981

Prime Minister's Visit to The Gulf:
Dubai Aluminium Plant

I enclose a copy of a letter which Sir Robert Armstréng has
received from the British Insurance Association, indicating that the Dubai
authorities have a substantial insurance claim against British insurers
over damage to the aluminium smelter at Dubai. The British Insurance
Association think there is a possibility that this insurance claim might be
raised with the Prime Minister.

Brief PMVK(81) 12 for the Prime Minister's visit to The Gulf deals
with bilateral political and economic issues for the Prime Minister's visit
to the UAE, Paragraph 4 contains a reference to the aluminium smelter
but does not mention the possibility of an insurance claim. Iimagine that
the FCO and the Department of Trade officials will wish to ensure that the
Prime Minister is furnished with a line to take on this insurance claim point
should it be raised with her. Such a line to take will have to be telegraphed
out to the Prime Minister's party. I should be grateful if you could make
arrangements for this to be done and if you could also send No, 10 and
ourselves a copy of the outgoing telegram.

I am sending copies of this letter and of the enclosure to
Jonathan Phillips, Department of Trade, John Neve, Department of Industry
and Mike Pattison, No, 10,

(D.J. Wright)

Miss Barbara Hay




zars
BRITISH INSHURANCE ASSQCIATION

CHAIRMAN: J.F, G. EMMS - DEPUTY CHAIRMEN: P. R. DUGDALE - P, W. SHARMAN
SECRETARY GENERAL R.C.W. BARDELL

ALDERMARY HOUSE,

TELEGRAMS TELEPHONE:
BRINASSOC, LONDON-E C. 4 O1-248 4477

QUEEN STREET, LONDON, EC4N ITU

15th April 1981

Sir Robert Armstrong, KCB, CVO.,
Secretary of the Cabinet,
Cabinet Office,

Whitehall, SW1A 2AS.

i K 196]
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Dubai Aluminium Plant: Insurance Claim

It may be that I am bothering you unnecessarily but I do think
that Mrs. Thatcher ought to be aware that there is a possibility
if she wvisits Dubai that the authorities there may raise with her
the question of a substantial insurance claim which is currently
outstanding.

Briefly there was an incident on 19th February 1981 as a conseguence
of which the aluminium smelter at Dubai ceased to operate with the
result that solidification occurred. I don't think you will be very
worried about the technical details: what matters is that the claim
is estimated to be above £20 million.

Pressure is already being exerted by the authorities in Dubai
on British insurers (two of our major members lead on this risk but
there are over 40 insurers involved in all). Those concerned are
doing the best they can to see this matter through to a conclusion
and there is no question but that British insurers will honour their
legzal liabilities.

I understand that the brokers have had it confirmed that the
local authorities accept there will be a delay of a couple of weeks.
We are expecting to reach a conclusion on or around Friday, =24th
April.




Sorry to bother you with all this. It just occurred to us here
that the matter might be raised by the Ruler or one of his people because
80% of the smelter is owned by the Dubai Government. The Ruler is,
I believe, taking a personal interest in the progress of the claim.
Obviously, if you or any of your colleagues want more information
it can be provided.

I think all we would ask is that reassuring noises are made
if questions arise.

I am not sure if you are accompanying Mrs. Thatcher: if so,
no doubt one of your colleagues will make sure the contents of this
letter reach you quickly.
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TORNADO SALES TO ARAB COUNTRILES
Problem

When Sir J Taylor paid his introductory call on Chancellor

3 +4
1

midt, the latter displayved great scepticism about the seriousnes:
our proposal to sell Tornado in the Arab world. The Chancellor
2id that he thought our efforts were merely a political gesture.
The sador explained that this was not so. But his conversation
the Chancellor was cut short and Herr Schmidt invited him 10
:ny further points to the Hanzleramt in wri ing. Should we
is proffered opportunity
ur sales effort with t

our thinking?

round

4

fhe background to our first coniacis on rnado with the Aral
1he Germans is set out in my suly i 26 March. Since thi
Prime Minister has replied to King in's message following
Taif Summit (text in FCO telno 113 1o Awman). This, for the
rst time, referred to ''a new alrcratil Lesid on Tornado technolios
.Gapted to Arab requirements aveilable by the late 1980's. The
ssage also mentioned the possi - supply of Tornados as 2

filler'! available in 3/4 )

4, Our original understanding was that this ''new?' aircraft » wld

in fact be very similar to Tornado, but with adaptations (and
/perhaps
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perhaps an Arab name) as a ''selling point'' to make it look like
a special development for the Arab customers. We learnt, however,
only on Friday that the MOD are thinking of a more radical solution.
The attachment to Mr Dawson's letter of 10 April to No 10 (sent at
the Prime Minister's request following a meeting with Mr Nott and
the CDS at which she had apparently been somewhat confused by what

the MOD was proposing) refers to a new aircraft (the P110) of ''com-

pletely new design incorporating‘the latest technology combined

with major components of the Tornado'' developed to meet Middle
Fast requirements. The Annex makes clear that this would be undcr-

taken with Arab participation in the developnment and the funding.

5. In the light of this, we asked the Embassy in Bonn for their
views on an MOD draft of a text of the letter from Sir J Taylor
to the Kanzleramt (FCO telnos 132 and 133). Bonn's reply suggcsie
anges in the MOD draft making it clearer that we were now thinkimng
a new UK/Arab aircraft, a point which had not been made at all
the Prime Minister's original message of 16 February to ithe

vancellor,

ument

€. These recent changes in Wwha

ted the position with the Germans - is not surprising

frel expressed astonishment when Mr Nott told him on 8
not now thinking of an ' jiate sale of the
of Tornado''(Mr Norbury's minute of 8 April).
in contradiction with the
above) which, while emphasi:

ic to sell the new aircraft, savs specifically that existing

the Tornado would be supplied to T3 he gap in the meanwhile,

—

7. There is a further inconsistency between, on the one hand, the
points, heavily stressed in the MOD draft for Sir J Taylorls fettier;
that the industries of the three partiner countries badly need to
make overseas sales of Tornado, and, on the other hand, the argun
again referred to by Mr Nott in his talk with Herr Apel and taken

up in the MOD draft of the letter to the Kanzleramt, that we are
aiming at a new aircraft ''specifically developed in the UKo —dn
is not clear what the Gerrans could expect to gain from the export

Jof such
CONFIDENTIAL
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of such an aircraft. They might be involved in the construction of
certain components; but the more they are involved the more political-
ly difficult it becomes for them to agree to exports to the Middle

East.
8. There are two further potential problems:

a. we have seen worrying indications that, while the Saudis may
not be particularly interested in a new aircraft or in Tornado, the
Iraqis probably are, Indeed it may be the Iragis who are stimulating

King Hussein, the Germans have difficulties over supply to

I1f
Saudi Arabia, it is a fair guess that the problems with Irag woulad

be even greater. I do not believe that we can tell the Germans much
about this aspect now, if only because the picture is not clear.
But we must come clean with them as soon as we are in a position to

do so;

the MOD's note referred to in paragraph 4 hints (but does not

AT

ay specifically) that there may be some RAF interest in procuring

-

a version of the P110, whose technology will be based In pa

AST 403, ihe now moribund Anglo/German/French project for an

]
ignter. i » RAF are interested, 1 i fayr from elear whethe
re ig anv possibility of using Saudi money to develop the
whether the necessary budget input in the UK side
i s - : MOB.<.
properly examined 1n he conteltl the current/treview of
and budget

+ -

is an unsatisfactory sitvati in which to have to takec
ick decisions. Nonetheless 1 believe that we cannot leave malild
they stand with the Germans. It will clearly be important for

s

rime Minister to send a report to the Chancellor in the short pe?
fter her visit to SAudi Arabia and his own visit(21-27April). In the
~antime however 1 see no alternative but to instruct Sir J Taylor
write to the Kanzleramt on the lines of the attached draft. Ve
cwe it to the Germans to be as frank as we can. As things stand at
present 1 fear they might with some justification feel that we were

not being entirely open (let alone consistent).

& :{T"mu#

D H Gillmore

_...‘ ('l
P <Rrilsoat Defence Department

CONFIDERTIAL




1. There has been a shift in MOD thinking since the idea of selling
Tornado to the Arabs was first agreed. It is important to explain to
the Federal Chancellor how matters now stand, not least because of

Herr Schmidt's own visit to Jedda a few days after the Prime Minister,

2. Mr Gillmore rightly calls attention to potential inconsistencies

in the line we have been taking. Although the suggested message to
the Chancellor's office deals skilfully with these, we shall need to

continue keeping a very close eye on the way in which the Tornado sales
campaign is developed.

D MOD officials are content that the letter to No 10 with the draft
letter from Sir J Taylor should go forward.

P H Moberly
14 April 1981
C.Ch

PS /Lord Privy Seal
PS /Mr Hurd
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solely to the question of =ales of ihe

versions of the Tofnado itself. 1In light of latest

developments ,LT.-O]‘(JJ Carrington believes it immortant that
|

we should give th# Federal Chancellor's office an up-to-

||
date and comprehensive account of the way our thinkine

is progressing. I#('-- sees a risk that, unless we do soO,

the Germans may T%e] that we have been less than wholly
/ frank
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frank and consist eQ what we have said to them.

At i1
'
ouc /
When z : . paid his introductory call
on Chancellor Schmidt, the latter expressed sceptism

about the seriousness of our proposal to sell Tornado to

our proposals were merely

the Arabs; he said he thought
BEL
1 L L _
a political gesture. oir e pDUL matters straight

But, because the interview had to be cut short, Herr
Schmidt invited him to write to the Chancellery on anv
points he wished
this provides a
incellor informed o the latest deve pments on Tornado
ey

ion which the

Dy 3 e

attach a aft text which, *soloyece

tary of State

*Jude in his

could be

Tornado which

r Schmidt leaves Bonn on

this letter to Brran
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DEPARTMENT OF INDUSTRY
ASHDOWN HOUSE
123 VICTORIA STREET

LONDON SWIE 6RB

TELEPHONE DIRECT LINE 01-212 5902
SWITCHBOARD 01-212 7676

Frem the
Parliamentary Under Secretary of State' 5 of fice

Tim Lankester Esq
Private Secretary to the
Prime Minister
10 Downing Street
IONDON SW1 i3 April 1981

;;El?txl [ {val

ARABSAT

In his minute of 6 April, Mr Marshall promised to relay from
Washington any further information he could glean about BAe's
Arabsat prospects.

Mr Marshall has now telephoned to say that he has talked to

Dr Ali Mashat, the Direct General of the Arab Satellite
Communlcatlons Organisation, who has advised us to ensure that
BAe emphasise the television part of their bid. (BAe have been
requested to do this).

Mr Marshall adds that this view fits in well with the line he
adopted during his visit to Saudi Arabia when he explained how
the UK could offer a total package including television and BBC
expertise.

In Saudi Arabia, Prince Abdullah is said to be the Minister
mainly concerned with this issue.

k/c D

Q:T{T'¢K7LC\ hit

MRS FRANCES NIEDUSZYNSKA
Private Secretary




From Dennis Walters, M.B.E., M.P.

HOUSE OF COMMONS
LONDON SWIA OAA

13th April 1981

1:@. Prim. /Z‘*d/n)

I feel I should write to you before your visit to the Gulf

about a matter of considerable importance affecting British
interests which has come to my attention.

I was recently in Abu Dhabi where over the years I have
established several top-level personal contacts. My visit coincided
almost exactly with that of John Nott, who I saw and spoke to there.

The information I have since received from unimpeachable
sources in Abu Dhabi is that while both Hawk and Rapier are still
strong runners it will need your personal backing clearly expressed
during your talks if we are to win through. =The slightly oblique
approach which we have so far adopted has not been fully understood
and compares unfavourably with the hard-sell line of our principal
competitors. As an indication of the style and firmness of their .
approach, on the morning after John Nott's departure the French Ambassador
asked for a meeting with Sheikh Khalifa Bin Zayed and handed to him
a personal note from the French Government. The purport of the
message was to urge the case for Alpha Jet and Crotal, the direct rivals
of Haw k and Rapier. It spoke glowingly of past French support, both
political and military, and emphasised the direct interest being taken
in this particular matter by President Giscard personally.




13th April 1981

The delivery of this message caused the following naive
but revealing comment to be made '"We may seriously offend the
French if we do not purchase this equipment, the British do not
seem to mind too much about theirs”'.

I am convinced that if we are to sell Rapier and Hawk to
them it is essential to counter the impression inherent in that
remark and at this stage your intervention alone could do that.

The Rt. Hon. Margaret Thatcher, M. P.
Prime Minister,

10 Downing Street,

London S.W. 1.




Foreign and Commonwealth Office
London SW1A 2AH
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Your reference
Michael Alexander Esq
No 10 Downing Street Our reference

Date

<:§'Ew M&M—b

PRIME MINISTER'S VISIT TO SAUDI ARABIA AND THE GULE

1. As agreed between yourself and David Miers on 10 April, I am sending

t6 vou direct a check list of the subjects which the Prime Minister expects
to raise in her talks. I hope that this will enable you to make up the
necessary 'reminder' cards.

.jm‘h b,

Rt e Ahnss

R E Palmer
Middle East Department

cc: PS/Mr Hurd
Sir J Graham
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1 Regional Ouestions: Arab/Israel, Afghanistan, Iran/Iraq;Ll&wuyh,

Gulf cooperation: stability. Can Britain help?

Defence cooperation: Hawk.

Americans: prepare for 'moan' by Zaid. RDF.
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8. Bilateral Relations: renewal of Treat{& support British
projects.
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) I Defence cooperation: our Gulf record to date (LSP and
training).

Equipment  reliable supplier; air defence.

Hawk (but: beware 'consolation prize’&(fﬁymuJ(Q;bqwj
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i Industrial development: admire achievements.

British involvement in same: hope for increase.

Regional cooperation: important for stability. HawKkwe hu&$£f
Ko § mudhiny bkt 2es it RN Filnal.
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1, Regional issues: Afghanistan; Iraq/Iran; PDRY.

Gulf cooperation: contribution to stability.

3. RDF (US and UK positions), Grlshd fw codfovelie. ) i
Bwanis ferean WAl 8N~ forathilils, | ccnmnad war o], forilion 2 doaraded )

LSP and training: flexibility and need to consult.

5 Tanks, Tornado and Hawk. é}'\(g)\ﬁ LCV [{4/ 16 ﬂ;«'ﬁ;‘\&g Oroe,
Tomado . Delgflos ol domnfomils & toare bimics. €0 & bt o f s,

6. (Téte-a-téte only: balance between civil and military
expenditure).

Th British interest in new projects (Oaboos University,
hospitals?)
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1Ly Personal exchanges important. lV&M<—kv¢w
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Regional issues: Russian encroachment.

Regional cooperation: how can Britain help?

Rapier.

5 Development: admire achievements; stress British
participation.

6. Spending programme: NW Gas Dome; hope for major British
stake.
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1. Rapid Deployment Force: re-assure.

Armed Forces expansion: Perkins report ! i 1 Las 2 h&{&ﬂ:
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Equipment: Rapier.
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diz Bilateral collaboration: British military Mission
to the National Guard.

Gulf cooperation.

Rapid Deployment Force: re-assure.
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Regional
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1 67 Encouragment for Gulf cooperation.

Rapid Deployment Force - re-assure.
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Flying training: RAF team to visit in May. Zggiguﬂ_c~u«
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Yemens and Sudan: help their defences.
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Bilateral collaboration: police and customs training.

Gulf cooperation: encourage regional efforts.

3. IMS as potential supplier to Cd&tguard, Frontier Force
and Special Security Force.

Offshore installation security. &&O\ l W U tonl
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5. Consular cases: Clynton Reed; Messrs Hanley and C}ark(@k:xuwvu;
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1. World Piecture. Afghanistan and Soviet encroachment.
UK/Saudi cooperation in Yemen and Sudan.

2. Gulf Security and Cooperation: encouragement for

regional efforts.
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Rapid Deployment Force: re-assure.
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6. Industrial Collaboration: especially on arms supply:
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ARABSAT: Euro-project.— lc&Jw;mﬁL, S .
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